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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

)
T A B 5 I B
RESULTS
¥4
Year ended 31 March
BHE=ZH="1—HIFEEF
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
SECE | 2R ZF-—F ZF-FF ZZFMLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FiL T T#C T T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(KEH) (BFEH) (&EH) (BFEH)
TURNOVER BEH
Contract revenue Fr R A 3,454,844 2,936,582 2,581,906 2,038,850 2,140,998
Property gross rental income WEMESWALH 21,809 20,859 18,551 15,943 11,687
3,476,653 2,957,441 2,600,457 2,054,793 2,152,685
Contract costs Fr R A (3,273,468)|  (2,777,639)  (2,390,991)  (1,901,867)  (2,024,350)
Property expenses L/EL 53 (1,476) (1,268) (1,805) (894) (1,561)
Gross profit EA) 201,709 178,534 208,381 152,032 126,774
Other income and gains F e A T Wi 25 184,634 98,211 181,179 129,601 16,387
Administrative and other expenses FTB RSB 3 (61,691) (58,989) (55,437) (45,911) (213,655)
Finance costs WM EH (11,314) (7,396) (5,617) (7,319) (18,808)
Share of profits and losses of Al 3t ) 4 ) B 2
jointly-controlled entities i F) K s 11 30,812 44,760 10,993 152 106
Income tax i B 3 1 (24,977) (21,135) (28,880) (17,072) (13,201)
NET PROFIT/(LOSS) ERERH (BR) w8
FOR THE YEAR 319,173 233,985 310,619 211,483 (102,297)
STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
85K UL %
At 31 March
H=H=+—H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
ZECE | 2R ZF-—F ZF-FF ZZFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T#T T T#T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(B E5) (BEH) (BEH]) (BEH)
Investment properties BEME 419,600 953,520 859,674 692,226 471,892
Property, plant and equipment e R T Y E ] 346,891 294,700 274,555 262,300 132,121
Properties held for development HAEERZME 250,000 250,000 251,806 - 127,000
Investments in jointly-controlled A 3 v e ) A 4 K
entities 142,023 111,211 11,251 258 106
Other non-current assets KA IR & E 396 - - - -
Current assets RBEE 1,849,337 1,180,503 663,771 667,769 678,182
Liabilities =0 (1,493,241)|  (1,599,419)  (1,105,147) (980,977) (979,238)
Net assets HEFH 1,515,006 1,190,515 955,910 641,576 430,063
Issued capital TR AT A 37,792 37,459 37,419 37,187 37,182
Reserves ik 1,477,214 1,153,056 918,491 604,389 392,881
Total equity BUHE 25 1,515,006 1,190,515 955,910 641,576 430,063
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EV 280

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS I 5

e Turnover for 2012/13 increased by 17.6% to 2012/13%F EZ BB B34 TR WET » |
approximately HK$3,477 million from approximately 2011/124F BE 229 57T W G I 17.6% o
HK$2,957 million for 2011/12.

e Net gain on disposal of investment properties amounted ©  2012/134 EZ H &R EWEMNF R 41.41
to approximately HK$141 million for 2012/13 (2011/12: fREHEIC (201 1/124 5 = ) o
Nil).

e Net profit for 2012/13 increased by 36.4% to e  2012/134F & Z i F & B 23. 19 ¥ o0 > 1
approximately HK$319 million from approximately 2011/124F BE 2 2 3445 W e HY In36.4% o
HK$234 million for 2011/12.

®  Basic earnings per share for 2012/13 increased to HK21.2 o 2012/134F B Z 45 JB 36 AR 2 1 25212311 >
cents, as compared to HK15.6 cents for 2011/12. 2011/124F BE R 25 15.6 A1l ©

lﬁnuahkpo‘zmmﬁ EERE




‘ VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
v #

o & &k A

B a #

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

€V 2

Turnover (HK$ million)
BEF (GEEBL)
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PERFORMANCE

Despite challenging market conditions in 2012/13, the
Group’s consolidated turnover increased by 17.6% to
HK$3,476,653,000 for 2012/13 from HK$2,957,441,000 for
2011/12 while its profit attributable to the owners of the
parent of the Company for 2012/13 was HK$319,173,000,
increased by 36.4%, which is mainly due to the one-

off net gain on disposal of two investment properties of

HK$141,161,000.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.03 per share (HK3 cents per share) for the year ended
31 March 2013 payable to the shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 26
August 2013. The proposed payment of the final dividends
is subject to approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
2013 annual general meeting of the Company and has not
been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2013. Based on
the 1,746,664,400 ordinary shares in issues as of this annual
report, the total dividend amounted to HK$52,400,000.
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Profit/(Loss) for the Year (HK$ million)
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X HiRB
WMAE2012/13FEW T IH T > REH
2012/1340 i Z 55 65 /8 E I 1£3,476,653,000% 7T »
BE2011/124F J 2.2,957,441,000% 70 4 n17.6% 3
Al IRF > 7 HH B T 3 Y 0 3 1 e Y B i
141,161,000 70 » B: 2 B 8 A7 5 MEAL %2 A1 7
2012/134F JE 1 B 48 )% EF136.4%%319,173,000%
TE e

JBE &
HRGEHRABE_FZ-=ZHE=A=Z+—HILE
PERR R =4 )0\H AN H AT AR R
2 0 BB SRR AR 1 e 8 B I 0.03 W 08 (B =
WAL - BERBZARBBEBANAKAR ZR—=
AR OB AE K& RS R R A e > 7T AR
I AR 11 B B B oI A A 55 5 H R A LR o R
AR H CBATIRAN1,746,664,400 B 35 78 1B B 4 5t
S B B A8 A 552,400,000 85 T ©
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Contract Works

The Group’s contract works segment has recorded a turnover
of HK$3,454,844,000 for 2012/13, increased by 17.6% from
HK$2,936,582,000 for 2011/12. Facing inflation pressure
under the prolonged ultra-low interest rate environment, the
Group’s managed to maintain a stable profit margin which
only recorded a slight decrease from 5.4% for 2011/12 to 5.2%
for 2012/13. The overall segment profit from contract works
business increased by 14.1% to HK$181,376,000 for 2012/13
from HK$158,943,000 for 2011/12.

Besides our wholly-owned subsidiaries, we also engage in
contract works through jointly-controlled entities. For
2012/13, our share of profits of the jointly-controlled entities,
net of tax, amounted to HK$30,812,000, decreased by 31.2%
from HK$44,760,000 for 2011/12. The profit is primarily
attributable to our share of profit of the Leighton-Able Joint
Venture, in which we have 49% interest and which undertakes
the contract for the design and construction of North Lantau
Hospital, and our share of profit of Fungs E & M Engineering
Company Limited which we have 40% interest.

During 2012/13, the Group continued to secure an impressive
amount of significant contracts from both the public and
private sectors. As a result, we are much delighted to
report that the total and outstanding values of the Group’s
substantial contracts on hand as at 31 March 2013 were
approximately HK$10,800 million and HK$7,712 million,
respectively. We expect these jobs on hand will be completed

in one to four years.

645 Ml

FHITRH

K 2 A A TR 4 B 2012/ 134F B 8% 5
3,454,844,000% 7T 2 & FEH > B2011/124E JE 2
2,936,582,000% 7t I F+17.6% ° 4R 17 » T % 5 4
KB BRIETZ @B > A ) R Fe 18 e
HIBA R s BARE2011/124EEZ54% F B2
2012/134EE25.2%  2012/134EE A H TR Z %
23 EB R £ 181,376,00085 06 » #2011/124E 2
158,943,000# 76 £ F+14.1% °

e 2 & O 2 W) A1 - A B2 [ 25 A0 Ak ) ¢ o
WEE M TARER o AH M FEAY I [l e ] L 88 2
B B 4% %2 A FH2011/124F FE 2 44,760,000 7C T B
F2012/134F J# Z2.30,812,000% It © 7% ¥ A1) 42 2R
B AR A [ A 0 — 2 DR e ) (RN R
T — 22 PRI A 49% WE 25 » T 4% U — 2RI 4 T
RO R R B AL R F B 2 A A 5 RAREE
A U5 R A TR PR A W) Z ) (AR U5
R E TR R AW A40%ME 4%) ©

HR2012/134F- B8 > ACHE 1B 48 40 N 8 T RL 8 T 35 B
BAYTEBZERTRE - Hik » FMRAHRE -
REER _F-=ZF=ZH=ZT—HZFHAHHA
A 4 e oA 56 B A 4B 43 331 22 108. 0048 s o6 & 77. 1248
WG o WAMFEFH L E T HE A AR — ZEWE NS
B o
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Property Investment and Property Development

Our investment properties were valued at an aggregate value
of $419,600,000 as of 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$953,520,000)
by an independent professional valuer. The significant
decrease in the Group’s investment properties portfolio
in 2012/13 was mainly due to the disposal of the Group’s
investment properties in relation to the shop units in
Argyle Centre, which completion took place on 28 February
2013 (the “Major Disposal”), and the change of intention
in developing the Belfran Road project from a long term

investment to sale in 2012/13.

As a result of the annual revaluation, we posted an
aggregate gain of HK$38,080,000 for 2012/13 (2011/12:
HK$90,581,000) on changes in fair value of investment
properties.

Meanwhile, property investment business continued to
provide stable and recurring revenue to the Group. The
Group’s rental income arose mainly from the leasing of retail
shops. During 2012/13, the Group recorded a gross rental
income of approximately HK$21,809,000 from its investment
properties, representing a 4.6% increase from HK$20,859,000
for 2011/12. The increase in rental income comprised
primarily the renewal of tenancy contracts for the investment
properties at Fu Wah Centre, No. 210 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan and at Argyle Centre, Phase I, Mongkok.

The projects for the redevelopment of the sites at Nos. 92A-E
Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong and No. 9 Belfran Road, Kowloon
into residences and Nos. 123, 125 and 127 Tung Choi Street,

Kowloon into a hotel are progressing satisfactorily.
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RHEAPLHEHNREE (ZFEREHR
T 1) o DA R R 2012/134F 8 o 4 L35 38 16 H Y 3%
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BUSINESS REVIEW (continued)

Disposal

During 2012/13, from the Major Disposal and the disposal of
another investment property at Garden Suit No. 37B of House
37 and Car Parking Space No. 78 on Platform A of Forest
Hill, No. 31 Lo Fai Road, Tai Po, New Territories, the Group
realised a total net gain on disposal of investment properties of
HK$141,161,000 and a total net cash inflow (after deduction
of loan repayment and respective transaction cost) of
approximately HK$266 million. This provided the Group with
sufficient resources to consider new investment opportunities
in property investment and property development business

that offer a better and more attractive return.

Acquisition

As set out in note 38 to the financial statements, the Group
entered into a share transfer agreement with Mr. NGAI
Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Flower Ocean Limited and its subsidiary
(collectively the “Flower Ocean Group”) and the loan due
and owning by the Flower Ocean Group to Mr. NGAI, for
a total consideration of approximately HK$299 million
(the “Acquisition”) on 19 March 2013. Completion of the
Acquisition took place on 22 May 2013. The Group intends
to redevelop the property held by the Flower Ocean Group at
No. 28 Lugard Road, The Peak into residential houses for sale

or for rental purpose.

PROSPECTS

The continuing weak US economy and sovereign debt
crisis in Europe suggest that global economics continued
to stall. As an open economy, business activities in Hong
Kong were inevitably hindered. Amidst such an adverse
global environment, the HKSAR Government increasing
expenditure on infrastructure projects, accelerated programmes
on public housing development and proposed to develop the
North East New Territories New Development Areas that
the Directors believe the outlook of the construction and
engineering industry looks promising in the near to medium

future.

05 M (%)

B
R2012/134FEEN » R EEHEFHEHE S —
A% 7% 37 5RO I R B 3 1 BR AR E LD HE3 7SR BAE B
B R AFBISHRIHE A B E W RN G &
£ M AL BB RE 141,161,00085C » YL R AEE &
AR e 0 8 Bk A M P 38 5 AR AR ) 54
2.66MRWIE - E AL EREE Y RAEW > DL
TR A OB R B AR > DUk
B A S E A 5] ) [l o

B

0B B R B BR8P AR » AR R SRS
A JuH BB A (T35 4 1) B Flower
Ocean Limited B H Bt B 2 W] (%8 %% % [ Flower
Oceanff [ 1) Z 2 & B A HE 25 K Flower Oceansf
AR R T B e A 2 Ak o A B AR 402,99
W ([ 3% WO S5 IE 1) 5T 37 I 47 Tt 1 s o % WO
FHEOR -F-Z4FAA T HEH - REM
5t B @ Flower Ocean®f [ Fr ¥ H > ALIE 11 TH ) 75
B8R MERETHRE > FN G R -
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PROSPECTS (continued)

The Hong Kong property market remains buoyant and the
property prices continue to surge in recent years. Although
the HKSAR Government has introduced a number of cooling
measures to combat against the rising in property prices since
November 2010, its impact on the property price is mild and
the Directors are still optimistic about the medium to long
term prospect of Hong Kong’s property market. As a result, the
Group will actively move ahead in the property development
business and will seize suitable and valuable investment or
development opportunities. Leveraging our core construction
expertise, we believe that further development in the
property development business will overtime bring substantial
enhancement to the Company’s financial performance.

Upon the final completion of the hotel development at Nos.
123, 125 and 127 Tung Choi Street, Kowloon in the year
2013, the completion of residential developments at Nos.
92A-E Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong and No. 9 Belfran Road,
Kowloon in the year 2014 and 2015, respectively, together
with the potential redevelopments at No. 1 Wood Road,
Wanchai and at No. 28 Lugard Road, The Peak, the Group
looks forward to receiving remarkable income from the

property development business.

In respect of the possible spin-off of part of the business
within the Group as mentioned in the announcement
of the Company dated 15 February 2012 (the “Possible
Spin-off”), details of which is yet to be finalized. Further
announcement(s) in relation to the Possible Spin-off will be
made by the Company as and when necessary in compliance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Looking forward, the management will keep up efforts to grasp
new investment opportunities and bid for more contracts to
sustain the Group’s profitability and to enhance shareholders’

return.
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TRIBUTE TO THE LATE NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

Ahead of detailing our latest financial performance,
[ commemorate the loss of Mr. SHEK Yu Ming Joseph (“Mr.
SHEK?), former Non-Executive Director of the Company, as
well as one of the founders of the Group, having passed away
on 28 October 2012 due to illness. Mr. SHEK dedicated his
life to the establishment and development of the Group and
making invaluable contributions over the years. Certainly,
his work ethic and spirit will remain guiding principles of
the Group, and the Board would like to express its sincere
gratitude to Mr. SHEK.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to extend our gratitude
and sincere appreciation to all management and staff members
of the Group for their hard work and dedication and all
shareholders of the Company for their support.

On behalf of the Board of

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2013
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
ISR

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP
AT 31 MARCH 2013
AEHMBEHZWRER-F-ZF=A=1—H

Address

3 hi:

I.  Properties in Hong Kong
REEZYE

1. Shop Nos. 5 and 6 and Storeroom 3,
1st Floor, Fou Wah Centre, No. 210 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
B L 21058 & bl
1S B 655% fifi T 395 e i ==

2. No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong
A JURE S B AT ZHE 1555

3. No. 157 Waterloo Road, Kowloon Tong, Hong Kong
BWIUHEIE AT B 1579%

4. Flat E, 17th Floor, Tower 2, The Greenwood (Phase 1),
Laguna Verde, No. 8 Laguna Verde Avenue,
Hung Hom, Kowloon
JU e AL 6 3% 3 8 5% ¥t 4 3 [
RRBEUT (S5 10]) 36281 THIE S

5. Unit B including carport(s) and garden, Riverain Bayside,
No. 3985 Tai Po Road Yuen Chau Tsai,
Tai Po, New Territories #
TR R 2 1% 50 A BE39.85 5% 1 YA JE B L AL
L A % AE Bl

6. 3987 Tai Po Road Yuen Chau Tsai,

Tai Po, New Territories

WS Rl 2 % 0 YN AF BE398THE

7.  Car Parking Space Nos. 54 and 56 on Ground Floor,
Oxford Court, Nos. 24-26 Braemar Hill Road,
North Point, Hong Kong
A v b A TG 107 24- 269 WU T 5455%
Be56 %% 11 5 r

Use

s

Shops

[GEi

Office
/A
Residential

B

Residential

B

Residential
=

Car park
iH HLAL

# The property has been subsequently disposed of through the Acquisition.

= BRI HOE AR R MO R E s o

Tenure

e

Medium term
lease

AL A

Medium term
lease

I AY

Medium term
lease

IR

Medium term
lease

LAY

Medium term
lease

IR A

Medium term
lease

I AY

Long lease

R

Percentage held

by the Group
= LK)
Tl

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%
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' ‘ ' VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

BB OB OB A W

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

ISR

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (continued)
AT 31 MARCH 2013
AEMPEHZWRER-F-ZFEA =11 (B

11,

# OH % %

Address Use
ik Jiip7
Properties in the People’s Republic of China

bR R R 2

Block M-K39, Sunshine Holiday Villas, Residential
Yingchengzi Village, Badaling Town, Yangqging Country, =2

Beijing, People’s Republic of China #
o 3 N\ R G A 5 b e A B R
J\E SR BB WA 6 IR B BEM-K 39 B

The real estate title certificate has yet to be obtained.
34 5 B 5 % o
The property has been subsequently disposed of through the Acquisition.

0 ST A TR R R O S P R

. Properties Held for Development in Hong Kong

REEFAEERZYE

Front Portions on G/F to 7/F, and Roof of Residential
No. 1 Wood Road; HE
Rear Portions on G/F to 4/F, 7/F and Roof of

No. 1 Wood Road;

Front Portions on 1/F to 5/F, and 7/F including the Roof of

No. 1A, Wood Road; and

Rear Portions on 1/F to 7/F including the Roof of

No. 1A, Wood Road, Hong Kong
BEBEAHEEINI R TEMERE

WEBIGER PR T 24 > RIBRKRE 5

T IHRARTPE A B R THE R & 5

B IRARBE M BT RS
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Percentage held

Tenure by the Group

AL A

B "ok

N/A* 100%
L

Long lease 100%
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BB OB O OB A W

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES

ISR

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (continued)

AT 31 MARCH 2013

AREMFHZWER-F-ZFZA=1—H (D)

Address

Hb hi:

IV. Properties Under Development in Hong Kong

REEZBER PR

1. Nos. 123, 125 and 127 Tung Choi Street,

Mongkok, Kowloon,

Use Tenure
m& £
Hotel Long lease
i R A

(The Remaining Portion of Kowloon Inland Lot Nos.

1702, 1703 and 1704)
Site area:
Gross floor area:

Stage of development:

Expected completion date:

249.81 square meter
2,252.26 square meter
Concrete superstructure
completed and interior
finishing underway

2013

JUBEIE A 37123 - 12512798
(JUBE N HBBE S5 1702 ~ 1703 )2 170455 i BE)

Mo A8 T A
A A A
IR B

HERHR LAY

2. Nos. 92A-E, Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong

(Inland Lot No. 7551)
Site area:
Gross floor area:

Stage of development:

Expected completion date:
W W R IRIEI2AEI2E
(A BESRT75515%)

by B T B -

A8 A8 T A

BRI B ¢

FHEHR THM

249.81°F J5 Kk
2,252.26FJ5 %k
BRI ol o3 )
IEHEAT R A4S
R =4
Residential Medium term
lease
1,393.53 square meter i GRUE k]

2,000.58 square meter
Plans approved by Buildings
Department and site
formation underway

2014

1,393.53°FJi %
2,000.58F J5 %
B9 % Tt R A
1F AT M R S B TR
R4

Percentage held
by the Group
7 4R Ry A
Tl

100%

100%
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N VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
vﬁfﬁt‘él&ﬁm’&ﬁl
SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES
ISR

PROPERTIES HELD BY THE GROUP (continued)
AT 31 MARCH 2013
AEMPEHZWRER-F-ZFEA =11 (B

Address Use
ik &
IV. Properties Under Development in Hong Kong (continued)
RAEEZERE Y (B)
3. No. 9 Belfran Road, Ho Man Tin, Kowloon Residential
(Section C of Kowloon Inland Lot No. 3281)
Site area: 368.28 square meter s
Gross floor area: 1,462.35 square meter
Stage of development: Land lease modification approved;
foundation work in progess
Expected completion date: 2015
JUBE AT SCH B 2R E 9%
(JUBE P L B 38328 155 CHB43)
B T BT 368.28°F J5 %
AL Th T 1,462.35FJ5 %
BIRPEE LR Z AR OB
Mo Bk TARUEAT
AR T HMY - —R LA
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Tenure

=

Long term

lease

Percentage held
by the Group
7 4R Ry A
Tl

100%
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BB OB O OB A W

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

R T B RIBER

At 31 March 2013, the gross and outstanding values of WRI-F—=Z4F=ZH=+—H » REHZTERKFH
the Group’s substantial contracts on hand amounted to & #1488 H K R 58 B & A M 4 1 49 % 11134489
approximately HK$11,134 million and HK$7,712 million, JEX77.12&¥%C - WS E R FHGHZFME R

respectively. Details of these substantial contracts are set out  #FJUWF :

below:

Projects

XH

Building Construction

S

Clubhouse Fitting Out Works for the Proposed Residential Development at TKOTL No. 70,
Area 86 Site E (Package Three), Tseung Kwan O

1% 48 R E M i 2 8 6 [ i BE WL T M B SR 70 M B kR S B R IE H
CGE=FR) 2 ghfe i

Design and Construction of Tin Shui Wai Hospital, Phase 1 (note)
B El A B oK B B e ()

Design and Construction of Redevelopment of Tai Lam Centre for Women

Bt B B AL S B

Supply & Installation of Primary Structure and Provision of Attendance for Construction

of Guan Yin Statue, Tsz Shan Monastery Development at Ting Kok, Tai Po
TR RIETT 4 0 78 1L <7 B8 it ) e 0 L A5 B M 2 e T Al e S 4R B T i

Main Contract for the Proposed Redevelopment of St. Paul’s Co-educational College (Phase 2)
PR AR S A vp B ok ) AR (58 )

Carcass Work Contract for Proposed Property Development at TW7, Tsuen Wan West Station,
Tsuen Wan Town Lot No. 403, N.T.
VG Sk v L A SR BRI H (T H Be4035%)

Construction of Public Rental Housing Development at Tung Tau Cottage Area East

RS B i ST 8 o 36 A 4 5 2 R e ) A 5 TR

Main Building Works for Redevelopment of Caritas Medical Centre, Phase 2
Wi R Re s I A 2 R A TR

Contract value
4 & U

HK$ million

B & #or

123

1,454

823

52

177

1,605

384

1,170

Note: Project with a contract sum of HK$2,968m million being undertaken by  z¢ : py 3 ¥ — 22 R I %% (— b J9F o 90 ol [ B ) 7k e > 0
Leighton—-Able Joint Venture, an unincorporated body in which 49% H > G #144629 685 H 0 » A 45 B 7t 0 — 213

interest is attributable to the Group. 16 4% A8 49 % Ml 25 o

Annual Report 2012/13 FE & &




' ‘ ' VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

BB OB OB A W

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

R T B RIBER

Projects

X H

Building Maintenance

B IR %

Term Contract for the Design and Construction of Minor Works to Government
and Subvented Properties for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible
(Contract Area: Kowloon and Outlying Islands (Sai Kung))

eEt R A B A H M - L R EZ N TREN A A
(FREH I : JudE Be ik bl (VE D))

Term Contract for the Design and Construction of Minor Works to Government
and Subvented Properties for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible
(Contract Area: New Territories and Outlying Islands (North))

ARt MR LR A E T - DR EZ N TR EMNEL
(8 Hu s < B A Ko &5 (b))

Term Contracts for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings
and Lands and other Properties for which the Architectural Services Department
(Property Services Branch) is responsible for the Government of the HKSAR
(Designated Contract Area: Kowloon City, Sai Kung and Outlying Islands (Sai Kung))
W~ - R RS (MR EHE) A EZET - L R A
(FRE i : JuBER - Vs Sk (VHE))

Term Contracts for the Alterations, Additions, Maintenance and Repair of Buildings
and Lands and other Properties for which the ASD (Property Services Branch)
is responsible for the Government of the HKSAR
(Designated Contract Area: Wong Tai Sin and Shatin)

o s - RAER B REE (WEREE) A EIMT - L Ry %
ZEMEH GREME : RN BEWH)

Term Contract for the Design and Construction of Minor Works for Provision of
Barrier-Free Access and Facilities to Government Premises Managed by Leisure and
Cultural Services Department for which the Architectural Services Department is
Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong Island, Lantau Island and
Outlying Islands (South), Wong Tai Sin, Shatin, Kowloon City, Sai Kung and
Outlying Islands (Sai Kung))

A B B g S £ T 0P o R 4 N S A P BUR 35 b 2 R B
B2 AN TR E W A (BR g Ll : U~ R R S () ~ 3R~
WH -~ LR E RS (HE))
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Contract value

o 8 EE

HKS$ million

F # 7 7T

293

318

221

221

309
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' ‘ ' VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

R T B RIBER

Projects

X H

Building Maintenance (Continued)

B R 2% ()

Term Contract for the Design and Construction of Minor Works for Provision
of Barrier-Free Access and Facilities to Government Premises Managed by Leisure
and Cultural Services Department for which the Architectural Services Department
is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Sham Shui Po, Tsuen Wan, Kwai Tsing,
Kwun Tong, Mongkok, Yaumatei, Tsim Sha Tsui, Tai Po, North District,
Outlying Islands (North), Tuen Mun and Yuen Long)

WAt S L g S8 £ N Pl R 4R T AL S B A B BU I 2 R N 5 0 0
Atz ANE AR GE A A (HRSE M I« OKBS ~ 250 - 3855 - BUE - EA - DR -
RVPWE ~ K~ duli ~ #EE (db) ~ B K ICH)

Term Contract for the Design and Construction of Minor Works for Provision of

Barrier-Free Access and Facilities to Government Premises Managed by

Government Departments other than Leisure and Cultural Services Department

for which the Architectural Services Department is Responsible

(Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong Island, Lantau Island and Outlying Islands (South))
At R B R E A H W RS R EHE B E BN G2

e 32 T 0 7 % i 2 AN AR E A A (BRE I AR~ R Sk R (R))

Minor Works Term Contract to Buildings and Lands and Other Properties

for which the Architectural Services Departments Responsible in Hong Kong

BEREARIMT - LRI bR MR TR Z W &5

Term Contract for the Design and Construction for Alterations,

Additions and Improvement Works for Hospitals

Beat S B R I ~ R E R E A

Contract value
& A

HKS$ million

H #ET

257

335

178

223
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BB OB OB A W

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

R T B RIBER

Projects

X H

Road and Drainage Works, Waterworks and Slope Works
YRS NN S BN Y AN

Provision of External Construction Works and Outside Plant Maintenance Services

for Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited

T 7 8 SR LA PR W S8 P A s e A AR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1 — Remaining Mains
on Hong Kong Island

B R AE B A R B S4B BEAS L — R AR T R TRAXN

Reprovision of Sea Water Cooling Pipes for Elements

#1753 TG ¥ 7K 42 4048 3B T RR

Replacement and Rehabiliation of Water Mains, Stage 4, Phase 1 — Major Mains in

Eastern New Territories

B Je A R K A R SR 4R BEAR U] — BT R R R EOK A TG X

I.L. 9018(H15) Lee Tung Street/McGregor Street, Wanchai, Hong Kong — Road Works
AW AT R SR A28 h BRALL. 9018(H15) b B B > 38 I ik 3% 172

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains in Wanchai District

B R AE AR A Tl SRS R B — AT IR A AR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains Stage 3 — Mains in Hong Kong Island East

B4 B A KA Rl ) SR 3 T Be — v s ROK A TR

Provision of External Cable Construction Works and Outside Telecommunication

Plant Maintenance Services for Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited

Th A 8 SR A R ) 32 B 5 A 5 AR e e B A 1 PR

Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4 Phase 1

— Mains in West Kowloon, Kwai Tsing and Tsuen Wan

B R AE AR A Sl SR 4R BESE 1Y) — JUBE VY ~ 25T R AEEOKA TR
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Contract value
& A

HKS$ million

H #ET

70

467

130

345

12

348

362

70%*

616



VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS ON HAND

K T BT SRR

Projects

5H

Civil Engineering and Utilities Works
BV NIy, Ty W

Civil Engineering Works Term Contract No. CWT E31 for
Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited

AW A PR A R R TR A A AR SECWT E31

Provision of Integrated Field Work for Field Services of Telephone and Broadband
Installation (Phase II) for Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
— Wanchai and Southern District

Ih) 75 v TR AR A A W] SR B AR A A A B R X P R~ RO R B
(58 =38 — ¥ 47 e vt I

Provision of Integrated Field Work for Field Services of Telephone and Broadband
Installation (Phase II) for Hong Kong Telecommunications (HKT) Limited
— Kowloon West District

1h) 7 5 R AR B A ) SR A A AR Bl R P RS~ RO R IS
(58 = H8) — JuRE v [

Provision of Works for Integrated Blockwiring Infrastructure

1e A 8 S LA PR 2 ) 08 B A A T A A A e R R

*  Due to the nature of contracts, contract values are estimated and stated for reference only.

ORERERIREE > &R A B2 H S -

Outstanding Contract Value — by project category
A58 A & R — %I E 5 8
By project category

I H

19%

Contract value
1 &9 U

HK$ million

B & #or

60%*

2%

75%

30%

Road, Drainage, Waterworks and Slope

B MR TR ~ KB TR R RB TAR
HK$1,472 million

1,472 0 &#s ot

Civil Engineering and Utilities Works
AFE LR TR Koy i A%

2%

L S

MR

54%

25%

HK$123 million
123 &t

Building Construction

HK$4,160 million
4,160 # T

Building Maintenance

HK$1,957 million
1,957H B0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
e TR )i

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Contract Works

The Group’s contract works segment has recorded a turnover
of HK$3,454,844,000 for 2012/13, increased by 17.6% from
HK$2,936,582,000 for 2011/12. Facing inflation pressure
under the prolonged ultra-low interest rate environment, the
Group’s managed to maintain a stable profit margin which
only recorded a slight decrease from 5.4% for 2011/12 to 5.2%
for 2012/13. The overall segment profit from contract works
business increased by 14.1% to HK$181,376,000 for 2012/13
from HK$158,943,000 for 2011/12.

Our construction and engineering works are principally carried
out by the Company’s major subsidiaries, Able Engineering
Company Limited (“Able Eng”), Able Building Constructions
Limited (“Able Building”) and Excel Engineering Company
Limited (“Excel Eng”).

Able Engineering Company Limited
Significant contracts completed by Able Eng during 2012/13

included:

e Term Contract for the Alterations, Additions,
Maintenance and Repair of Aided Schools, Buildings
and Lands and Other Properties for which the Education
Bureau is Responsible (Designated Contract Area: New
Territories, Sham Shui Po and Sai Kung);

e Term Contract for the Design and Construction of
Minor Works to Government and Subvented Properties
for which the Architectural Services Department is
Responsible (Designated Contract Area: Hong Kong
Island, Lantau Island and Outlying Islands (South));

e Term Contract for the Maintenance of Slopes for which
the Architectural Services Department (Property Services
Branch) is Responsible for the Government of the
HKSAR (Designated Area: Kowloon and Lantau Island);

e Design and Construction of North Lantau Hospital, Phase
1 (note);

Annual Report 2012/13 FE & &

645 Ml

FHITRH

K 2 A A TR 4 B 2012/ 134F B 8% 5
3,454,844,000% 7T 2 & FEH > B2011/124E JE 2
2,936,582,000% 7t I F+17.6% ° 4R 17 » T % 5 4
KB BRIETZ @B > A ) R Fe 18 e
HIBA R s BARE2011/124EEZ54% F B2
2012/134EE25.2%  2012/134EE A H TR Z %
23 EB R £ 181,376,00085 06 » #2011/124E 2
158,943,000# 76 £ F+14.1% °

A A L 1 e e TR 0 R A W 2 R
AIZRTREARAR (LRI - RREES
MRAR ([RARERE]) Rthm TRARAR (T
TR ) AT -

LIRTEHRAA
H2012/134F B » RAR TREERZ B R A A :

o WE - - RELGEREFRAKZIEY
BT R R EZ AR
(FE M 2 BT~ GRS R H) 3

o B REEEERAEIMT - LRI
WZ AR TR E G4 (T Ml : &
By~ RBL R/ 3

o HERWEFHE) AHEIMWMREZE
Wi A (B8 Hu s : JUBE S KL ) 5

o BrHh S BLEE ORI L e S — W (i)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

e TR )i

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Contract Works (continued)

e  Construction of a Secondary Boundary Fence and New
Section of Primary Boundary Fence and Boundary Patrol
Road from Lok Ma Chau Control Point to Ng Tung
River;

e Construction of a Special School for the Physically
Disabled in Area 16, Tuen Mun;

e  Construction of an Integrated Teaching Building, CUHK;

e Construction of Columbarium and Garden of
Remembrance at Kiu Tau Road, Wo Hop Shek, Fanling,
New Territories; and

e Hospital Authority Term Contract for Minor Works 2011
for Kowloon East and Kowloon Central Clusters.

Note: Project with a contract sum of HK$1,700 million was undertaken by
Leighton — Able Joint Venture, an unincorporated body in which 49%
interest is attributable to the Group.

During 2012/13, Able Eng successfully secured a remarkable

number of substantial contracts.

Included in the new contracts obtained by Able in 2012/13 are
the following substantial building construction works with an

aggregate contract sum of HK$2,400 million:

e (Clubhouse Fitting Out Works for the Proposed
Residential Development at TKOTL No. 70, Area 86 Site
E (Package Three), Tseung Kwan O;

e Design and Construction of Tin Shui Wai Hospital
(note); and

e Design and Construction of Redevelopment of Tai Lam

Centre for Women.

Note: Project with a contract sum of HK$2,968m million being undertaken by
Leighton — Able Joint Venture, an unincorporated body in which 49%
interest is attributable to the Group.

K05 ol gt (78)
£ 8 TR (80

-

T 0 2 A A e 3 T A A A 28K T
(EH 7% 56 N A4S o ol S AR AR T ) 3 25 A%

T T P SR 1 0 B e — T 45 BB N R R B ARG 5
T H SO B L — B Ak BB R 5
TSR SRR £ SR AR K 5 A A

ARG FE TR &

B Be i BUR JURE SR R OURE I A N TR
EMEH(ZF——4) -

s PR — 22 ORI (— Il A ) AR O

H > S #ME17.000 W50 » A R EE - 2R
TG 5 A 49% HE 25

JA2012/134F B2 » ZAR TR B U35 W H i
KEH -

ZAR TR 2012/13FE AR B A A B T4
24,0008 0 2 TR G TR ¢

iy
35

714 4 RLE Ml [ 58 8 6 I i BE WL T M B BB 7058 19
EHREERREE CGEERER) 2 gmsE
T

ik wt B B R OK B e (i) 5 R

Beat S B R BH T

S PR — g DRIGH R (— Sl A ) R 2 O

H > #8129 6880 » A M 48 9H — % AR
Wk A 49% HE 25 ©
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
e TR )i

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Contract Works (continued)

Able Building Construction Limited

During 2012/13, Able Building successfully completed the
significant contract in relation to the building construction

of the New Campus Development of Harrow International

School.

Excel Engineering Company Limited
Substantial contracts completed by Excel Eng during 2012/13
included:

e Improvement to Hong Kong Central Mid-level and
High Level Areas Water Supply — Remaining Works,
Construction of Service Reservoirs, Pumping Stations
and Associated Main Laying; and

e Main Contract for Upgrading of Electricity Supply to Lok
Man Sun Chuen.

On the other hand, during 2012/13, Excel Eng was awarded
the following substantial contracts with an aggregate contract

value of approximately HK$1,012 million:

e Provision of External Construction Works and
Qutside Plant Maintenance Services for Hong Kong
Telecommunications (HKT) Limited;

e Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4
Phase 1 — Remaining Mains on Hong Kong Island;

e Reprovision of Sea Water Cooling Pipes for Elements;
and

e Replacement and Rehabilitation of Water Mains, Stage 4,
Phase 1 — Major Mains in Eastern New Territories.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
e TR )i

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Property Investment and Development

Our investment properties were valued at an aggregate value
of $419,600,000 as of 31 March 2013 (2012: HK$953,520,000)
by an independent professional valuer. The significant
decrease in the Group’s investment properties portfolio
in 2012/13 was mainly due to the disposal of the Group’s
investment properties in relation to the shop units in
Argyle Centre, which completion took place on 28 February
2013 (the “Major Disposal”), and the change of intention
in developing the Belfran Road project from a long term

investment to sale in 2012/13.

As a result of the annual revaluation, we posted an
aggregate gain of HK$38,080,000 for 2012/13 (2011/12:
HK$90,581,000) on changes in fair value of investment
properties.

Meanwhile, property investment business continued to
provide stable and recurring revenue to the Group. The
Group’s rental income arose mainly from the leasing of retail
shops. During 2012/13, the Group recorded a gross rental
income of approximately HK$21,809,000 from its investment
properties, representing a 4.6% increase from HK$20,859,000
for 2011/12. The increase in rental income comprised
primarily the renewal of tenancy contracts for the investment
properties at Fu Wah Centre, No. 210 Castle Peak Road,
Tsuen Wan and at Argyle Centre, Phase I, Mongkok.

During 2012/13, from the Major Disposal and the disposal
of another investment property at Garden Suit No. 37B of
House 37 and Car Parking Space No. 78 on Platform A of
Forest Hill, No. 31 Lo Fai Road, Tai Po, New Territories,
the Group realised a total net gain on disposal of investment
properties of HK$141,161,000 and a total net cash inflow
(after deduction of loan repayment and respective transaction

cost) of approximately HK$266 million.

05 M (%)

MEBE RER

MR-B-EZ2F=ZH=1—H REBZREWE
A0 S B S A E B AT A > 86 %2419,600,000% 7T
(ZB—4F £ 953,520,000970) o ACSE I A4
WEMAAR2012/13EEHE TR EEEHD
AR R — =T H =)\ H s8R 8 A
RHEAPLHEHNREE (ZFEREHR
T 1) o DA R R 2012/134F 8 o 4 L35 38 16 H Y 3%
REN > HRBEXARUMEREM -

AR AL R > ARG 2012/134E B BR 154 B 4%
B Wy 3 - 1 B = W28 A 3538,080,000% J6
(2011/124F B : 90,581,000% JC)

T PR R AR AR AR R
WA « REMZHMERATZTERE HHEE
PIfl o R2012/134F 1 » ARG ME S 2k A BB W 3
B L4 e A %521,809,00098 7G> #8201 1/124F Ji HY
20,859,000k JC 34 n4.6% o F 4 e A LT+ 22k
I A 4 A 55 8 T L X2 1098 B 2 bl B AR
A s — S0 19 v S 1 L 6 R o

W2012/134EREN > g BB EREE LN E S —
L7 97 5 K B 8 R I 3 1% AR BE L T3 73R BAE R &
B RAF ISR A MR E W RN G &
S8 LB 35 141,161,0009 70 > DA R BAE1 4
LA TR I 08 28 B K A M P 38 5 AR AR ) %4
2.66fE WL -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
e TR )i

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Property Investment and Development (continued)

The projects for the redevelopment of the sites at Nos. 92A-E
Pokfulam Road, Hong Kong and No. 9 Belfran Road, Kowloon
into residences and Nos. 123, 125 and 127 Tung Choi Street,

Kowloon into a hotel are progressing satisfactorily.

Acquisition

The Group entered into a share transfer agreement with
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) for the acquisition
of the entire equity interest in Flower Ocean Limited and
its subsidiary (collectively the “Flower Ocean Group”) and
the loan due and owning by the Flower Ocean Group to Mr.
NGALI, for a total consideration of approximately HK$299
million (the “Acquisition”) on 19 March 2013. Completion
of the Acquisition took place on 22 May 2013. The Group
intends to redevelop the property held by the Flower Ocean
Group at No. 28 Lugard Road, The Peak into residential
houses for sale or for rental purpose. Further details of the
Acquisition has been set out in the Company’s circular dated
26 April 2013 and note 38 to the financial statement.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
amounted to HK$365,705,000, representing an increase by
1.8% from 2012 of HK$359,326,000 (excluding pledged
deposits of HK$1,075,000).

As a result of the cash inflows from the Major Disposal, the
Group has noted improvements in the liquidity position.
Current ratio stood at 1.35 at 31 March 2013, while that as
at 31 March 2012 is 1.02. Current ratio is measured as total
current assets divided by total current liabilities.

Our banking facilities, comprising primarily bank
loans, overdrafts and performance bond, amounted to
HK$1,516,129,000 as of 31 March 2013 (31 March 2012:
HK$1,626,709,000), of which HK$762,580,000 (31 March
2012: HK$677,754,000) was unutilised.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (continued)

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, the Group’s bank borrowings
were primarily denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
on a floating rate basis. Although the Group’s total bank
borrowings amounted to only HK$667,718,000 as at 31 March
2013, decreased by 24.5% from HK$884,637,000 as of 31
March 2012, the decrease only occurred in March 2013 due to
the early repayment of mortgage loan and other loans payable
upon the completion of the Major Disposal. As a result,
interest paid and payable (before capitalisation) increased by
72.4% to HK$18,509,000 for 2012/13 from HK$10,736,000
for 2011/12. Interest of HK$7,195,000 for 2012/13 (2011/12:
HK$3,340,000) was capitalised and included in the carrying
amount of properties under development and hotel under
construction at 31 March 2013. As a result, finance costs
were HK$11,314,000 for 2012/13, increased by 53.0% from
HK$7,396,000 for 2011/12.

The Group does not engage in any interest rates and currency
speculation activities. The Group’s bank accounts are operated
with principal bankers in Hong Kong. The interest rates
of these bank accounts are determined by reference to the
respective bank offer rate. The Group maintains sufficient
working capital resources to execute its contract works and
property development plans and generally takes a prudent
and cautious approach to cash application and its capital

commitments.

Charges on Assets

At 31 March 2013, the following assets of the Group were
pledged in favour of certain banks to secure the banking
facilities granted by those banks to the Group:

® investment properties with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$408,000,000 (2012: HK$943,000,000);

e Jand and buildings with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$111,659,000 (2012: HK$114,932,000);

e hotel under construction with a carrying amount of
HK$232,110,000 (2012: HK$174,839,000);

e properties held for development with a carrying amounts

of HK$250,000,000 (2012: HK$250,000,000);
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (continued)

Charges on Assets (continued)

e properties under development with an aggregate carrying
amount of HK$416,207,000 (2012: HK$42,223,000);

e properties held for sale with a carrying value of
HK$50,171,000 (2012: HK$43,165,000);

e time deposits of nil Hong Kong Dollars (2012:
HK$1,075,000); and

e the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits under

certain contract works with total accounts receivable

amounting to HK$277,830,000 (2012: HK$34,872,000).

Contingent liabilities
Details of the Group’s and the Company’s contingent

liabilities are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

Capital commitments
Details of the Group’s capital commitments are set out in note

35 to the financial statements.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 March 2013, the Group employed approximately 760
full-time employees (2012: 717) in Hong Kong. The Group
remunerates its employees based on their performance and
work experience and with reference to the prevailing market
conditions. Staff benefits include mandatory provident fund

and training programmes.

At the annual general meeting held on 7 September 2011,
the Company adopted a new share option scheme (“New
Scheme”) in replacement of its share option scheme which
was adopted on 5 August 2002 (“2002 Scheme”). The purposes
of the New Scheme are to provide incentives for the Group’s
employees and executives, to recognise their contributions
to the Group’s growth and to provide more flexibility for the
Group in formulating its remuneration policy. The Group had
granted options under the 2002 Scheme before 7 September
2011, but has not granted any options under the New Scheme
up to 31 March 2013. The Company had no outstanding share
options at 31 March 2013.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”), aged 50, is the
Chairman of the Company. Mr. NGAI has extensive
experience in the construction industry. He is responsible
for the management of the Board and the strategic planning
of the Group. Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU Kwok Fai, Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, are
brothers-in-law.

Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”), aged 47, is the Deputy
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Mr.
YAU graduated with First Class Honours Degree in Civil
Engineering from the Hong Kong Polytechnic and obtained a
Master of Science Degree with Distinction in Structural Steel
Design from the University of London and a Diploma of the
Imperial College of the United Kingdom. He is a Chartered
Engineer and a corporate member of the Institution of Civil
Engineers, the Institution of Structural Engineers and the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil & Structural) and a Registered Structural
Engineer. Mr. YAU is responsible for formulating policy,
overall development and the day-to-day management and
administration of the Group’s operations. Mr. YAU and Mr.
NGALI, Chairman of the Company, are brothers-in-law.

Mr. LI Chi Pong (“Mr. LI”), aged 56, is an Executive
Director of the Company. Mr. LI is the Managing Director
of Excel Engineering Company Limited and is responsible for
its overall management and operation. He graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic with a Higher Diploma in Civil
Engineering in 1979. He has worked in the construction
industry for 30 years and gained extensive experience in
the executive role in construction companies. He is the
Authorized Signatory for foundation, site formation works and
general building contractor of the Buildings Department. Mr.
LI is a member of the Contractors Registration Committee

Panel.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Professor KO Jan Ming (“Professor KO”), aged 70, is
an Independent Nonexecutive Director of the Company.
Professor Ko is the former Vice President and Chair Professor
of Structural Engineering of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University, and currently an Emeritus Professor of the
University and Senior Advisor of its Faculty of Construction
and Environment. Professor KO holds a Bachelor Degree
in Civil Engineering and a Doctorate Degree in Structural
Engineering from the University of Hong Kong. He is a Fellow
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, the Institution
of Structural Engineers of United Kingdom, the American
Society of Civil Engineers and the Hong Kong Academy of
Engineering Sciences.

Professor KO was Chairman of the Accreditation Board
(2001-2006) of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers
(HKIE), and the Chairman of Hong Kong Economic
Cooperation (APEC) and Engineering Mobility Forum (EMF)
Monitoring Committees (2006-2009). He is a Member of
Construction Industry Council (2007-2013), a Member of
the Commission on Strategic Development (2009-2012) and
the Advisor of the Beijing-Hong Kong Academic Exchange
Centre. He was a Governing Council Member of Construction
Industry Institute (Hong Kong) (2002-2008), a Council
Member of The Hong Kong Institution of Science (2002-
2006), the President of The Hong Kong Society of Theoretical
and Applied Mechanics (1999/2000), the President of The
Hong Kong Association for the Advancement of Science and
Technology (2000/01) and a Panel Member of the Appeal
Tribunal in Buildings of the HKSAR (1997-2004).

Professor KO is the Co-chair of the Scientific Steering
Committee, State Key Laboratory on Structural Dynamics in
Bridge Engineering, Chongqging Communications Research
and Design Institute (2008-2012), and a Member of the
Scientific Steering Committee, State Key Laboratory on
Disaster Reduction in Civil Engineering, Tongji University

(2009-2013).
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Professor KO (continued)

Professor KO is the Editor-in-Chief of an International
Journal — Advances in Structural Engineering (1997-2003),
Editor-in-Chief (Asia-Pacific), International Journal — Smart
Structures and Systems, the Senior Consultant of the Editorial
Board of the Journal of Spatial Structures, a member of the
Editorial Boards of the Journal of Engineering Mechanics,
Journal of Earthquake and Engineering Vibration and Journal
of Hazards Prevention and Mitigation Engineering. He is the
President of Asian-Pacific Network of Centres for Earthquake
Engineering (2005-2007), a Vice President (2004-2007) and
Council Member of the International Society for Structural
Health Monitoring of Intelligent Infrastructures (ISHMII)
(2004-2011), and a Management Board Member of the Asian-
Pacific Network of Centres for Research in Smart Structures
Technology.

Professor KO was presented The President’s Award of HKIE
in 2006 and was inducted into the Hall of Fame of HKIE in
2010. He was presented The HKIE Gold Medal in 2011. In the
same year, Professor Ko was presented The Aftab Mufti Medal
by ISHMII in recognition of his lifetime achievement in civil

structural health monitoring.

Professor KO has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years; nor does he have
any other relationship with any of the Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the

Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, (“The Hon. IP”)
aged 62, is an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. The Hon. IP is a member of the Legislative Council
representing the District Council (The First) functional
constituency. He is presently a Deputy to the 12th National
People’s Congress of PRC for HKSAR, Chairman of Panel
on Security, Legislative Council, Advisor and Convenor,
Legislative Council Caucus, to the Democratic Alliance for
Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong, Member of Central
& Western District Council (Kwun Lung). He is also Deputy
Chairman of Hon Wah Educational Organisation. He also
serves on a number of committees and is now a member of
the Hong Kong Housing Authority and the Non-Executive
Director of Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
Board. The Hon. IP has been a member of the Legislative
Council between 1995-1997, a member of the Provisional
Legislative Council between 1997-1998, a member of the
Legislative Council of the Hong Kong SAR Government
representing the district council functional constituency
between 2000-2004 and between 2008-2012, and an elected
member of the Central and Western District Council between
1992-2003 and between 2007-2011. The Hon. IP has also
been appointed as Non-executive Director of Urban Renewal
Authority Board between 2007-2012.

The Hon. IP has not held any directorship in other listed
public companies in the last three years; nor does he have
any other relationship with any of the Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(continued)

Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene (“Mr. FUNG”), aged 64, is
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company. Mr.
FUNG is a Certified Public Accountant, a fellow member of
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
member of both The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England & Wales and The Certified General Accountants’
Association of Canada. He holds a Master of Arts Degree
from Antioch University of USA. Presently, Mr. FUNG is a
director of Pan-China (HK) CPA Limited (formerly known as
NCN CPA Limited) as well as practicing as a sole proprietor
in the name of P. C. Fung & Company, Certified Public
Accountants. Previously, he served in senior and managerial
positions in large local and international accounting firms.
In addition, Mr. FUNG is currently an Honorary Adviser
of The Hong Kong Chinese Importers’ & Exporters’
Association, a Standing Committee member of Democratic
Alliance for the Betterment and Progress of Hong Kong and
a Standing Committee member of the Jiangxi Provincial
Overseas Liaison Association. Mr. FUNG is also appointed a
member of the Financial Reporting Review Panel, under the
Financial Reporting Council and a member of the IRD Users

Committee.

In addition to being a director of the Company, Mr. FUNG
also holds directorship with other public companies whose
shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited in the last three years: (i) Mr. FUNG was an
independent non-executive director of C Y Foundation Group
Limited (stock code: 1182) during the period from 1 February
2010 to 6 April 2011; and (ii), Mr. FUNG has been an
independent non-executive director of China Liansu Group
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2128) during the period from
27 February 2010 to present.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. POON Yan Min, aged 51, is a Director of Excel
Engineering Company Limited, a major subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. POON Yan Min holds a Bachelor Degree in
Civil Engineering from the University of Hong Kong and
a Master Degree in Engineering Management from City
University of Hong Kong. He is a corporate member of
the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and a Registered
Professional Engineer (Civil). He has over 26 years’
experience in the construction of road and drainage, site
formation, waterworks and building works including 10 years
working in Mass Transit Railway Corporation for tunnel and
railway works. Mr. POON Yan Min is responsible for the
Construction Department on implementation of works and
the overall management of contracts. He is the Authorized
Signatory for general building contractor of the Buildings
Department. He is also the Engineering Supervisor of the
HKIE Scheme A Training for Graduate Engineers.

Mr. YAM Kui Hung, aged 54, is a Director of Able
Engineering Company Limited, a major subsidiary of the
Company. Mr. YAM Kui Hung graduated with a Higher
Certificate in Building Studies from the Hong Kong
Polytechnic and a Postgraduate Diploma in Construction
Management from the Construction Industry Training
Authority. He is a corporate member of the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional Engineer
(Building) and has over 30 years’ experience in the
construction field. He is responsible for management and

operations of building projects.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. HO Chi Ming Wilson, aged 51, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. HO Chi Ming
Wilson holds a Bachelor Degree in Construction Management
and Economic from the Curtin University of Technology,
a National Diploma in Building Studies from the Business
& Technician Education Council and a Higher Certificate
in Building Studies and Proficiency Certificate in Industrial
Safety from the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is a corporate
member of the Chartered Institute of Building, has registered
as an Authorized Signatory from the Buildings Department
and has over 30 years’ experience in the project management
in the construction field and a wide background of working
experience in residential, commercial and institutional
developments. He is responsible for providing full range of
building project management and contract administration

works of contracts.

Mr. NG Kai Chow, aged 45, is the Project Manager of
Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. NG Kai Chow
holds a Post-graduated Diploma in Construction Law &
Arbitration and a Diploma in Construction (CEM) in the
College of Estate Management. He is an incorporate member
of the Chartered of Building, a member of the Chartered
Institute of Arbitrators and Authorized Signatory from
Buildings Department. He also has over 28 years’ experience
in construction field and working in different positions in
the construction industry. He is responsible for providing
full range of building project management and contract

administration works of contracts.

Mr. NG Wing Yuk Philip, aged 55, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. NG Wing Yuk
Philip graduated with Bachelor Degree in Administration from
the Newport University of United States of America and a
Diploma in Construction Management from the Hong Kong
Construction Industry Training Authority. He is a corporate
member of the Hong Kong Institution of Construction
Engineers and has over 33 years’ experience in the project
management in the construction field and a wide background
of working experience in residential, commercial and
institutional developments. He is responsible for providing

full range of building project management and contract

administration works of contracts.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. LAU Chi Fai Daniel, aged 45, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. LAU Chi Fai
Daniel holds a Bachelor Degree in Construction Management
from the South Bank University of United Kingdom and a
Higher Diploma in Building Technology and Management
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic. He is a corporate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers and
has over 20 years’ experience in construction field and
working in different positions in the construction industry.
He is responsible for providing full range of building project

management and contract administration works of contracts.

Mr. KAN Kwok Kit, aged 50, is the Technical Manager of
Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. KAN Kwok Kit
graduated with Master Degree of Science in Engineering
Business Management and is an Accredited Mediator. He is
a Registered Professional Engineer (Building Services) and
Corporate member of the Chartered Institute of Building. He
is also a BEAM Pro and Registered Energy Assessor. Besides,
he is a fellow member and Branch Honorary Secretary of the
Chartered Institute of Plumbing & Heating Engineering. He
has over 20 years’ experience in Construction Industry and
Building Services Engineering. Mr. KAN Kwok Kit is the
Head of the Technical Department and responsible to lead the
technical team to provide miscellaneous support for tendering,
project management and contract administration work. He
is also the Engineering Supervisor of the HKIE Scheme
A Training for Graduate Engineers in Building Services

Discipline.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. CHONG Yin Wai, aged 42, is the Project Manager of
Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. CHONG Yin Wai
holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil & Structural Engineering
and a Master Science Degree in Civil Engineering both from
the University of Hong Kong. He is a corporate member
of Institution of Civil Engineers, a corporate member of
Institution of Structural Engineers, a corporate member of the
Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a Registered Professional
Engineer (Civil & Structural) and a BEAM Professional.
He has over 20 years’ experience in the design, contract
administration, construction supervision of highway and civil
infrastructure projects as well as construction of the building
projects. He is responsible for the Civil and Structural
Department on the overall management of the site design
works and providing technical support to the projects. He is
also responsible for the Property Development Department
for the overall co-ordination and management of the property

development projects.

Mzr. LEE Kwok Shing Gavin, aged 40, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. LEE Kwok Shing
Gavin holds a Bachelor Degree in Building Management from
the Northumbria University of United Kingdom, a Higher
Diploma in Building Studies from the City University of Hong
Kong and a Diploma in Civil Engineering from Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong. He has over 19 years’
experience in construction field and working in different
positions in the construction industry. He is responsible for
providing full range of building project management and

contract administration works of contracts.

Mr. CHAN Tak Wai Ray, aged 50, is the Project Manager
of Able Engineering Company Limited. Mr. CHAN Tak Wai
Ray holds a Bachelor Degree in Construction Management
and Economic from the Curtin University of Technology,
a High Certificate in Building Studies from the Hong Kong
Technical College. He has over 31 years’ experience in
construction field and working in different positions in
the construction industry. He is responsible for providing
full range of building project management and contract

administration works of contracts.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Mr. TANG Quoc Tri Alex, aged 44, is the Contracts
Manager of Excel Engineering Company Limited. Mr. TANG
Quoc Tri Alex holds a Bachelor Degree in Civil Engineering
from South Bank University of United Kingdom, Master
Degree in Structural Engineering and Master Degree in
Construction Law & Dispute Resolution from the Hong
Kong Polytechnics University. He is a corporate member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, a corporate
member of the Institution of Civil Engineers and a Registered
Professional Engineer (Civil & Structural). He has over 19
years’ experience in construction field and working in different
positions in the construction industry. He is responsible for
providing full range of civil engineering project management
and contract administration works of contracts. He is the
Authorized Signatory for general building contractor of the
Buildings Department. He is also the Engineering Supervisor
of the HKIE Scheme A Training for Graduate Engineers.

Mr. WONG Kin Yan Hector, aged 43, is the Environmental
and Quality Manager of Excel Engineering Company Limited.
Mr. WONG Kin Yan Hector holds a Bachelor Degree in
Applied Science from Hong Kong Baptist University. He
is a Chartered Environmentalist and a corporate member
of the Society of Environmental Engineers. He has over
16 years’ experience in the environmental and quality
management in the construction field. He is responsible
for the implementation and maintenance of the Company’s
environmental and quality management systems. He is the
Management Representative of Excel’s ISO 9001 Quality
Management System and ISO 14001 Environmental
Management System.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continued)

Ms. TSANG Hau Lam, aged 32, is the Financial Controller
and Company Secretary of the Company. Ms. TSANG Hau
Lam is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants of the U.K. and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. She
joined the Group in August 2012 and has over 10 years’
auditing, accounting and related experience. She holds a
Bachelor Degree in Business Administration (Professional

Accountancy) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.

Mr. LIU Shiu Yuen, aged 33, is the Financial Controller
of Excel Engineering Company Limited. He has over 10
years’ accounting, auditing and related experience. Mr. LIU
Shiu Yuen obtained a Bachelor’s Degree of Arts (Hons) in
Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
He is a qualified accountant and a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr. WONG Kei Leung, aged 62, is the Accounting Manager
of the Group and the Chief Accountant of Able Engineering
Company Limited. He has over 35 years’ accounting
experience. Mr. WONG Kei Leung holds a Bachelor Degree in
Commercial Science and Business Administration from Chu

Hai College.
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Corporate governance is the system by which the Company
is directed and controlled. The Board of Directors of the
Company (the “Board”) is fully aware of its importance to the
shareholders and has developed a rigorous system of checks
and balances which allows management to respond to the
strategic directions approved by the Board. The Board believes
that a well balanced corporate governance system enables
the Company to achieve business excellence and fulfill the
Company’s mission.

This report describes the Company’s corporate governance
practices and structures that were in place during the financial
year ended 31 March 2013, with specific reference to the
principles and guidelines of the Corporate Governance Code
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”) issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange). In developing and
reviewing its corporate governance policies and practices, the
Company has sought to adopt a balanced approach.

COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company complied
with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules throughout year ended 31 March 2013, except for the
following.

Code Provision A.4.1

Under the Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to re-
election. However, Mr. SHEK Yu Ming Joseph (“Mr. SHEK”),
former Non-Executive Director of the Company, was not
appointed for a specific term. Mr. SHEK entered into a
continuous service contract with the Company in respect of
his service as a Non-Executive Director commencing from
1 January 2007 but Mr. SHEK is subject to the rotation
requirement in the Company’s bye-laws, accomplishing the
same purpose as being appointed for a specific term. As such,
the Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken
to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance practices
are no less exacting than those in the Code.

Mr. SHEK passed away on 28 October 2012 in Hong Kong due

to illness.
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COMPLIANCE WITH CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE (continued)

Code Provision A.6.7

Under the Code Provision A.6.7, independent non-executive
directors and other non-executive directors should attend
general meetings and develop a balanced understanding of
the views of shareholders. Mr. SHEK was unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 10 August
2012 due to his health conditions. However, at the respective
general meeting of the Company, all other board members,
including three Independent Non-Executive Directors,
were presented to enable the Board to develop a balanced

understanding of the views of the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Company, while
adopting the applicable code provisions in the CG Code, has
made enhancement in the Company’s corporate governance
environment by launching a formal whistleblowing policy,
“Whistleblowing Policy For Reporting Possible Improprieties
in Matters of Financial Reporting, Internal Control or Other
Matters”, and the adoption of the “Board Diversity Policy”.

THE BOARD

As at 31 March 2013, the Board is composed of six Directors,
including three Executive Directors and three Independent
Non-executive Directors (“INED(s)”). The biographical
details of the Directors are set out in the section “Biographies
of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 30 to 40 of
this Annual Report.

The Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the Group’s business. All Directors
have separate and independent access to the advice and
services of the senior management and the company secretary,
with a view to ensuring that board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed. When needed
and upon making request to the Board, the INEDs may obtain
independent professional advice at the Company’s expense in

carrying out their duties.
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THE BOARD (continued)
The types of decisions which are to be taken by the Board

include those relating to:

e the strategic plans and directions, and financial
objectives of the Group;

®  monitoring the performance of the management;

e implementing and monitoring an effective framework of
internal controls and risk management;

e ensuring that the Company has good corporate
governance and is in compliance with applicable laws

and regulations.

Responsibilities over day-to-day operations are delegated
to the management under the leadership of the Executive

Directors.

The Company has arranged for insurance cover in respect
of legal action against its Directors. The insurance cover is
reviewed annually to ensure that the Directors and officers are

adequately protected against potential liabilities.

The INEDs

The three INEDs of the Company are persons of high caliber,
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of
engineering, legislation and accounting and finance. With
their experience gained from various sectors, they provide
strong support towards the effective discharge of the duties
and responsibilities of the Board.

The INEDs are appointed for a fixed specific term.

The Board has assessed the independence of all the INEDs
of the Company. Having considered the guidelines as set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, the Board considers
all of them to be independent having regard to (i) their
annual confirmation on independence as required under
the Listing Rules, (ii) the absence of involvement in the
daily management of the Company, (iii) the absence of any
relationships or circumstances which would interfere with the
exercise of their independent judgment, and (iv) the absence
of remuneration from the Company other than the directors’

fee and the share options granted to them (if any).
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THE BOARD (continued)

The INEDs (continued)

The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, who is to retire by
rotation at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Company,
Professor KO Jan Ming and Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung have
been serving as INEDs of the Company for more than nine
years. Notwithstanding their length of tenure, they continue
to demonstrate the attributes of an INED and there is no
evidence that their tenure has had any impact on their
independence. The Directors are of the opinion that each
of the INED remains independent and believe that their
valuable knowledge and experience in the Group’s business
and their external experience continue to generate significant

contribution to the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

Meetings

Regular Board meetings are held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. Tentative dates of regular
Board meetings for next year are scheduled approaching the
end of each calendar year in order to facilitate the directors
to plan for attendance of the meetings. Additional Board
meetings will be convened, as and when required, to deal
with ad hoc issues. Any Director who is not able to present
physically may participate at any Board meeting through
electronic means of communication, such as conference
telephone or other similar communication equipment, in

accordance with the bye-laws of the Company.

Notice convening each regular Board meeting is sent at least
14 days in advance, and reasonable notice is given for other
Board meetings. The company secretary assists the Board
chairman to prepare the meeting notice and agenda. Each
director may include any item in the agenda. The agenda,
accompanied by meeting papers with sufficient and reliable
information, are sent to each director not less than 3 days
before the date of a Board meeting to enable the directors
to make informed decisions on the matters to be discussed,
except where a Board meeting is convened on a very urgent

basis to consider any urgent ad hoc matter.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Meetings (continued)

Minutes of board meetings are recorded in sufficient detail the
matters considered by the Board at the meeting and decisions
reached. Draft minutes of board meetings are circulated to
directors for comments and the signed minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and open for inspection to any director on
request.

Directors’ Attendance at Board, Committee Meetings and
Shareholders’ Meeting for Year 2012/13:

#ger ()

ik ()

A A R Sk L % IR
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HFLE2012/13F LR EFH G 67k - %R G 75%K
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Directors Meetings attended/held and eligible for attendance
H R/ B AT AR O 2 1k
Independent
Remuneration Audit Nomination Board General
Board  Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Meeting
WA FMZHE FHZHE RAZHE BLIZHE  REKA
Executive Directors BTk
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung A e o 505 - - - - 02
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai it A O A 5/5 11 - - - 0N
Mr. LI Chi Pong iR 55 - - - - 0
Non-executive Director Tt g
Mr. SHEK* Py iy 13 - - i - o/t
Independent Non-Executive Directors B e
Professor KO Jan Ming RENHE 5/5 111 0 111 111 1y
The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP LR 55 1 0 il 11 12
(BFHEF K TFH+)
Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene At et 505 /1 2 111 11 212

*  Mr. SHEK passed away on 28 October 2012.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The Board is responsible for reviewing the Board composition,
developing and formulating the relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors, monitoring the
appointment and succession of Directors and assessing the
independence of INEDs. The Board, through the Nomination
Committee set up in December 2011, reviews from time to
time its own structure, size and composition to ensure that it
has a balance of appropriate expertise, skills and experience
for the needs of the businesses of the Group.
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THE BOARD (continued)

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
(continued)

Pursuant to the Company’s bye-laws, all Directors (including
those appointed for a specific term, chairman and managing
director) are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at each annual general meeting at least once every three
years. In addition, Director(s) appointed during the year as an
addition to the Board or to fill a casual vacancy on the Board
are subject to retirement and election by shareholders at the
first general meeting following their appointment.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer (“CEQO”)
of the Company are separately performed by Mr. NGAI Chun
Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) and Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU?”),
respectively. This segregation ensures a clear division of the
Chairman’s responsibilities for the management of the Board
and the CEO’s responsibilities for the day-to-day management
of the Company’s business. Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU are

brothers-in-law.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership for the
Board, and ensuring that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings and that Directors receive
adequate, complete and reliable information in a timely
manner. The Chairman has an additional or casting vote in

the event of an equality of votes on any matter to be decided

by the Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Chairman met
with the three INEDs of the Company for once without
the presence of the management and the other Executive

Directors, according to the code provision A.2.7 of the CG
Code

The CEO is appointed by the Board and is responsible for
providing leadership for the management, implementing and
reporting to the Board on the Group’s strategy, overseeing
the day-to-day operations of the Group and providing all such
information to the Board as is necessary to enable the Board to

monitor the performance of the management.

wA e ()
ZAE - TR I S W ()

MRAEAR AT Z 0w AR - A B AR I ORI 4 K
wE > BAER(AFEAREEHNES - B8
Fe of MRS B ) JH 3 D g =R R AT R R
B o BRA > AR A R B B AT EE Y 2 el
0 R 5 2 kT R AT W R R AR
U B R K B AT R o B AR R

FR B Ay B AR R

A T R R AT BORER (AT B ) £ 4643 31
P B0 R A 5 A (T3R5 A 1) R i IR s A (137 e
R ) YT o 1 RAT BRI S B AT 2 R HEHE IR
T B R AT AR R AR A R
A B AR DR o R TG 2 s B R A S
HE IR R

ERAHESERY > YRARERGER LA
00 W O > HLH R Rl
FEO W o 1A B AR e 2SS T S o P
P UE AT > WSO BRI R
BN — B Pe i 5T o

RBRER-ZA=ZA=ZT—HEN - BB
R ST R B S B SCER A2, 71 » TEAR N W) Y45 21
Ja R AA AT E E AN OLT > B EARN
A=A IR RATE R EAT T - KETE o

TBARBEFRGRE  AEEEEHE - #17
7SR [ SR e 1 o MR R - B AR Y
HHEE > B RERRERGRM4 - DaH
R SR AR BT B KB

Annual Report 2012/13 FE & &




N
N‘Hlﬁﬁ B A

(]

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

V3

]

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
AR RWA

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee, to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs.

Audit Committee

The Company’s Audit Committee was established on 8
September 2000 with written terms of reference in compliance
with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee’s
terms of reference are available on the websites of the

Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2013, the Audit Committee is made up
of the three INEDs, namely Professor KO Jan Ming, the
Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung
Eugene. Professor KO Jan Ming is the chairman of the Audit
Committee. Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene is a certified
public accountant and possesses the appropriate accounting

qualifications and experiences in financial matters.

The Audit Committee holds regular meetings at least twice a
year and they also meets with the Company’s external auditors
at least twice a year to discuss the audit plan and to review the
Company’s annual report and accounts. During the year ended
31 March 2013, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the work primarily performed by the Audit Committee
included:

e review of the financial statements of the Company and
the Group;

e review of the accounting policies and practices adopted by
the Company and the Group;

e oversee the engagement, services provided and
remuneration of the external auditor and its independence
and serve as a useful channel of communication between
the Board and the external auditors; and

e review and monitor the effectiveness of the financial
reporting function, internal control system and the risk

management system of the Group.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Audit Committee (continued)

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee’s view on re-appointment of external auditor, and
they both have agreed to recommend the re-appointment
of Ernst and Young as the Company’s external auditor for
the ensuing year at the 2013 annual general meeting of the
Company.

Remuneration Committee

The Company’s Remuneration Committee was established
on 16 December 2005 with written terms of reference
and consists of a majority of Independent Non-executive
Directors. The purpose of the Remuneration Committee is to
set policy on Executive Directors’ remuneration and for fixing
remuneration packages for all Directors. The Remuneration
Committee’s terms of reference are available on the websites

of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2013, the Remuneration Committee is made
up of the three INEDs, namely Professor KO Jan Ming, The
Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung
Eugene, and one Executive Director, namely Mr. YAU.
Professor KO Jan Ming is the chairman of the Remuneration

Committee.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year to
review the remuneration of Executive Directors and make
recommendations to the Board. During the year ended 31
March 2013, the Remuneration Committee held one meeting
and the work performed by the Remuneration Committee
included the annual review of the remuneration of individual
Executive Directors and making recommendations to the

Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)

Nomination Committee

The Company’s Nomination Committee was established on 7
September 2011 with written terms of reference and consists
of a majority of INEDs. The Remuneration Committee’s
terms of reference has been revised and adopted on 25 March
2013 and the document are available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

As at 31 March 2013, the Nomination Committee is made up
of the three INEDs, namely Professor KO Jan Ming, the Hon.
IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, The Hon. IP Kwok
Him, GBS, JP is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year.
During the year ended 31 March 2013, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting and the work primarily
performed by the Nomination Committee and its major role

and functions includes:

e review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
re-appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors at least annually;

e identify and make recommendations to the Board on
suitable individuals nominated for appointment as
Director(s);

e assess the independence of INEDs;

e review contribution required from Directors; and

e review and monitor the training and continuous

professional development of Directors.
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DIRECTOR’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director
of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
development of the Company. The Company provides all
members of the Board with monthly updates on the Group’s
development.

According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains

informed and relevant.

The Directors confirmed that they have complied with the
code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code on Directors’ training
and they have provided a record of training they received for
the financial year ended 31 March 2013 to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code of conduct
regarding the Directors’ securities transactions. Following
specific enquiry made by the Company, the Directors have
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard
set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
March 2013.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

Full details of the Directors’ interests in the shares of the
Company are set out in the “REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS”
on pages 54 to 68 of this annual report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2013, the remuneration
paid and payable to the Company’s external auditors, Ernst &
Young, is set out below:

Audit services
Non-audit services:
Taxation services

Other services
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board recognises its responsibility for maintaining a
sound and effective system of internal control to safeguard the
shareholders’ investment and the Company’s assets, and for
reviewing its effectiveness. The Board has entrusted the Audit
Committee with the responsibility to review the internal
control systems of the Group, which include financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions.

During the year under review, the Board has conducted
review on the effectiveness of the internal control system of
the Group through discussion with the audit committee on
audit findings and control issues. These procedures provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
errors, losses and fraud, and manage rather than eliminate
risks of failure in the Group’s operational systems and in the

achievement of the Group’s business objectives.

The Board has also considered the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function, and their training

programs and budget.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of
transparency in communication with shareholders and
investors in general. The various channels via which the
Company communicates with its shareholders include interim
and annual reports, information on the Stock Exchange’s and

the Company’s website, and general meetings.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the Company’s
general meetings where the Chairman and the Executive
Directors of the Board are available to answer questions.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings on
each substantially separate issue, including the election of
individual directors.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Right to convene special general meeting

In accordance with Article 58 of the bye-laws of the
Company, any shareholder holding not less than one tenth
of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the company secretary,
to require a special general meeting to be convened by
the Board for transaction of any business specified in such
requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2)
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-
one (21) days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionists themselves may do
so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3) of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Right to put forward proposals at general meetings

Pursuant to Sections 79(1) and 79(2) of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, on the requisition in writing of (i)
either any number of shareholders representing not less than
one-twentieth of the total voting rights of all the shareholders
having at the date of the requisition a right to vote at the
meeting to which the requisition relates, or (ii) not less
than 100 Shareholders, the Company shall be under a duty
to, at the expense of the requisitionists unless the Company

otherwise resolves:

(a) give to Shareholders entitled to receive notice of the next
AGM notice of any resolution which may properly be

moved and is intended to be moved at that meeting; and

circulate to Shareholders entitled to have notice of any
general meeting sent to them any statement of not more
than 1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in
any proposed resolution or the business to be dealt with at

that meeting.

Right to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board at

general meetings.
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the

Company and the Group on a going concern basis.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, there is no
uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a

going concern.

The external auditors of the Company acknowledge their
reporting responsibilities in their auditors’ report on the
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013 as set
out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on pages 69 to 70.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Group
and is responsible for facilitating the Board process, as well
as communications among Board members. The biography of
the Company Secretary is set out on page 40 of this annual
report. Ms. TSANG Hau Lam (“Ms TSANG”), the Company
Secretary, has confirmed that she has complied with all the
qualifications and training requirements under the Listing
Rules. Ms. TSANG is also the financial controller of the
Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there is no change in the Company’s

constitutional documents.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL,

The directors (the “Director(s)”) present their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holding and the provision of corporate management services.
Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements. There were
no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 71 to 180.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.03 per share (HK3 cents per share) for the year ended
31 March 2013 (2012: Nil) payable to the shareholders whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company on
26 August 2013. The proposed payment of the final dividends
is subject to approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
2013 annual general meeting (“AGM”) of the Company and
has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 March 2013.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and the statements of
financial position of the Group for the last five financial
years, as extracted from the audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page 5 of the
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment,
and investment properties of the Group during the year are
set out in notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements. Further

details of the Group’s properties are set out on pages 14 to 17.

ER([HF)BRREAAARAREHKEF
—ZAEZH ZE A AR B O R A
Wi o

FEEH

A T 2 T TESE T 4 M T O A 3 LR
B o T EEMHE A T Z B AR A O B R
BFRELT o BAACARE LY » KA 1 32 B3 3 v 1 B I

E3-9/ 3358

AEFRE - FZ-=ZHE=A=Z+—HILMEEZH
) B AR 2 ) R A S TR H 2 28 R T AR B
WRBTIEIS0H

FREFERARE R A=A HIEE
BE R F =4\ Z N BB HIARA R R
A 1 b G e IR 5 R 1 M B A 0,03 8 (4 Bt
ZWAl) (ZF— 24 ) o BHRBEZRHIKE
AR A 2y 7] % — =4 SRR R A Ko (B
BRG] LB R > O AR > ORI R
BHEMmIEAREZF-ZE=ZH = HlER B A
% o

YU 5 BB 2

A S5 8 5 0 B A B 2 T 9 A DA
B 1R 2 2 W O K ) A S SRR
R T ) S T4 ) AR A S JLREREE R
LA L s e . — A o

Yok - B Bt il K B ¥k
RACEIE Y AR Z )3 - HeHs B R B 4R ¥

0 S 55 T 1 U S R MR R 14 8 16 o KA
IR LR B I4E1TH o

Annual Report 2012/13 FE & &




‘ VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
v #

B A B

i B

|

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL,

BANK BORROWINGS
Particulars of bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 March

2013 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There was no movement in the Company’s authorised
share capital during the year. Movements in the Company’s
issued share capital of the Company and share options and
the reasons therefore are set out in notes 29 and 30 to the

financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to

existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during

the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the year are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in

equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2013, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted to
approximately HK$70,440,000. In addition, the Company’s
share premium account, in the amount of approximately
HK$181,173,000 at 31 March 2013, may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made donations for charitable
and other purposes of approximately HK$217,000 (2012:
HK$40,000).
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL,

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, contract revenue earned from the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 93% (2012:
90%) of the total contract revenue for the year and contract
revenue earned from the largest customer included therein
accounted for approximately 61% (2012: 71%).

Subcontracting charges paid to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 25% (2012: 21%) of the
total subcontracting charges and material costs incurred for
the year. Subcontracting charges paid to the largest supplier
included therein accounted for approximately 6% (2012: 6%).

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five

largest customers or five largest suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Mr. NGAI Chun Hung (“Mr. NGAI”) (Chairman)
Mr. YAU Kwok Fai (“Mr. YAU”)

(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. LI Chi Pong (“Mr. LI”)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. SHEK Yu Ming Joseph (“Mr. SHEK”)
(passed away on 28 October 2012)

Independent non-executive directors:
Professor KO Jan Ming

The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP

Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene

In accordance with the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. NGAI and
The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP will retire by rotation,
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

FEH P KA HE v
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61% (22— 4R 2 71%) °

7 S 1 3 A A d5 K A3 T R 2 43 A 3 A AR AR
JE B A 2 4 A S R bR AR SRR A 25% (%
— AR 21%) o Hh AT R KRB Z K
A% (B — 4 : 6%) °

A ) g O A A B AT A T N AT o
W GRS P B 5% DA b2 AR A A B AT I
) S S8 7 A 4 VI K & P e T K B R A A
o] B 25 HE 25 o

S
TS ACAE BB B o % UL IR > A W 2
FU
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(A 3 i e 17 B 3 )
BRI (TF 4]
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B Je AT
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U5 S
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R RURAT o T4 S IR B A SR A i
B A KT AT -
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DIRECTORS (continued)

The appointment of each of Professor KO Jan Ming, The Hon.
IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene,
as extended based on the respective agreement between them

and the Company, was for a term of two years expiring on 31
August 2014.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
The Company has received from each of Professor KO Jan
Ming, The Hon. IP Kwok Him, GBS, JP, and Mr. FUNG Pui
Cheung Eugene an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”), and the Company considers all of the
independent non-executive directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company and the
senior management of the Group are set out on pages 30 to 40

of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. NGAI and Mr. YAU have respectively renewed their
service contracts with the Company on 25 March 2013 for
a fixed term of three years commencing from 1 April 2013,
subject to termination by either party by giving a six-month

written notice.

Mr. LI entered into a service contract with the Group that
commenced from 17 May 2004 and continue without a fixed
period until terminated by either party by giving a six-month

written notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the
Company which is not terminable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION
The directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the

financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

On 19 March 2013, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Mr. NGAI for the acquisition of the entire
equity interest in Flower Ocean Limited and its subsidiary
(collectively the “Flower Ocean Group”) and the loan due
and owing by the Flower Ocean Group to Mr. NGAI, for a
total consideration of approximately HK$299 million (the
“Acquisition”). The Acquisition was completed on 22 May
2013. Further details of the Acquisition are set out in the
Company’s circular dated 26 April 2013 and note 38 to the

financial statements.

Other than the contract disclosed above, no director had a
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or

fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

Mr. NGAI is a director and/or (substantial) shareholder of
Uni-Dragon Holdings Limited (“Uni-Dragon”), Winflower
Investment Limited, Win Source Investment Limited, Key
Fame Limited and Key Fund Limited, which are companies
incorporated in Hong Kong and engaging in property
investment or property development business. Uni-Dragon is

the wholly-owned subsidiary of Flower Ocean Limited.

Mr. NGAI’s wife and his son, Mr. NGAI Wing Yin, who is
aged over 18, are directors of Lanon Development Limited
(“Lanon”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong and
engaging in construction, maintenance and engineering
contract works. Mr. NGAI Wing Yin holds 78% beneficial
interest in Lanon. On the other hand, the Group has entered
into a tenancy agreement with Lanon, which constituted
continuing connected transactions of the Company. Further
details of these continuing connected transactions are set out

in the paragraph “Continuing Connected Transactions” under

the “CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS” section below.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS (continued)

The power to make material business decisions for the Group
is vested in the Board. Whenever the Board considers that
there may be a conflict of interest between the Group and
any Director, such Director (including Mr. NGAI who is the
Chairman of the Board and a substantial shareholder of the
Company) will be required to abstain from voting. Therefore,
the Board is capable of carrying on the Group’s business

independently of, and at arm’s length, from the business of Mr.
NGAL

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or their
respective associates is interested in any business which are
considered to compete or are likely to compete, either directly

or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

At 31 March 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares,
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were
required (i) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in
the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

AL,

OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

Long Position (excluding share options) in shares of the Company:

Director Notes

HY Hi ik

Mr. NGAI (a)
Hok

Mr. YAU (b)

Mr. L1
ek

KO Jan Ming
i B W

IP Kwok Him
E3TE

FUNG Pui Cheung Eugene
iR

Notes:

Capacity and
nature of interests

5 B Bl 2 1 B

As founder and beneficiary of a trust
(- M E YN
Personal

fil A

Through a controlled corporation
W2 A
Personal

fEA

Personal

PN

Personal

fil A

Personal

PN

Personal

i A

W R EEATH B2 2 b A ()

WAL 7] Z IR0 Z I (F BIEIERERE)

Number of % of issued
ordinary share capital of
shares held the Company
O 5 V5 1 It i v e AT
¥H JBe A Wi 4 e
838,760,400 55.49%
6,250,800 0.41%
845,011,200 55.90%
30,888,000 2.04%
8,448,000 0.56%
39,336,000 2.60%
5,501,200 0.36%
840,000 0.06%
4,800 0.0003%
364,800 0.02%

(a) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Winhale Ltd., which  (a) MK HWinhale Led ¥ R E S HER » %A H

is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited
liability and is ultimately beneficially, wholly-owned by the Xyston
Trust. The Xyston Trust is a discretionary family trust set up by Mr.
NGALI for the benefits of himself and his family.

T B Jo A4 T A S RS 2 A PR A ] o
Xyston Trusth & E it 2 EHH  Xyston Trust/d
MBS E R L BRI s ZEARBEA
FHFHRH -

(b) These shares are legally and beneficially owned by Business Success  (b) %K/ HiBusiness Success Limited ¥ & M B %% #E

Limited, the entire issued share capital of which is legally and

beneficially owned by Mr. YAU.

B A F 2 A TBAT A T Hh i S A A R

HHA -
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE WHE R EETRABZ#E IR ()
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

(continued)

Movements of Share Options of the Company granted to the KA "l B#7 7 F 2 M IR BERAERN Z T -

Directors’ during the year:

Date of At At Exercise
Director grant 1 April During the year 31 March Exercise period price
(dImfy) 2012 KR 2013 (dfmfy) HK$
Ho By M e St Granted Exercised Lapsed ~ R_F—=4 i R
(H/ K/ %) MA—H #y Tt % ZAZ1-H (H/H7E)  (Ex)
Mr. NGAI
Bk 31/08/2007 844,800 - (844,800) - - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
Mr. YAU
e S e 31/08/2007 8,448,000 - (8,448,000) - - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
Mr. LI
By 31/08/2007 6,948,000 - (4,000,000)  (2,948,000) - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
KO Jan Ming
HEW 31/08/2007 4,800 - - (4,800) - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
16,245,600 - (13,292,800)  (2,952,800) -

At 31 March 2013, the Company had no outstanding share RZF—=F=H=1—H » KA EKEMC
options granted to the Directors to subscribe for Shares in the 4% 7 ¥ 3% i W AR A7 A 2 Wi L AE -
Company.

In addition to the above, certain directors have non-beneficial — B¥ L3CHraltZ A » F T EHNREARARFHEE T
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the BB A W Z I8 25 M8 N B0y HE £ > Jbb 52 6l b g 30
benefit of the Group solely for the purpose of complying with 572 & 6 H 48 4 F Bl A & BRI H Z B AKH
the previous minimum company membership requirement & o % T 2 S IR HEA — [l B & 20 7] 2 R4 S HEAR
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. Certain directors — MEMAR Z B MR » 3% 5 A0 BOBE b RE == )t
also have beneficial interests in non-voting deferred shares &\ EGWCHCEE ] B 3 K € 3 5 5 HH S JBE SR & s
practically carrying no rights to dividends or to receive notice  BH A b4 52 5 76 3% Bt J& 20 7] 7 M IhF 2 BT A
of or to attend or vote at any general meeting or to participate 43Ik °

in any distribution or winding up in a subsidiary.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
(continued)

Save as disclosed in the above, at 31 March 2013, none of
the Directors or the chief executives of the Company or
their respective spouse or child had any interests or short
positions in the Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (iii)
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SECURITIES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section “DIRECTORS’
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN
SECURITIES” above, at no time during the year ended
31 March 2013 was the Company, its holding company or
any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable
the Company’s directors, their respective spouse, or child
to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

At the annual general meeting of the Company held on 7
September 2011, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a new share option scheme (“2011 Option
Scheme”) and the termination of the share option scheme
(“2002 Option Scheme”) adopted by the Company on 5
August 2002.

Particulars of the share option schemes of the Company are
disclosed in note 30 to the financial statements.

R R BEATRARZ#E SR ()
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(R 3 A0 8 o 00 B o 91 A ) 0 Sl <5 i
P Bt 2 B A 2 B A BRI AT 5 B(h) MR A o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) Jie Jb it it 0 (A8)

Details of movements in options outstanding and granted M #R20024: 51 842 H Z R ER B ILE T —=
pursuant to the 2002 Scheme during the year ended 31 March #F=ZA=Z1T—HEEZEHFHOT :

2013 are set out below:

Date of At Exercise
grant 1 April During the period At 31 Mar Exercise period price
(dlmfy) 2012 30 2013 (dfmfy) HKS
Grantees i Rdih. /e S Granted Exercised Lapsed R -F—Z4 e i
KB (H/ 4/ %) MH—H #y Ttk X% ZAZ4-H (W H/7%E)  (#x)
Directors:
HY
Mr. NGAI
ks 31/08/2007 844,800 - (844,800) - - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
Mr. YAU
e 4 31/08/2007 8,448,000 - (8,448,000) - - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
Mr. LI
B4 31/08/2007 6,948,000 - (4,000,000)  (2,948,000) - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
KO Jan Ming
BN 31/08/2007 4,800 - - (4,800) - 03/09/2007 - 02/09/2012 0.400
16,245,600 - (13,292,800)  (2,952,800) -
Employees:
RT:
In aggregate
ek 07/12/2006 240,000 - - (240,000) - 07/06/2007 - 06/06/2012 0.165
16,485,600 - (13,292,800)  (3,192,800) -
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES

So far as it was known to the Directors or chief executives
of the Company, as at 31 March 2013, the following persons
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company)
had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be

disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

ERX YL SA i Ed E

RER-Z24ZA=Z10—H o IEFRAAR L
HABABA > FIANL (EFRAAF LR
AT B BRA) T e A s B B B AT A5 450 2
B T AR 2 B BRI SR X VIR SR 2 B SR 3 43 R
Z AR 16 A 2 ) e M AR o 4k < M i R AT

Long Positions in shares of the Company: WRARRFZ RO ZIFF -
Number of % of issued
Capacity and ordinary share capital of
Name of shareholders Notes nature of interests shares held the Company

Pt % A5 35 7 B A2\l 84T

B K 44 1% Hf it B By BB 23 1 B ey ¥ H JBe AR H iy b

Winhale Ltd. (a) Beneficially owned 838,760,400 55.48%
HEHAAN

Braveway Limited (b) As a trustee 838,760,400 55.48%
fERfEREA

HSBC International Trustee Limited (b) As a trustee 838,760,400 55.48%
fERfEREA

Dragon Development Limited (c) Beneficial owner 166,742,000 11.03%
HEHEAAN

Chiu Koon Ming Andy (c) Through a controlled 166,742,000 11.03%

je ek &6 corporation
75 3 52 = %
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AL,

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

The above interest in the name of Winhale Ltd. was also disclosed as
interests of Mr. NGAI under the section “DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SECURITIES”. In addition,
these shares are ultimately beneficially owned by Xyston Trust.

(a)

Braveway Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are deemed
to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Winhale Ltd. by
virtue of the fact that Winhale Ltd. is wholly owned by the trusts of
which Braveway Limited and HSBC International Trustee Limited are
the trustees.

(c)

100% interest in Dragon Gate Development Limited are controlled by
Mr. Chiu Koon Ming Andy.

INTEREST OF ANY OTHER PERSONS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Directors
and chief executive of the Company were not aware of
any persons (other than the substantial Shareholders or
the Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had
interests or were deemed or taken to have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of the Company,
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Continuing connected transactions

Pursuant to a tenancy agreement (“Tenancy Agreement”)
dated 28 May 2010 between a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, as landlord, and Lanon, as tenant, the Group
leased out a property to Lanon and received total rental of
HK$1,704,000 for the year ended 31 March 2013 (2012:
HK$1,704,000) from Lanon. Lanon is controlled by the
son and the wife of Mr. NGAI, the Chairman of the Board
and the controlling shareholder of the Company. Further
details of Lanon are set out in the section “DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS” above. The
Tenancy Agreement has constituted a continuing connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. On
29 May 2013, the Group renewed the Tenancy Agreement
and entered into a new tenancy agreement with Lanon in
respect of the leasing of the property for a term of three
years from 1 June 2013 to 31 May 2016 at a monthly rent of
HK$174,000.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Continuing connected transactions (continued)

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the continuing connected transactions set out
above and have confirmed that these continuing connected
transactions were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial
terms; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in

the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company has engaged Ernst & Young, the Company’s
auditors, to report on the Group’s continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information
and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing
Rules, Ernst & Young have provided the Board with the letter
in respect of their findings and confirming the Company’s
continuing connected transactions disclosed above: (1) have
received the approval of the Board; (2) have been entered
into in accordance with the relevant agreement governing the
transactions; and (3) have not exceeded the cap disclosed in
the Company’s previous announcement. A copy of the letter
has been provided to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL,

DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18
AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

The following disclosures are made pursuant to Rules
13.18 and 13.21 of the Listing Rules in respect of the loan
agreements which containing a clause which is deemed
to have imposed a specific performance obligation on the
controlling shareholder of the Company and a breach of such

obligation will cause a default therein.

Loan Facilities

Certain indirect wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
as borrowers (the “Borrowers”) and the Company as guarantor,
had entered into certain installment loan agreements (“Loan
Agreements”) with a bank pursuant to which the bank
agrees to provide certain installment loan facilities (“Loan
Facilities”) to the Borrowers, with a committed period up to 7
April 2014.

Under the Loan Agreements, among others, an event
of default is triggered when Mr. NGAI ceases to be the
Company’s single largest beneficial shareholder at any time
during the term of the Loan Agreements. If such an event
of default occurs, the bank may and shall declare the Loan
Facilities be cancelled and/or declare all outstanding loan
together with interest accrued thereon and all other sums
payable by the Company under the Loan Agreements to be
immediately due and payable.

As at 31 March 2013, the aggregate outstanding Loan
Facilities amounted to approximately HK$95,602,000.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2013, the Company

did not have other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.18
and 13.21 of the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total issued share capital was held by
the public as at the date of this report.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL,

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Connected transactions

On 19 March 2013, the Group entered into a share transfer
agreement with Mr. NGAI for the Acquisition. The
Acquisition was completed on 22 May 2013. Up to the date of
the Acquisition, Flower Ocean Group has not carried out any
significant business activities except for holding a property in
Hong Kong. Further details of the Acquisition are set out in
the Company circular dated 26 April 2013 and note 38 to the

financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REVIEW
The annual results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2013 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by Ernst &
Young, who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for

reappointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board of
Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
NGAI Chun Hung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 June 2013
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z K

To the shareholders of

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
71 to 180, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2013, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

Or error.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this

report.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditors' judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to the entity's preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2013, and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue
Central, Hong Kong

14 June 2013
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HaaEmB AR
Year ended 31 March 2013 #FE - EFE—=4#F=H="F+—HIFEEZE
2013 2012
TR ZAE R A
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M it T#xL Fi#T
(Restated)
(EF)
REVENUE WA 5 3,476,653 2,957,441
Contract costs B #) AR (3,273,468) (2,777,639)
Property expenses LES 53 (1,476) (1,268)
Gross profit B 201,709 178,534
Other income and gains Al e A Je W 2 5 184,634 98,211
Administrative expenses AT B 32 (61,691) (57,183)
Other expenses Ho At B X - (1,8006)
Finance costs B % H 7 (11,314) (7,396)
Share of profits and losses of B Ay e [w] 2 o] 8 iz )
jointly-controlled entities B e 18 18 30,812 44,760
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B e 1l ik A 6 344,150 255,120
Income tax expense B3 10 (24,977) (21,135)
PROFIT AND TOTAL A B Yt P B
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 2 i W0 N 8
FOR THE YEAR 319,173 233,985
Profit and total comprehensive income BEA R BER A REAS
attributable to owners of the parent Yai A S 4 T WE A AR A 11 319,173 233,985
EARNINGS PER SHARE BRI R R A A
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY A 4 Bt 7 A
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
(HK cents) (VA1)
Basic B YN 21.2 15.6
Diluted v 21.2 15.6

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

g T N
31 March 2013 RZFE—=4F=H=1F—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
L = SEU It S
=A=+—H | =ZA=Z+—H WH—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wik FH#L T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(REF) (REF)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS e U8 0
Property, plant and equipment LE R Y S 14 346,891 294,700 274,555
Properties held for development RHEESRZME 15 250,000 250,000 251,806
Investment properties /3L ES 16 419,600 953,520 859,674
Investments in jointly-controlled entities & [F] ¥ i B 4 i) ¢ & 18 142,023 111,211 11,251
Deferred tax assets B AE B IE 28 396 - -
Total non-current assets FE B A A A 1,158,910 1,609,431 1,397,286
CURRENT ASSETS i B ¥
Gross amount due from customers EWREFZAH
for contract works TRk A% 19 447,540 259,192 26,895
Properties under development BRRi 20 416,207 42,223 -
Properties held for sale HHEREZME 21 50,171 43,165 82,124
Accounts receivable R Wi e 3% 22 487,002 399,565 233,100
Prepayments, deposits and B ~ B R
other receivables At JE Wi 3k 23 77,481 72,396 35,314
Due from jointly-controlled entities JRE W 48 ) e o K 18 - 10 960
Tax recoverable A Wi [l A IE 5,231 3,551 417
Pledged deposits AT K 24 - 1,075 1,075
Cash and cash equivalents BL& B a5 24 365,705 359,326 283,886
Total current assets B A 1,849,337 1,180,503 663,771
CURRENT LIABILITIES i B £ 6%
Accounts and bills payable JRE A+ R R B 5 4% 25 666,444 567,753 342,548
Accruals of costs for contract works HIREH TRRA 67,316 102,831 77,630
Tax payable JRE A I 11,671 2,669 13,135
Other payables and accruals A Ak K AR B H 26 22,115 21,594 15,029
Due to a jointly-controlled entity JRE A L ] ek o) B kO 18 53,451 17,542 14,313
Interest-bearing bank loans BT SRAT Bk 27 544,290 442,237 230,983
Total current liabilities HH AR 1,365,287 1,154,626 693,638
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) #i®h% &, ~ (f1#) & i 484,050 25,877 (29,867)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT A A O ) £ £
LIABILITIES 1,642,960 1,635,308 1,367,419
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e 1)
& BN DLk
31 March 2013 R _FE—=4F=H=F+—H
31 March 31 March 1 April
2013 2012 2011
R4 SR ZE——A
=H=Z+—H8 | ZH=+—H WH—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g3 Fi#x T Fi#r
(Restated) (Restated)
(RHEF) (RHEF)
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES F i B £1 4%
Interest-bearing bank loans o B SR AT B 27 123,428 442,400 410,343
Deferred tax liabilities IR G A E 28 4,526 2,393 1,166
Total non-current liabilities Bl URERI R 127,954 444,793 411,509
Net assets R 1,515,006 1,190,515 955,910
EQUITY BE 2%
Equity attributable to owners LA R
of the parent JE 41 B 2
Issued capital BB RA 29 37,792 37,459 37,419
Reserves ik 31(a) 1,477,214 1,153,056 918,491
Total equity HURELS 1,515,006 1,190,515 955,910

Ngai Chun Hung

Director
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BB OB O OB A W

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
BT RE R )R

Year ended 31 March 2013 #FE - EFE—=4#F=H="F+—HIFEEZE

Share Share
Issued  premium Contributed option  Retained Total
capital account surplus reserve profits equity
2% ¢y JBe £y BA B ¥ W%
BeA  dBUR #h it eyl Bt
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
T#HI THT T T T T
At 1 April 2011 REZR——HENA—H
As previously reported 0 51 4t 37419 173,379 11,421 4,681 671415 898,315
Prior year adjustments (note 2.2) DAHI4E B B (B aE2.2) - - - - 57,595 57,595
As restated BEF 37,419 173,379 11,421 4,681 729,010 955,910
Profit and total comprehensive R Y EL TN Y
income for the year (as restated) (B E5) - - - - 233,985 233,985
Exercise of share options (note 29) Jils W RE A 08 (M #£29) 40 580 - - - 620
Transfer upon exercise of TR W 1 A 17 6 4
share options (note 29) (M #t29) - 230 = (230) - -
Transfer of share option reserve upon T B P 2 o
lapse of share options JE 3L HE 15k - - - (1,998) 1,998 -
At 31 March 2012 REF-"HEZAZ+—H 37459 174,189 11,421 2,453 964,993 1,190,515
At 1 April 2012 REZR-ZANA—H
As previously reported 0 51 4t 37459 174,189 11,421 2453 892,507 1,118,029
Prior year adjustments (note 2.2) DABI4E B B (HaE2.2) - - - - 72,486 72,486
As restated KEF 37,459 174,189* 11,421* 2,453*%  964,993* 1,190,515
Profit and total comprehensive AR JE i ) B 2 T MR\ B
income for the year - - - - 319,173 319,173
Exercise of share options (note 29) Jil W HRE A 8 (M E29) 333 4,985 - - - 5318
Transfer upon exercise of TR At 8 1 0 45
share options (note 29) (Mtit29) - 1,999 - (1,999) - -
Transfer of share option reserve upon T B B 2 I
lapse of share options S £k A - - - (454) 454 -
At 31 March 2013 REF-ZHZAZ+—H 37,192 181,173* 11,421% % 1,284,620% 1,515,006

*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

HK$1,477,214,000 (2012: HK$1,153,056,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

o JREMERIR H ARG A M ER R P Z 5 AR
#1,477,214,000% 76 (=& — 24 ¢ 1,153,056,000
W) o
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Year ended 31 March 2013 #FE - EFE—=4#F=H="F+—HIFEEZE

2013 2012
TR —E -
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Bt ik F#x F#x
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING BREEHZBEHEE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax Wi 5t i ¥z 1) 344,150 255,120
Adjustments for: BB IE H A R
Finance costs B % 7 11,314 7,396
Share of profits and losses of R Ay e [w] 42 ) B 8 9 )
jointly-controlled entities T 1H 18 (30,812) (44,760)
Interest income B A 5 (4,203) (6,750)
Depreciation PreE 6 6,390 7,513
Gain on disposal of items of property, B~ AN Ik
plant and equipment HH 2 W 5 (27) 9)
Gain on disposal of investment HEREDENRLS
properties, net b 5 (141,161) —
Gain on changes in fair value of BEYEAN T
investment properties 5 B W 25 5 (38,080) (90,581)
Impairment of properties held for AR Z Y WAL
development 6 - 1,806
147,571 129,735
Decrease in amounts due from JRE e 3 ] 422 1
jointly-controlled entities R K I A 10 950
Increase in gross amount due from JEW R P 2Z A2 TR
customers for contract works 48 7 B4 o (188,348) (232,297)
Increase in properties under development %5 Ji& H 4 2E 58 (66,184) (914)
Increase in properties held for sale R e B 2 e 8 (7,006) (2,207)
Increase in accounts receivable JFEE WAg 5% 7k 384 (87,437) (166,465)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FEAT K - R4 R A
other receivables JRE Wk 3 (11,895) (37,082)
Increase in accounts and bills payable JRE A MR R B B 5 14 98,691 225,205
Increase/(decrease) in accruals of costs for TH 2 & 4 T2 B A<
contract works W, o) (35,515) 25,201
Increase in other payables and accruals L Al I A 35K B T 42 # 521 6,565
Increase in amount due to a JRE A e ] 2 o) B A8 Ak JE Y
jointly-controlled entity 35,909 3,229
Cash used in operations HR &2 Bl (113,683) (48,080)
Interest received B 4,203 6,750
Interest paid et F A (18,509) (10,736)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (RN IR Y ) (15,918) (33,508)
Net cash flows used in operating activities BHEHHHZHER BT (143,907) (85,574)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEEBLRER
Year ended 31 March 2013 #FE - EFE—=4#F=H="F+—HIFEEZE
2013 2012
TR ZAE R A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M it T#xL Fi#T
Net cash flows used in operating activities F& FEHMHHZ
B 4 i B A (143,907) (85,574)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING BEEHZB SR
ACTIVITIES
Additions of items of property, Hma 3 - BEAR K
plant and equipment WA IE H (55,376) (26,058)
Additions to investment properties B 4% & Wy - (1,707)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEME - WA RZHBEE
property, plant and equipment Z B3 aHE 27 48
Proceeds from disposal of H B 4 A S 0 B AR I
investment properties 416,161 -
Acquisition of jointly-controlled entities W Ji% 3% [F] $5¢ 1] Ef 3% 32 - (55,200)
Net cash flows from/(used in) wEEEEL () Z
investing activities BHEeREE 360,812 (82,917)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MY RHZBERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from exercise of share options i J3E WE 48 A7 0 1) BT A K JEL 29 5,318 620
New bank loans W H SRAT B K 725,209 486,163
Repayment of bank loans 95 SR AT B K (942,128) (242,852)
Net cash flows from/(used in) Mg EBELE (FEH)Z
financing activities BERBEEmH (211,601) 243,931
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND B& BB &S
CASH EQUIVALENTS 34 Jm 5 5,304 75,440
Cash and cash equivalents at ERZ B L RBEFHD
beginning of year 360,401 284,961
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERBESMHY
AT END OF YEAR 365,705 360,401
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BB OB OB A W

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BBk

Year ended 31 March 2013 #FE - EFE—=4#F=H="F+—HIFEEZE

2013 2012
e St TR T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M it T#x T#x
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF BEeERBEFHMERZ
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS g
Cash and bank balances B4 B SRAT &5 B 24 240,635 339,253
Non-pledged time deposits with i B IR R A 2 B A
original maturity of less than =M A Z L
three months when acquired 7 W17k 24 125,070 20,073
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in FRE B IR DL A BT A Y
the consolidated statement of B& RB&FHD
financial position 365,705 359,326
Time deposits with original maturity of ORI 2 SRAT 78 L B %
less than three months when acquired, i B A B H A
pledged as security against bank =M A Z e MG
overdraft facilities 24 - 1,075
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the %% B4 &K N BT
consolidated statement of cash flows Be LB A SHY 365,705 360,401
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
wmofo o R O OB A

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

S5 IR D

31 March 2013 BZF—=4F=H=1—H

2013 2012
R4 R A
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Hf it F# Fi#T
NON-CURRENT ASSETS Ik G By ¥ i
Investments in subsidiaries T B e A w] R B 17 288,200 284,592
CURRENT ASSETS o Y %
Tax recoverable ] g o] Ft TE - 295
Cash and cash equivalents B4 kB EY 24 1,489 671
Total current assets B E A 1,489 966
CURRENT LIABILITIES R B £ £
Other payables FE Atk HE £ 3% 26 285 348
Total current liabilities i B A A AR 285 348
NET CURRENT ASSETS R ) 2 A VR 1,204 618
Net assets V29X 289,404 285,210
EQUITY HE £
Issued capital BT A 29 37,792 37,459
Reserves Tkt 31(b) 251,612 247,751
Total equity HHRE 2R 289,404 285,210

Ngai Chun Hung

Yau Kwok Fai
Director
i 1 B
#H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 A e i ke

ZF=FE=H=1+—H

31 March 2013

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Vantage International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited liability company incorporated
in Bermuda. The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM 11, Bermuda. The principal place of business of the
Company is located at No. 155 Waterloo Road, Kowloon
Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were engaged in

the following principal activities:

e a wide range of construction, civil engineering,
maintenance and other contract works in public and

private sectors in Hong Kong
e  property investment and development

The Company is a public company with its shares listed
on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Winhale
Ltd. (“Winhale”), which is incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands.

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally accepted
in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.
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31 March 2013

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2013. The financial
statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same
reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to
be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.
All intra-group balances, transactions, unrealised gains
and losses resulting from intra-group transactions and

dividends are eliminated on consolidation in full.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity

transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (ii)
the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any
resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s
share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or

retained profits, as appropriate.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised HKFRSs for

the first time for the current year’s financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKERS 1 First-time
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards — Severe
Hyperinflation and Removal of Fixed
Dates for First-time Adopters

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transfers of

HKEFRS 7 Amendments

Financial Assets

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes
— Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets

HKAS 12 Amendments

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of amendments to HKAS 12, the adoption of the
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.

The HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination
of deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value and introduce a rebuttable presumption that
deferred tax on investment property measured at fair
value should be determined on the basis that its carrying
amount will be recovered through sale. Furthermore,
the amendments incorporate the requirement previously
in HK(SIC)-Int 21 Income Taxes — Recovery of Revalued
Non-Depreciable Assets that deferred tax on non-
depreciable assets, measured using the revaluation model
in HKAS 16, should always be measured on a sale basis.

The presumption that deferred tax on investment
property measured at fair value should be determined
on the basis that its carrying amount will be recovered
through sale has been rebutted by the Group for its
investment properties located in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) since these properties are held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale.
Accordingly the Group continues to measure deferred
tax liabilities arising from the fair value changes of these
investment properties using tax rate that would apply on
recovery of the assets through use.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Prior to the adoption of the amendments, deferred tax
with respect to the Group’s investment properties located
in Hong Kong was provided on the basis that the carrying
amount will be recovered through use, and accordingly
the profits tax rate had been applied to the calculation
of deferred tax arising on the revaluation of the Group’s
investment properties. Upon the adoption of HKAS 12
Amendments, deferred tax in respect of these investment
properties is provided on the presumption that the
carrying amount will be recovered through sale. The

effects of the above change are summarised below:

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year

ended 31 March:

2.2 1t BOR B B 5% 2 52 B (A1)

JRER G T B > A R AC SR B L 75 9 1 B
iy 348 A 0 S0E 5 JELARL 42 R T < 9 208 908 6 D WA
] iy SR AT o RIUE > BHAARE BB E 3%
PRI B Al Tt B 4 A A A I I A 45 A
B AR GH o i PR FH A U B A 129 (18
A1) AR > A B % S B 3 I I AR
0 R TR < Y 7 25 A0 G AT o ¢ A
e 52 g vy S SRR AR A T

B EZ=H=A— H Ik FJE R 456 2 a5
57 :

2013 2012
TR AR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#oC
Decrease in income tax expenses WA B A 32 (6,227) (14,891)
Increase in profit and total B8 4 B i A B
comprehensive income il K
for the year 6,227 14,891
Increase in basic and diluted earnings B\ 7] 3% 48 E 25 R A AN
per share attributable to ordinary 9 B BE AR B i 0 A
equity holders of the parent (HK cents) 4 m (Al 0.4 1.0
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 2.2 st et s 2 % W) ()

DISCLOSURES (continued)

Consolidated statement of financial position at 31 March: W= =A4—HmE&EG M BERIE
2013 2012
TR =4 R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and I A IR S B TE B K
total non-current liabilities R E A AR (78,713) (72,486)
Increase in retained profits B8 fm AR B i A B
and net assets BETH 78,713 72,486
Consolidated statement of financial position at 1 April: B —H 256 EBERIE
2011
e
HK$’000
T
Decrease in deferred tax liabilities and 9 A 3 #1E B VE B M I B A0 A
total non-current liabilities (57,595)
Increase in retained profits and net assets B PR v e A B R A 57,595
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs 2.3 U % /i 15 4% A 2 %0 75 o B 85 3
HE Ji
A% 45 B A1 5 e B S S W R R T R B A
AL A 2 250 357 ) T A A8 T 7 4 DA

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,

in these financial statements.

FHER o

HKFRS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time FRMERERAAE (BT BEMERERANS
Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Wets izt ed i

Reporting Standards — Government
Loans

WET : AR

HKFRS 7 Amendments Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial BUMHRARNATE (B ABMERE RN
Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting [£BIA : REIHGT -
Financial Assets and Financial FREEREBA EH IR
Liabilities*
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments* BB R % 2RI
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements BV BB S A 058 bt o8
HKEFRS 11 Joint Arrangements? BB R 5 FEZH
HKEFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ BB BRI 15 PRUBEER G HF
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and ~ Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 T A7 A 5108 T 7 A 108
HKFRS 12 Amendments and HKFRS 12 - Transition Guidance? FRHBERGENFNSE R FUHBRGENENSE K
FWMBREEAA 15 BB A 1258 0
(1) {57 - 5
HKERS 10, HKFRS 12 Amendments to HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 B BB SR 1088 BB R 08
and HKAS 27 (2011) and HKAS 27 (2011) - Investment FRUEREENELER FRUHREENELER
Amendments Entities’ B ERHTH BRI TE
(ZB——8) (i) (ZR——F) W -
#ERE
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement? s e Eak AT &
HKAS 1 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of BRI (BT e pE b
Financial Statements — Presentation of [HBREHIRINET
Items of Other Comprehensive Income' FW2mkaBHHAR
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits? BB G AR A E 195 BARR
(ZZ——%)
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements* B GFHERATH Bil#i#
(ZZ——%)
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and B @R R85 V7 rydie i
Joint Ventures® (ZF——%)
HKAS 32 Amendments Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial B THERIA35E (15T B AR5
Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting [RBTH SR
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’ PHEEREBARY
077t
HK(IFRIC)-Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase B (BB R HER SRR BAGHEEHN AR

Annual Improvements

2009-2011 Cycle

of a Surface Mine?
Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in June 2012°

LEE) RBHE
EEYE(CERAES
SRR

REZ-ZERARUHET
B HRE R G T
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

31 March 2013

(continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

July 2012

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2013

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1

January 2015

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is as follows:

The HKFRS 7 Amendments require an entity to
disclose information about rights to set-off and related
arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The
disclosures would provide users with information that is
useful in evaluating the effect of netting arrangements
on an entity’s financial position. The new disclosures are
required for all recognised financial instruments that are
set off in accordance with HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised
financial instruments that are subject to an enforceable
master netting arrangement or similar agreement,
irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with
HKAS 32. The Group expects to adopt the amendments
from 1 April 2013.

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part
of phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely
replace HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification and
measurement of financial assets. Instead of classifying
financial assets into four categories, an entity shall
classify financial assets as subsequently measured at
either amortised cost or fair value, on the basis of both
the entity’s business model for managing the financial
assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the financial assets. This aims to improve and simplify
the approach for the classification and measurement of
financial assets compared with the requirements of HKAS

39.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

31 March 2013

(continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged from
HKAS 39, while changes were made to the measurement
of financial liabilities designated at fair value through
profit or loss using the fair value option (“FVO”). For
these FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair
value of a liability that is attributable to changes in credit
risk must be presented in other comprehensive income
(“OCI”). The remainder of the change in fair value is
presented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair
value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
OCI would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. However, loan commitments and financial
guarantee contracts which have been designated under

the FVO are scoped out of the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirety. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015. The Group will
quantify the effect in conjunction with other phases,
when the final standard including all phases is issued.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition of
control which is used to determine which entities are
consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS 10
require management of the Group to exercise significant
judgement to determine which entities are controlled,
compared with the requirements in HKAS 27 and
HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities.
HKEFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements that addresses the
accounting for consolidated financial statements. It also
addresses the issues raised in HK(SIC)-Int 12. Based
on the preliminary analyses performed, HKFRS 10 is
not expected to have any impact on the currently held
investments of the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

31 March 2013

(continued)

HKEFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control.
[t addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.,
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate

consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured
entities previously included in HKAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements, HKAS 31 Interests in Joint
Ventures and HKAS 28 Investments in Associates. It also
introduces a number of new disclosure requirements for

these entities.

In July 2012, the HKICPA issued amendments to HKFRS
10, HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12 which clarify the transition
guidance in HKFRS 10 and provide further relief from
full retrospective application of these standards, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative period.
The amendments clarify that retrospective adjustments
are only required if the consolidation conclusion as to
which entities are controlled by the Group is different
between HKFRS 10 and HKAS 27 or HK(SIC)-Int
12 at the beginning of the annual period in which
HKFRS 10 is applied for the first time. Furthermore, for
disclosures related to unconsolidated structured entities,
the amendments will remove the requirement to present
comparative information for periods before HKFRS 12 is
first applied.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

31 March 2013

(continued)

The amendments to HKFRS 10 issued in December
2012 include a definition of an investment entity and
provide an exception to the consolidation requirement
for entities that meet the definition of an investment
entity. Investment entities are required to account
for subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss in
accordance with HKFRS 9 rather than consolidate them.
Consequential amendments were made to HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011). The amendments to HKFRS 12 also set
out the disclosure requirements for investment entities.
The Group expects that these amendments will not
have any impact on the Group as the Company is not an
investment entity as defined in HKFRS 10.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011),
HKAS 28 (2011), and the subsequent amendments to
these standards issued in July and December 2012 from
1 April 2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 April
2013.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

31 March 2013

(continued)

The HKAS 1 Amendments change the grouping of
items presented in OCIL. Items that could be reclassified
(or recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, net gain on hedge of a net investment,
exchange differences on translation of foreign operations,
net movement on cash flow hedges and net loss or gain
on available-for-sale financial assets) would be presented
separately from items which will never be reclassified
(for example, actuarial gains and losses on defined
benefit plans and revaluation of land and buildings). The
amendments will affect presentation only and have no
impact on the financial position or performance. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April

2013.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined benefit
pension plans including removing the choice to defer the
recognition of actuarial gains and losses. Other changes
include modifications to the timing of recognition for
termination benefits, the classification of short-term
employee benefits and disclosures of defined benefit
plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19 (2011) from
1 April 2013.

The HKAS 32 Amendments clarify the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right to setoff” for
offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities. The
amendments also clarify the application of the offsetting
criteria in HKAS 32 to settlement systems (such as
central clearing house systems) which apply gross
settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous. The
amendments are not expected to have any impact on

the financial position or performance of the Group upon
adoption on 1 April 2014.
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31 March 2013

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs
(continued)
The Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle

issued in June 2012 sets out amendments to a number of

HKFRSs. The Group expects to adopt the amendments

from 1 April 2013. There are separate transitional

provisions for each standard. While the adoption of some

of the amendments may result in changes in accounting

policies, none of these amendments are expected to

have a significant financial impact on the Group. Those

amendments that are expected to have a significant

impact on the Group’s policies are as follows:

(a)

(b)

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
Clarifies the difference between voluntary additional
comparative information and the minimum required
comparative information. Generally, the minimum
required comparative period is the previous period.
An entity must include comparative information in
the related notes to the financial statements when it
voluntarily provides comparative information beyond
the previous period. The additional comparative
information does not need to contain a complete set

of financial statements.

In addition, the amendment clarifies that the
opening statement of financial position as at
the beginning of the preceding period must be
presented when an entity changes its accounting
policies; makes retrospective restatements or makes
reclassifications, and that change has a material
effect on the statement of financial position.
However, the related notes to the opening statement
of financial position as at the beginning of the
preceding period are not required to be presented.

HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation: Clarifies
that income taxes arising from distributions to equity
holders are accounted for in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes. The amendment removes existing
income tax requirements from HKAS 32 and requires
entities to apply the requirements in HKAS 12 to

any income tax arising from distributions to equity

holders.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as

to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
profit or loss to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are

stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and the

other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the basis on
which the assets are to be realised upon its dissolution.
The profits or losses from the joint venture’s operations
and any distributions of surplus assets are shared by the
venturers, either in proportion to their respective capital
contributions, or in accordance with the terms of the

joint venture agreement.
A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,

directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures (continued)

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise

significant influence over the joint venture; or

an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence

over, the joint venture.

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that
is subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the

economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investments in jointly-controlled entities are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at the Group’s share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments
are made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting

policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and
reserves of jointly-controlled entities is included in
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. Where the profit sharing ratio is different to
the Group’s equity interest, the share of post-acquisition
results of the jointly-controlled entities is determined
based on the agreed profit sharing ratio. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its jointly-controlled entities are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s investments in the jointly-
controlled entities, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of jointly-
controlled entities is included as part of the Group’s

investments in jointly-controlled entities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as

incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts by

the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is

recognised in profit or loss.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of HKAS 39 is measured at fair value with changes
in fair value either recognised in profit or loss or as a
change to other comprehensive income. If the contingent
consideration is not within the scope of HKAS 39, it is
measured in accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for

within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair
value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised

in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the

Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative
value of the disposed operation and the portion of the

cash-generating unit retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than properties under development, properties held for
sale, construction contract assets, deferred tax assets,
financial assets, investment properties and goodwill),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs
to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is determined for

the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy for

that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is
accounted for in accordance with the relevant accounting

policy for that revalued asset.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(ii) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than hotel
under construction, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location

for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them

accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as

follows:

Leasehold land under

finance leases

Over the lease terms

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining term of the
land lease and 40 years

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the
lease term and 20%

20% to 24%
20% to 24%

Machinery and equipment
Furniture, fixtures and
office equipment

Motor vehicles 24% to 30%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each
part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Hotel under construction is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises
the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing
costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Hotel under construction is reclassified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured initially
at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the
year in which they arise.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the

year of the retirement or disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to properties
under development, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of

change in use.

Properties held for development

Properties held for development are stated at cost less
impairment losses. These properties are reclassified as
properties under development, hotel under construction
or investment properties, as appropriate, when

development commences.

Properties held for development are classified as non-
current assets as the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle.

Properties under development

Properties under development for re-sale are included
under current assets and are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost comprises acquisition costs,
construction costs, interest and other direct attributable

costs.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets as the construction period of the relevant property
development project is expected to complete within the
normal operating cycle. On completion, the properties are

transferred to properties held for sale.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the
estimated selling price less estimated total cost of the
development and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale of the properties.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale of the
properties.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title,
are accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of
a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the minimum lease payments and
recorded together with the obligation, excluding the
interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including
prepaid land lease payments under finance leases,
are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a

constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the
Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the operating
leases net of any incentives received from the lessor are
charged to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the

lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and receivables. The Group determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction

costs.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the

marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, accounts and other receivables, deposits and

amounts due from jointly-controlled entities.

Subsequent measurement

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. After initial measurement, such
assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in other income and gains
in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is
recognised in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and

in other expenses for receivables.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial

assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have

expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent
of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if,
and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset (an incurred “loss event”) and
that loss event has an impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset or the group of financial assets
that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment
may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic

conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group
first assesses individually whether objective evidence of
impairment exists for financial assets that are individually
significant, or collectively for financial assets that are
not individually significant. If the Group determines
that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss
is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a

collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows
is discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). If a loan has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the

current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the
use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised
in profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued
on the reduced carrying amount and is accrued using the
rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for
the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been
transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a write-
off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other

expenses in profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as loans and borrowings. The Group determines
the classification of its financial liabilities at initial

recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings, net of

directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts and
bills payable, other payables, accruals of costs for contract
works, amount due to a jointly-controlled entity and
interest-bearing bank loans.

Subsequent measurement

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as

through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance

costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation

under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective

carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

B Rk

P4 W i A T

A o 0 3 0 % AR G P 1Y e L 5 4
R BRI 3R o A S T A2 400 4 e 28 I e
H4mh e o8 e

0 4ty e R T A RO 3 4 P R R
R S0 B A R o SR 25 R I 1 22
B8 -

A 4R L 1 < L 6 9 B A R AR R SR A - B
MR 3K ~ BB 4 TARRBA ~ FE A 3L ]
il TR O > DL KR B SRAT B

= A it

PG ERRAR > B SRAT Bk 1% AR A T A
RGO > BRIETBIM B A E
Ko BT » BMIREAG & - 7EAH
A 1l e 0 IR e A T MR R MR AR AR >
He Y Wi AR K AE R 25 P e R o

9 SRR T I 2 A WA BT R
VLA 8T e ) S 0 2 10 2 ORAR
PR R M B IS e R A A S B R

AL 1 58 < i A A
WRERBWER ~ PO B I > SR A

B S BT R — BN B 5 — T
ARCEE LA R R AR B BRI
ARAERMRAETT > A Bl 22 e s Wy 1 7 2% Ak
T I A AR R e T LR B > 4% F AR
TH i 25 WA 4R 35 P R o

Annual Report 2012/13 FE & &




' ‘ ' VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED

B o Ok A

(]

V3

]

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o5 i o TR i
e
2.4 LR GHBORBER ()

31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the

liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in

nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices

prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of
the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or

part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or

substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation

authority.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and all attaching conditions will be complied
with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it
is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,

are expensed.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the

revenue can be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from construction, renovation and other contracts,
on the percentage of completion basis, as further
explained in the accounting policy for “Construction,

renovation and other contracts” below;

(b) from work orders of contracts for alterations,
additions, repairs and maintenance, based on the
value of individual work orders certified by relevant

employers;

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the

lease terms;

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a
shorter period, when appropriate, to the net carrying

amount of the financial asset; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Construction, renovation and other contracts

Contract revenue comprises the agreed contract amount
and appropriate amounts from variation orders, claims
and incentive payments. Contract costs incurred comprise
direct materials, the costs of subcontracting, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed

construction overheads.

Revenue from fixed price contracts is recognised on the
percentage of completion method, measured by reference
to the percentage of certified value of work performed to

date to the total contract sum of the relevant contract.

Provision is made for foreseeable losses as soon as they are
anticipated by management.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is treated as an amount due from customers
for contract work. Where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less
recognised losses, the surplus is treated as an amount due

to customers for contract work.

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payments, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled

transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees for
grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a
binomial model, further details of which are given in note

30 to the financial statements.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of
each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the
Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit
or loss for a period represents the movement in the
cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and

end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance

and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the

previous paragraph.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (continued)

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings

per share.

Other employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year
basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave which
remains untaken as at the end of the reporting period
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the end of the reporting period for the expected
future cost of such paid leave earned during the year by

the employees and carried forward.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The
assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Exempted Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORSQO”) retirement benefits scheme for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the ORSO
scheme. This scheme operates in a way similar to the
MPF Scheme, except that when an employee leaves the
scheme prior to his/her interest in the Group’s employee
contributions vesting fully, the ongoing contributions
payable by the Group are reduced by the relevant amount
of forfeited employer’s contributions.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority
to declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when

they are proposed and declared.

Final dividend are recognised as a liability when they

have been approved by the shareholders.
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31 March 2013

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of

monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured
at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of
the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income

or profit or loss, respectively).
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets

or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following judgements,
apart from those involving estimations, which have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the

financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these

properties which are leased out on operating leases.
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties
comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals or for
capital appreciation and another portion that is held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes. If these portions could be
sold separately or leased out separately under a finance
lease, the Group accounts for these portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property
is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is made
on an individual property basis to determine whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does

not qualify as an investment property.
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and properties
held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management on
determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The
Group considers its intention for holding the properties
at the early development stage of the related properties.
During the course of construction, the related properties
under construction are accounted for as properties under
development included in current assets if the properties
are intended for sale after its completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction included in investment properties
if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the
properties, the properties held for sale are transferred
to completed properties held for sale and are stated
at cost, while the properties held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation are transferred to completed
investment properties. Investment properties, both under
construction and completed, are subject to revaluation at

the end of each reporting period.
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Judgements (continued)

Valuation of properties under development and properties held
for sale

Properties under development and properties held for sale
are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
The cost of each unit in each phase of development is
determined using the weighted average method. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling
price less selling expenses and the estimated cost of
completion (if any), which are estimated based on the

best available information.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease
in net sales value, the net realisable value will decrease
and this may result in a provision for properties under
development and properties held for sale. Such provision
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, the
carrying value and provision for properties in the periods
in which such estimate is changed will be adjusted
accordingly.
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are described

below.

Construction, renovation and other contracts

As further explained in note 2.4 to the financial
statements, revenue and profit recognition on contract
work is dependent on the estimation of the total
outcome of the construction contract, as well as the work
performed to date. Based on the Group’s past experience
and the nature of the contract activities undertaken by
the Group, the Group makes estimates of the point at
which it considers the work is sufficiently advanced such
that the costs to complete and the revenue can be reliably
estimated. As a result, until this point is reached, the
amount due from customers for contract work as disclosed
in note 19 to the financial statements will not include
profit which the Group may eventually realise from the
work performed to date. In addition, actual outcomes
in terms of total contract costs and/or revenue may be
higher or lower than those estimated at the end of the
reporting period, which would affect the revenue and

profit recognised in future years.

Significant assumptions are required to estimate the
total contract costs and the recoverable variation works
that will affect whether any provision is required for
foreseeable losses. The estimates are made based on past

experience and knowledge of the project management.
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31 March 2013

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present

value of those cash flows.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

As disclosed in note 16 to the financial statements,
investment properties, including completed investment
properties and investment properties under construction,
are revalued at the end of the reporting period on
market value, existing use basis or on residual basis by
independent professionally qualified valuers. These
valuations were based on certain assumptions and
estimates, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual outcomes. In making
the judgement for valuation of investment properties
under market value, existing use basis, information from
current prices in an active market for similar properties
is considered and assumptions that are mainly based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting
period are used, while the use of the residual basis to
value investment properties under construction requires
considering the significant risks which are relevant to
the development process, including but not limited to

construction and letting risks.
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31 March 2013
SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and

has two reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the contract works segment engages in contract
works as a main contractor or subcontractor,
primarily in respect of building construction,
renovation, repairs and maintenance and civil

engineering works; and

(b) the property investment and development segment
engages in investment in retail, commercial and
residential premises for their rental income potential

and the development of properties.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted
profit before tax from continuing operations. The
adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group’s profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of profits and losses of jointly-
controlled entities as well as head office and corporate

expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Inter-segment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third

parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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31 March 2013
4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

ZF=FE=H=1+—H

4. YRR (H)

Group
AL
Property investment
Contract works and development Eliminations Consolidated
AHIR LES L it ]
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
CE-CE | DRk | DR | CF-CE | ZF-CE | DF-TE | 2F-ZE | 2F-TE
HK$000 | HK$'000 | HK$000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HK$'000 | HKS$'000
TH#L TH#T T#L T#T T#L T#L TH#L T#T
(Restated)
(B )
Segment revenue: AHRA :
Sales to external customers WETIEEE | 3,454,844 | 2,936,582 21,809 20,859 - - | 3,476,653 2,957 441
Inter-segment sales AR g 266 1,348 2,529 1,498 (2,795) (3,346) - -
Total i 3,455,110 | 2,937,930 24,338 3357 (2,795) (3,846) | 3,476,653 | 2957441
Segment results Vi 181,376 158943 | 217,674 130601 | (18,100)|  (22325) | 380,950 267,309
Interest and unallocated income | B R KA
and gains WA RN i 5,393 7,030
Unallocated expenses FAEMZHE (61,691) (57,183)
Finance costs HHER (11,314) (7,396)
Share of profits and losses of WEAh 4k R 58
jointly-controlled entities i REH 30,812 44,760 - - - - 30,812 44,760
Profit before tax L e 344,150 | 255,120
Income tax expense B (24,977) (21,135)
Profit for the year SRR 319,173 233,985
Other segment information: HAARER :
Depreciation ik 1,623 1,99 2 6 - - 1,625 2,000
Depreciation on unallocated FARERZ 4,765 5513
assets &
Gain on changes in fair value REMEATH
of investment properties Smlgs - - 38,080 90,581 - - 38,080 90,581
Loss on impairment of properties FhlERRZ
held for development WEREER - - - 1,306 - - - 1,306
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31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
(a) Revenue from external customers
All of the Group’s revenue is derived from customers
based in Hong Kong.

(b) Non-current assets

4. YRR (H)

Hb I 26 R

(a) HHIEEF RN
ACER T A N3 15 B LA o 2 S L Y
R o

(b) i ) &

2013 2012
TR D4R e Sy o

HK$’000 HK$’000

T oC T

Hong Kong Hi 1,154,910 1,605,771
Mainland China e [ K B 4,000 3,660
1,158,910 1,609,431

The non-current asset information above is based on

the location of assets.

Information about major customers

For the year ended 31 March 2013, revenue from two
(2012: one) customers of the contract works segment
accounted for more than 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. Revenue from these two (2012: one) customers
was HK$2,110,528,000 (2012: HK$2,096,958,000) and
HK$509,451,000 (2012: Nil), respectively.

Government bureaus and departments of the government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
“HKSAR Government”) are considered a single customer.
Except for the aforesaid, no other single external
customer accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s

revenue.

e 3 i B A R DL E A Ay
%0

FEE P &R
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KAGH LR MHEAL (ZF— 4 —
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31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

4. YRR (H)

Information about products and services VE i B IR 5 6t
2013 2012
- St o TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# F#T
Revenue from external customers: RAIKREFZWA :
Contract works for BMEEEAFH TR
building construction 1,773,505 1,198,402
Contract works for renovation, WU~ At s
repairs and maintenance BH TR 1,221,950 1,261,093
Contract works for civil FARTEAEHTE
engineering works 459,389 477,087
Property gross rental income LUE R N R 21,809 20,859
3,476,653 2,957,441
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31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
the appropriate proportion of contract revenue from
construction, maintenance and other contracts, and
the gross rental income received and receivable from

investment properties during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as

BOA ~ e A B e 2
e A\ B A 5 A i 8% S 00 75 06 46 D 7R
M~ DR A TR A AN B L2 A
RO > BB 8 3 1 TR B IR G W A

A -

WA~ FoAl g A Bl ds 2 A3 AT E

follows:
Group
A 4R 1
2013 2012
e S TR T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M it T#x T¥#x
Revenue WA
Contract revenue B RN 3,454,844 2,936,582
Property gross rental income PEM BB 21,809 20,859
3,476,653 2,957,441
Other income and gains Jfib BN B W 2
Interest income )& WA 4,203 6,750
Management fee income received 1 — 2 [w] 42 1] BT 8
and receivable from a DR ERZ
jointly-controlled entity EHEERA 36 660 250
Gain on changes in fair value of BEY A VAT
investment properties W s 16 38,080 90,581
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEME - HIR K
plant and equipment B A I H Y W 27 9
Gain on disposal of investment HEREDEN
properties, net sk > 141,161 -
Sundry income R JE U 503 621
184,634 98,211
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31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BBt il &t A
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after A4 ) Z BB WT A A BR 7 (REA) T
charging/(crediting): I
Group
A 4R 1
2013 2012
e S TR T
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
M it T#x T#x
Depreciation i 14 6,390 7,513
Auditors’ remuneration A% S i T 4 2,250 2,100
Direct operating expenses (including repairs 2 Bt BUFL 4 W 3 & 4 3%
and maintenance) arising on MHEERLSEB
rental-earning investment properties (L F5 s AR R 1,382 1,017
Employee benefits expense (exclusive g B & A B % (A5
of directors’ remuneration — note 8): EH 4 — M EES) ¢
Wages and salaries TEEkFHSE 150,696 117,445
Pension scheme contributions R o e
(defined contribution schemes) (e e kst #) 5,146 3,138
155,842 120,583
Minimum lease payments under F A K R s
operating leases: FEM A -
Land and buildings e Je p 4,664 2,877
Equipment B 20,384 12,815
25,048 15,692
Impairment of properties held for SRR (R TP E TR RS
development* - 1,806
Government subsidies** BURE B Wy (218) (265)
* Included in “Other expenses” on the face of the consolidated * P kF 2B ARNZ T HAP X ] -
statement of comprehensive income.
#*  Subsidies have been received from the Hong Kong Vocational wE AR I O 3 2 TORR Rill R B 6 PR A0 e Rk
Training Council and the Construction Industry Council, BT Wk 2L R S i s Sk o (o

institutions established by the HKSAR Government, for o . o
providing on-the-job training for graduate engineers and trainees, R I BORF T BEH) Z ) o H BT A

respectively. There were no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies % 5 G W 2 RIBAT e AE s sk R 1 -

relating to these subsidies.
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31 March 2013 Z&FE—=4F=H=1—H
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. WHEM
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: WHEMSHWT :
Group
A5 H
2013 2012
ot St o R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# T
Interest on bank loans AT R ZF B 18,509 10,736
Less: Interest capitalised W CDEARHFH G (7,195) (3,340)
11,314 7,396
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. WHML
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant IR I 538 2 i A A /) i 2 B SR
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The (I b7 BRI 1) B A5 v o i Ak 1] 55 1 61 16k ¢ 2%
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing ZAGEEERMEFHWT
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:
Group
A4
2013 2012
R A - S
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #C Fi#T
Fees 4 594 594
Other emoluments: JL At 557 1
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind He - B R EYA R 9,533 8,772
Discretionary performance-related bonuses 52 % B B 2 [ 15 16 4T 19,996 19,398
Pension scheme contributions RN R e
(defined contribution schemes) (R gk wk#) 920 91
29,619 28,261
30,213 28,855
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31 March 2013
8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

U 05 kA Y ik

SFSgE=H=H

8. A4 ()
(a) W FEPATHE S

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

T4 BE P9 A B8 S JE BT B R A4

2013 2012

SR 4R R

Fees Fees

M4 4

HK$’000 HK$’000

T#x T

Professor Ko Jan Ming [k =gk &p 198 198
The Hon. Ip Kwok Him, GBS, JP EF B (S EHEZ K FHL) 198 198
Mr. Fung Pui Cheung, Eugene WA 198 198
594 594

There were no other emoluments payable to the

independent non-executive directors during the year

(2012: Nil).
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31 March 2013

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

g ===
8. WM ()

(b) AT H P R e PuAT P

2013
-
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses  contributions  remuneration
id - HWh BRBUH B Bk 4
B B WA fi Z N A6 4 il 8 43 % B 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#7x T#x T#x
Executive directors: BHATHESF :
Mr. Ngai Chun Hung B A S A
(“Mr. Ngai”) (¥4 4,550 12,000 15 16,565
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai e I s 2 2,980 4,000 15 6,995
Mr. Li Chi Pong RS 1,653 1,996 60 3,709
9,183 17,996 90 27,269
Non-executive director: FEHATHES -
Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph® 4 B W Jg 2 350 2,000 - 2,350
9,533 19,996 90 29,619
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31 March 2013

(b) Executive directors and a non-executive director

8. I ()

(b) AT P B kAT ()

(continued)
2012
TR TR
Salaries, Discretionary
allowances  performance- Pension
and benefits related scheme Total
in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
o HHG L3 B AH B BAKA
SR L E Z WAL Gim RS AT 4
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F T F# Fi# F#
Executive directors: WATH S .
Mr. Ngai ok 3,640 12,000 12 15,652
Mr. Yau Kwok Fai e I e 2 2,746 3,000 12 5,758
Mr. Li Chi Pong EiR e 1,386 1,898 60 3,344
Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter ** 28 B RE g A ++ 350 - 7 357
8,122 16,898 91 25,111
Non-executive director: FPATESF
Mt. Shek Yu Ming Joseph A I e A 650 2,500 - 3,150
8,772 19,398 91 28,261

k3

Mr. Shek Yu Ming Joseph has passed away on 28 October

2012 in Hong Kong due to illness.

Mr. Mak Hon Kuen Peter has resigned as an executive
director of the Company with effect from 31 October 2011.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived

or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year

(2012: N
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31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9.
The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2012: four) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2012: one) non-director, highest paid

employee for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind s HI R EYA S
Discretionary performance-related bonuses 52 3 Bl A BH =2 |9 1% 16 4T
Pension scheme contributions EN Y N K

T 4% 3ot 15 567 T O

TR A A7 JE 1N 44 B 1 S PO O LA D 4 (=
FoDAE WA W RELMEFET
WP LIRS © 4RI — 4 (2%~
A4 BN T I (R
AT

Group

9|
2013 2012
R A TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x T#x
1,200 930
692 1,920
60 12
1,952 2,862

The remuneration of the remaining one (2012: one) non-
director, highest paid employee for the year fell within
the band of HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 (2012:
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000).

ERNHB B (B —-ZF:—4)kE
30 I R B 2 3 I 1,500,001 0 &
2,000,000 76 (=2 — Z24F : 2,500,001 78
2£3,000,000%8 7C) AY 24 o
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31 March 2013 ZF—=F=/J=1—H

10. INCOME TAX 10. i £3 8¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits

T s ) A58 T MR B A4 B O A A s A 2 A
FE B v A 3R B R 16.5% (& — 4 -

arising in Hong Kong during the year. 16.5%) 1 -
Group
¥ |
2013 2012
Y- St e St ot
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tl Flh
(Restated)
(HE5))
Current — Hong Kong -
Charge for the year A4 23,355 19,908
Opverprovision in prior years VL 47 B S A (115) -
Deferred (note 28) IEAE (M it28) 1,737 1,227
Total tax charge for the year A AR B B IE 7 A 24,977 21,135
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31 March 2013
10. INCOME TAX (continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit

before tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the

effective tax rate is as follows:

oA 5 A e i ke

S SESHE A

10. B f38¢ ()
308 P TP ) P 5 A B 3 i B B il i ) < AU
S HH B L BB R A 2 B S Y TR
EWE -

Group
¥ |
2013 2012
e SN R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
(Restated)
(BEF)
Profit before tax i A5 i ¥z ) 344,150 255,120
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory HA W EBLE16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% iH A Z B 56,785 42,095
Adjustment in respect of current tax of S5 DL S0 T] 46 300 750 e o ) o
previous periods (115) -
Adjustment in respect of deferred tax of S DL T S0 [ 20 A2 A58 T 1Y )
previous periods 1,634 -
Profits and losses attributable to 5% JB 7 3K ) i o) T 1Y
jointly-controlled entities ez A1) % s 18 (5,084) (7,385)
Income not subject to tax I A N (29,628) (14,921)
Expenses not deductible for tax AL Z B 1,465 693
Tax losses not recognised AR T 7R 2 e e 4R 228 464
Others HAty (308) 189
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate AR BB RRG
B I 3 24,977 21,135

The share of tax attributable to jointly-controlled entities
amounting to HK$5,567,000 (2012: HK$8,862,000)
is included in “Share of profits and losses of jointly-
controlled entities” on the face of the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income.

5% e % 3 ] e 1 B B A B TE %5 5,567,0009 76
(2 —4F £ 8,862,000 7C) » Tt ALGA
2 W A% b B T RE A St [l 42 o) 2 B 5 R %
G o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

U 05 kA Y ik
SFSgE=H=H
11.

31 March 2013
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 March 2013 includes a
loss of HK$29,116,000 (2012: HK$28,270,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 31(b)).

DIVIDENDS

Proposed final — HK3 cents (2012: Nil)

per ordinary share

12.

$58 R A1 e S — 4 B A e
3WAl (ZF— 247+ I8

B2 ) BN A i A

MBRE_F-ZH£=ZH=Z1T—HILEE
A s BEE BER O AL &5 A A P B
29,116,000 ¢ (% — Z4F = 28,270,000%
J0) M 1 OO A A W W o sl iR (P
31(b))

JBe
2013 2012
=4 —®—
HK$’000 HK$’000
T #C TF#T
52,400 -

The final dividend proposed subsequent to the reporting
period is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares of 1,506,306,986 (2012: 1,496,913,239)
in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have been
issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise or
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares into

ordinary shares.
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13.

T S 5 19 A58 SR DR A 90 J B e A A ) M SR
JRE Ji Bt S A 4 K A i o

B2 v 3 0 B A 15 AN MEAY 9 B
A

9 JB J A 28 ) 75 AR B AR A B B 4 ) % O R
Tt B A N EAG W R SO b AR TR AT
3 B 2 Jm BE S 34 #81,506,306,9868F (%
— 4F £ 1,496,913,2390%) w5 -

A O ML A 26 R RO A
FA BB R0 R 35 > 5 B4 2
IR 7 €355 56 A 28 B4R
P4 Py 47 B R > DA R L
A LA A 0B W 0 1
T 0 I 4 R 08 1 10 20 I 6
HEF- 48 -
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BB OB O OB A W

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 A e i ke

31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share

are based on:

13. B2 v 35 W0 A A 45 A N\ ME AN 5 B
A (A1)

T e B A e 4 ) S AR DA bR A

2013 2012
R A TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x
(Restated)
(R HF)
Earnings v
Profit attributable to ordinary equity SR I R AR %
holders of the parent, used in the L F0 IR BT 4R
basic and diluted earnings RS NIRL ST EnESE DN
per share calculation JE Al % F 319,173 233,985
Number of shares
JBe By ¥ H
2013 2012
TR AR R
Shares JBe By
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7l 43 45 J§ & A 2 F1 1§
in issue during the year, used in the JI R ) A B N AT
basic earnings per share calculation 98 B RE S 35 8 1,506,306,986 1,496,913,239

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 1R 5% 2 # ¥ 3fE Z

deemed to be issued for no consideration T RE RE AT Wt S AR
on assumed exercise of dilutive ARAE B A7 1 3% 4 B 1
share options TnHE - 2 3

1,576,802

6,872,831

Weighted average number of ordinary shares, #1545 i #f 3 £ 5l

used in the diluted earnings per share IRF BT % ) ) 325 8
calculation JnRE - 34 8

1,507,883,788

1,503,786,070
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oA 5 A e i ke

31 March 2013 ZFE—=F=H=1+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y3k ~ B B i
Group
AL M
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Landand  Leasehold and  and office Motor  Hotel under
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles construction Total
3

ik B HERER
HRRMT  WREE RRE RA%RRN W AR it
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
T#x  T#x  T#x  T#x  T#x  TH#x  T#x

2013 v St
At 1 April 2012: RZF—ZHNA—H:
Cost A 129,950 4,702 4,612 12,207 11,424 209,760 372,655
Accumulated depreciation and PEER YT
impairment (15,018) (4,480) (4,225) (10,722) (8,589) (34,921) (77,955)
Net carrying amount T K 114,932 222 387 1,485 2,835 174,839 294,700

Net carrying amount at 1 April 2012 RZZE—Z4NA—H

IR A 114,932 2 387 1,485 2,835 174,839 294,700
Additions e - - 577 171 561 57,272 58,581
Depreciation provided during the year 4 J W7 (3,274) (56) (292) (813) (1,955) - (6,390)
Net carrying amount at R-Z-=E==+—H
31 March 2013 IR A 111,658 166 672 843 1441 23,111 346,801
At 31 March 2013: RZF-ZHE=H=ZF—H:
Cost A 129,950 4,702 5,189 12,326 11,985 267,032 431,184
Accumulated depreciation and REHEE A
impairment (18,292) (4,536) (4,517)  (11,483)  (10,544)  (34,921)  (84,293)
Net carrying amount IR 111,658 166 672 843 1441 23,111 346,891
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
BB OB O OB A W

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sk 25 3 WY i
31 March 2013 ZF—=4F=H=1—H
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Pk ~ BRI Bl (%)
(continued)
Group
AL H
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Landand  Leasehold and  and office Motor  Hotel under
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  construction Total
A
il HaE HEkER

TR REE
HK$'000  HK$'000

Rt WA B R it
HK$'000 ~ HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

Fbr b Ftr Fbr T#T Tt Fitr
2012 e Sl
At 1 April 2011: RZB—-—ENA—H :
Cost BA 129,950 4,426 4612 11,990 10,336 183,683 344997
Accumulated depreciation and 2 R
impairment (11,746) (4,419) (3,989) (9,712) (5,659) (34,921) (70442)
Net carrying amount T K 118,204 1 627 2,118 4617 148,762 174,555
Net carrying amount at 1 April 2011 RZZF——£NH—H
IR 118,204 1 027 2178 4,677 148,762 274,555
Additions wE - 176 - iy 1,127 26,077 27,697
Depreciation provided during the year 4 J§ 48 (3,212 (61) (240) (1,010) (2,930) - (7,513)
Disposals & - - - - (39) - (39)
Net carrying amount REZB-ZEZA=4—H
at 31 March 2012 b4 114932 m 387 1,485 283 174,839 294,700
At 31 March 2012: REF-ZEZA=—H:
Cost S 129,950 4702 4612 12,007 1424 209760 372,655
Accumulated depreciation and 2B R
impairment (15,018) (4,480) (4,225) (10,722) (8,589) (34,921) (77,955)
Net carrying amount T K 114,932 122 387 1,485 1,835 174,839 194,700

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s land and buildings and
hotel under construction with net carrying amounts
of HK$111,659,000 (2012: HK$114,932,000) and
HK$232,111,000 (2012: HK$174,839,000), respectively,
were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted
to the Group (note 27).

138

WoZF—-=F#=ZA=Z+—H  REEEE
FAE S A £ 111,659,0008 00 (ZF— 48
114,932,0007%) $%232,111,000% 6 (=&
— A 1 174,839,000% J6) #Y - i B dE 2 DA
B AE g s ORI > MR 3R T A E —
J SRAT A A AR (FFRE27) o
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VANTAGE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

oA 5 A e i ke

ZF=E=H=1+—H

Year ended 31 March 2013
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

The Group’s leasehold land included in land and
buildings with a net carrying amount of HK$102,927,000
(2012: HK$105,941,000) is situated in Hong Kong and is
held under a medium term lease.

The Group’s leasehold land included in hotel under
construction is situated in Hong Kong and is held under a
long term lease.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, all of the Group’s properties
held for development were pledged to secure certain bank
loans and general banking facilities granted to the Group

(note 27).

The Group’s leasehold land included in properties held
for development is situated in Hong Kong and held under
a long term lease.

14. Y3E ~ BRA B i (4)

15.

PNE- N ) e o T
102,927,000% 76 (=% — 4 : 105,941,000
Wwot) M E LA R FWw > AP S
ERRE -

A AR B A il e O BB 5 R B b M R A
> HURMMEE S -

SRR (R A S
REF-SEEZF-ZEZAETH
T A SS90 2 Ay 2 UL > DA
A A S VG 545 AT B B — M SR AT
% (Wirik27) -

ACHR 5 A R 2 W S P A A AL B st
kA > RURBMEEL(HFA -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BEHPE
Group
A
2013 2012
e SSEY Y S
Investment [nvestment
Completed  properties Completed ~ properties
investment under investment under
properties construction Total | properties construction Total
R g %M Rh
f¥EME  HUHE it | REDE REDE fit
HK$’000  HK$000  HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#r T#x T#7 T#x T#7 T#xT
Carrying amount at TR 8 B
beginning of year 656,520 297,000 953,520 604,074 255,000 859,674
Additions e - - - - 3,265 3,265
Disposals g (275,000) - (275,000) - - -
Transfer to properties HERR R
under development (note 20) (HiE20) - (297,000)  (297,000) - - -
Gain on changes in fair value N EZH I 38,080 - 38,080 51,846 38,735 90,581
Carrying amount at end of year TRV 4 0 e £ 419,600 - 419,600 656,520 297,000 953,520
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ZF=E=H=1+—H

Year ended 31 March 2013

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 16. B8 EW¥E (4)
An analysis of the Group’s investment properties is as AL R EWESWMT -
follows:
Group
A 4R 1
2013 2012
- S o R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T #C Fi#or
Hong Kong: HH
Long term leases REIfA 600 560
Medium term leases w9 A 415,000 949,300
415,600 949,860
Elsewhere* At 3 [+ 4,000 3,660
419,600 953,520

At the end of the reporting period, whilst the application is
in progress, the certificate of ownership with respect to one
of the Group’s investment properties with a carrying value of
HK$4,000,000 (2012: HK$3,660,000) at 31 March 2013 had not

been issued by the relevant government authorities.

The Group’s completed investment properties were
revalued on 31 March 2013 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung
Limited (“DTZ”), independent professionally qualified
valuers, at HK$419,600,000 (2012: HK$656,520,000) on

market value, existing use basis.

The Group’s investment properties under construction
were revalued on 31 March 2012 by DTZ at
HK$297,000,000 on residual basis. The use of the residual
basis to value investment properties under construction
requires considering the significant risks which are
relevant to the development process, including but not

limited to construction and letting risks.

Certain of the Group’s investment properties are leased
to third parties under operating leases, further details
of which are included in note 34(a) to the financial

statements.

o R IR > R B R T R0 A R B
s RO R R 8 A AR )
Hp—HR Z—-=4£=Z=+—H KM
1 %54,000,000% 7C (& — Z4E : 3,660,000
Wot) ZIEWENFE R -

N_F—=ZHF=H=+—H » REHEWTH
BB S T S S S 2 A AR R
REARA R (TR ZHHRBA
JH % 3k % 75 7 A A £5419,600,000% 76 (=&
— 4 1 656,520,000 760) ©

MR -TEZHET—H > AREEMER
Hh 3 S T A S AT AR R A 1 oA R
18 %5297,000,0009 7T o DA i (i 56 3 3§ 75
w3 Y S A 2E % 3 B R R AR B Y
HORR R » AR (H R B B R & i AR
B o

AEEMETRED ERBEBEMAMTHE
= BB 2w R B R M
34(a) °
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Year ended 31 March 2013 & —Z4FE=H=4+—H

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)
At 31 March 2013, the Group’s investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$408,000,000
(2012: HK$943,000,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

Further particulars of the Group’s investment properties
are included in the “Summary of properties” section of the

annual report.

16. # &Y% (4)
N-F-=Z2F=ZHA=1+—H » KEEEK
T {8 44 %1408,000,0008k 76 (=& — L 4F ¢
943,000,000% 7T ) 1 38 ¥ 4 3 B R - 4k
o B T A AR ) — % SR AT Rl 0 9 DR (B SR

27)

A BACLE B BE Y R — RN > BN 4R
e[ Wy SRR R o o o

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. A WS A v i B &
Company
Y N/
2013 2012
R4 SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#i F T
Unlisted shares, at cost I B A > RIFEE 64,147 64,147
Due from subsidiaries B} JE§ 2 =] Rk 224,053 220,445
288,200 284,592

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured,

interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment.

The carrying amounts of the amounts due from

subsidiaries approximate to their fair values.
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SFEEZAEH
17. 7 W ) 2y v Wy B ¥E (A1)

Year ended 31 March 2013
17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of

incorporation

Name and operations
ik THE 3 3

% h Be 58 4% o i

Profit Chain Investments British Virgin

Limited Islands/

Hong Kong

e JB A OR R

R

Able Engineering Hong Kong

Company Limited i
ZRIBEARA T

Excel Engineering Hong Kong

Company Limited i

Tt TAREAFRAF

Nominal
value of
issued and
paid-up capital
oA R
R B A i

US$70,000
Ordinary
70,0003 76
W B

HK$4,789,000
Ordinary
HK$11,211,000
Non-voting
deferred

(Note)

4,789,000 7T 1 78 B

11,211,000# 5T

306 452 2 O A JBE

(Kt it)

HK$16,000,000
Ordinary
16,000,000 76
gl

B M A F R
Percentage
of equity
attributable to Principal
the Company activities
A 4 ) AN
JBe HE Oy Be B E 37
Direct  Indirect
H% [
100 - Investment
holding
B ek
- 100 Building
construction and
maintenance
M A
- 100 Building
construction,
maintenance
and civil
engineering
works
L S S
et %
AR T
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Year ended 31 March 2013 & —Z4FE=H=4+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7 B )& 2 v g 8 ¥ (A1)
(continued)
Nominal Percentage
Place of value of of equity
incorporation issued and attributable to Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital the Company activities
ik 1 ko A% £ A 4 W) HEAY
#h B 58 4% S R B AAS i i JBe A By e T
Direct Indirect
H% A %

Gadelly Construction Hong Kong HK$4,200,000 - 100 Civil

Company Limited iR Ordinary engineering

T ) S A R 4,200,000% JC works

e 5 B AT

Able Contracting Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100 Building

ZREERR A Ea S Ordinary maintenance

IR works

M M1 TR

Able Contractors Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building

R A T Ordinary construction

10,0009 7e ¥ % Jit M

Able Maintenance Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Building

Company Limited 7 Ordinary construction and

TR MR R A H 10,000% 7T ¥ 48 %t maintenance

works

5l 0 e

Hete TR

Gold Vantage Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100 Property

BEAMRAF & Ordinary holding

100% 70 5 48 Ij WERA

Covalla Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100 Property

HiAEA R A FH Ordinary development

10,0009 7e # % Jit 5%
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Year ended 31 March 2013

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(continued)

Name

£ hi

Good Trader Limited
EERRAH

Great Business Limited

A R AT

Comfort Home Properties
Limited
ZHEEERARAT
Win Glories Limited
AR B 4 ]

Hobol Limited
5 H A PR A F]

Win Extra Limited

H A R

Frason Holdings Limited

A 1 A R A

Keeprich Limited

144

Place of
incorporation

and operations
ik W S
B 58 4%

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
LR

Hong Kong
H

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
ERS

Hong Kong
H

Hong Kong
H#H

British Virgin
Islands/

Hong Kong

e JB AT R
R

Nominal
value of
issued and
paid-up capital
L% i3

S R B AAS i i

HK$1
Ordinary
19 70 ¥ 7 Jie

HK$1
Ordinary
13 o3 78 i

HK$1
Ordinary
138 7 % i i

HK$9,600
Ordinary
9,600k JG ¥ 4 Jit

HK$1
Ordinary
1 7o ¥ 78 i

HK$1
Ordinary
19870 % 38 it

HK$10,000
Ordinary
10,0009 Jt 1 48 B

US$1
Ordinary
13709 8 i

S SESAETH
17. 7 W ) 2y v Wy B ¥E (A1)

Percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company
A 4 W) HEAY
JBe A By e
Direct

Hi%

Indirect

[E

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

- 100

Principal

activities

HHEEH

Property

development

LUE 3095

Property
holding
LB SEEc]

Property

development

3 5%

Property
holding
L ESERE]

Property
holding
LB SEEE]

Property

development

LB Y

Property
holding
L ESER]

Property

development

U s
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Year ended 31 March 2013 & —Z4FE=H=4+—H

17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. 7% B 2 7 iy B ¥ (A1)

(continued)

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends or to M - S S R R AT I Ay S R S B B o A JERE
receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting of B R B A T 2 AT AT K B 4 s
the company or to participate in any distribution on winding-up. RGeS LS s A BT A

FHEAT 53R -

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company LRI E R AR AR EARY

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected B AH B A R [ R A 2 AR R

the results for the year or formed a substantial portion AT o R > FIHHABKE AR 2 &

of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other B EZCE BRI -

subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result

in particulars of excessive length.

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED  18. jA 3t [ % i B0 8% vy 8t &
ENTITIES

Group

A% 45 [
2013 2012
Notes HKS$’000 HK$’000
Hf T#x T
Share of net assets REAL & 2 A R (a) 115,402 84,590
Goodwill on acquisition W I 2 A W v (b) 26,621 26,621
142,023 111,211
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Year ended 31 March 2013
18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED

ENTITIES (continued)

Particulars of the jointly-controlled entities are as follows:

Name

i

Excel-China Harbour

Joint Venture

625 v o o 1 I

Able E & M Engineering
Limited

ZHME LRARA R

Leighton-Able Joint
Venture

8 — 2 PRI

Team Great Limited
(“Team Great”)

Fungs E & M Engineering
Company Limited

U5 R E TRARA A

Business

structure

2

Body
unincorporate

3 I 3 1 1

Limited
company

|

Body
unincorporate

3 I 3 1 P

Limited
company

A FRA T

Limited
company

AR T

Place of
incorporation
ik
W S

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
&

British
Virgin
Islands
B Ji A4 T
TR

Hong Kong
RS

The above investments in jointly-controlled entities are

indirectly held by the Company.

ZF=E=H=1+—H

18. 4 3% Il % ) T 8 09 B B (A7)

emEH EE RN
Percentage of
Bidlia By e
Ownership Voting Profit
interest power sharing
AR BEEHE AR
70 50 70
50 50 50
49 50 49
40 50 40
40 50 40

Principal

activities

EHEH

Engineering
works

contractor

TRER

Engineering
works

contractor

TR A&

Building
construction
contractor
M
ZoNi)

Investment
holding
BE R

Engineering
works

contractor

T2 A A v

e o A e e I ) T B 4 4 AR
AFEFAH -
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Year ended 31 March 2013

18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED
ENTITIES (continued)

Notes:

(a)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s jointly-controlled entities:

ZF=E=H=1+—H

18. 4 36 I 4 ) BT 1 0y B ¥E (A7)

Wi :

(a)

A BT AR T O ) 47 ) T O IR S B B

Group
AL
2013 2012
s CEmo—
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Share of the jointly-controlled 434 3k ) 2 ) 8 Y
entities’ assets and liabilities: GEAME:
Current assets B 148,632 186,960
Non-current assets JEF B G A 48,470 27,333
Current liabilities R N=R (77,324) (125,375)
Non-current liabilities I B £ £ (4,376) (4,328)
Net assets jgrRei 115,402 84,590
Share of the jointly-controlled 434l e [ e ) A
entities’ results: ES
Revenue e A 539,653 397,128
Other income A A 170 7
539,823 397,135
Total expenses HBH S (503,444) (343,513)
Income tax expense B #5852 (5,567) (8,862)
Profit after tax W Bt 4% 2 A1) 30,812 44,760

(b)  The Group’s goodwill on acquisition of jointly-controlled entities
as at 31 March 2013 arose from the acquisition of Team Great
and its subsidiary, which is an electrical and building services
engineering cash-generating unit of the Group. Further details of
the acquisition are set out in note 32 to the financial statements.

Impairment of goodwill

The recoverable amount of the electrical and building services
engineering cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projects based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by Management.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections was 14.89%
(2012: 14.89%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a growth rate of 2.49% (2012: 2.49%). In the
opinion of the directors, no impairment loss against the goodwill
is considered necessary as the recoverable amount of the Group’s
interest in this cash-generating unit is higher than its carrying
amount.
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(b)

MN-F—Z4EZH=1—H > REE YOI
[ 42 ) B A W R R U Team Grear &
FL B A R A A > %A ) R AR ) T
Bbge R TAE B4 HH0 - A B
TE I o — 2B R O B B R R R 32 o

[Raa i

TE M S b R 5 TR B 4 s i B0 A T i ]
SR DA G B A S A B - SRR A
A TG b 14 A B 0 B 5 TR R B
AR TER R E o B4 s i B i e dr
BIAR R 14.89% (2 — T4F : 14.89%) » TL4F
DI M Bl TR B IR R R X2 49% (ZF—Z
AF 2 2.49%) HEEIRH o EER L BN A
5] % 5% B 4 7 HH B T A RE 2% A AT M I A T
TAFCHR T A RA > R Ik Rk S ZE A R BT R
{H &4 -
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Year ended 31 March 2013 —&E—=4#=H=+—H
18. INVESTMENTS IN JOINTLY-CONTROLLED  18. 3t [l ¥ i) 25 #8 09 80 & (%)

ENTITIES (continued)
Notes: (continued) A

(¢)  The amounts due from/to jointly-controlled entities included in (c)
the Group’s current assets/liabilities are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed terms of repayment.

(d) The Group had discontinued the recognition of its share of loss (d)
of one of its jointly-controlled entities because the Group’s share
of loss of that jointly-controlled entity exceeded the Group’s
investment in that jointly-controlled entity. The amount of the
Group’s unrecognised share of loss of that jointly-controlled entity

2 (#7)

B A A I R A R e
A 36 17 4% ) B AR SR AR~ 0 B S e 1]

E SR

A A [ A5 2k T A — M1 o I 4% )
PR HE > PR A 5 1B A i L ) 9% i 6 R
JHes T A0 A A 7 5 B R R EE B o
AR G A A AR BE T RO R HE R ME AN 3% 3k W)
o ) BT 0 s 1E 4 B 52,836,000 06 (=&

for the current year and cumulatively was HK$2,836,000 (2012: — AR ) o
Nil).
19. CONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION AND 19. # 5 ~ B KL b TR &0
OTHER CONTRACTS
Group
7 4
2013 2012
Y- St R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 TF# T
Gross amount due from customers JEW R P 2Z A2 TR
for contract works A 447,540 259,192
Contract costs incurred plus B # R A T B R B e R 2 ¥R A
recognised profits less recognised VIR TR O R 2 s 1B
losses to date 5,381,723 5,904,783
Less: Progress billings W s HE R B K OE (4,934,183) (5,645,591)
447,540 259,192
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ZF=E=H=1+—H

20. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. R WE
Group
A 4R 1
2013 2012
e St TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T¥#x
Carrying amount at 1 April P —H R 45 42,223 -
Additions W 76,984 1,057
Transfer from investment WMEfERE R REYE
properties under construction (note 16) (HfiE16) 297,000 —
Transfer from properties held HMHRAEEREZWE
for sale (note 21) (Htit21) - 41,166
Carrying amount at 31 March PEA=Z+—HMRESH 416,207 42,223

All the Group’s properties under development are

expected to be completed within normal operating cycle

and recovered after more than twelve months from the

end of the reporting period.

All the Group’s properties under development are located

in Hong Kong and are held under long term leases.

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s properties under
development with an aggregate carrying amount of
HK$416,207,000 (2012: HK$42,223,000) were pledged
to secure general banking facilities granted to the Group

(note 27).
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TR P A7 AR S5 [ 3 e v A S 1 R IE K
BRWINSERR > 7 R AR - A
HEB -

Jiv A A S 0 0 % e P SE 3 AR A > HLDL
RMHEEAH5H -

MNoF—=ZFZA=+—H > A% EEH
& i 3£416,207,0008 00 (ZF — 4 ¢
42,223,000 7T ) 11 58 J v 4y 3 A AR 42 [
2 — F SR AT Rl & A HEHR (B RE27) o
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Year ended 31 March 2013

ZF=E=H=1+—H

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 21. A2
Group
|
2013 2012
e St TR T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T#x
Carrying amount at 1 April P —H R 45 43,165 82,124
Additions NE 7,006 2,207
Transfer to properties under B R Y 3 (M EE20)
development (note 20) - (41,166)
Carrying amount at 31 March REA=Z+—HET & 50,171 43,165

At 31 March 2013, the Group’s properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of HK$50,171,000
(2012: HK$43,165,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

The Group’s properties held for sale are situated in Hong
Kong and held under medium term leases.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable consist of receivables for contract
works and rentals under operating leases. The payment
terms of contract works receivables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts. Rentals are normally receivable in

advance.

At 31 March 2013, retentions receivable included in
accounts receivable amounted to HK$155,896,000 (2012:
HK$117,927,000), which are repayable within terms
ranging from two to three years.

At 31 March 2013, the Group assigned its financial
benefits under certain contract works to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27) and
as at 31 March 2013, the aggregate amount of accounts
receivable related to such contract works pledged to

secure the relevant banking facilities amounted to

HK$277,830,000 (2012: HK$34,872,000).

22.

R_F—=ZF=H=+—H > KEHE
T E A 3550,171,0008 70 (=8 — 4 ¢
43,165,000 70) B F¢ A 1 8 Z o 2 A AE
A A R 2 — M SRAT A5 R Al A (B R
27) °

ASR B R A A B 2 I AR AW > H DL
IR A

R o W %

HE WO 45 P 0 TR A L S L e 2 M
WO o £ 40 TR REWOROR 2 3 AR AT
Wil 4 P T W) o L JB ZEC 90 L o

PR -EZEEZH=ET—H o BRIERT A
35 HE U5 A B3 3K JE 155,896,000 o6 (—&F—
4 1 117,927,000% 76) > R AWM 2 —
FZAERE o

WoB—=ZA=ZA=Z+H—H > REEGHLR
T A A AR R i DUIRS R
TAREE N —BBATRE (FF3E27) s R
F-ZH=ZA=Z+-H ARBEAAT
2 1 3 DA BT DA A A TR SRAT A L
M K 48 AR %5 277,830,000 T (B — 4F ¢
34,872,000 75) ©
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Year ended 31 March 2013 & —Z4FE=H=4+—H

22. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (continued) 22. HEWCHR K (78)
The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not 7 AR 1] ke £ A R s YL P AR IR it
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is SATIE ¢
as follows:
Group
A 4R 1M
2013 2012
e S G St 2
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Past due but not impaired: 78 110 S 4 R A -
One to three months past due w1 E3EA 3,742 6,649
Four to six months past due 4z 6l H 1,297 83
Opver six months past due B oM A 5,033 8,057
10,072 14,789
Neither past due nor impaired 1B 4 36 1) 7 42 AL 476,930 384,776
487,002 399,565
Accounts receivable that were past due but not impaired 76 191 4EL Sl 91 9 4L 0 M WBOIR 3K 5 A BR A T S
relate to a number of independent customers that have FF > WERAREIMR S NGB o R
a good track record with the Group. Based on past VAR » RAFIERR R > %540 A
experience, the directors of the Company are of the AR URAE A - BT A A5 B R R
opinion that no allowance for impairment is necessary 5 > HAT AR 2 T 2 SOl Il A R A A o AR R
in respect of these balances as there has not been a VB ST 9 R % 2 45 B A AR A IR i B AL
significant change in credit quality and the balances are FH 38 4% o
still considered fully recoverable. The Group did not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancement over these
balances.
Accounts receivable that are neither past due nor IO 400 24 200 7 90 DL 1o B R T B U &2 1
impaired relate to a number of independent customers for TS % 5 AH B > 4 4 S 0 00T 1) R e 8

whom there was no recent history of default.
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Year ended 31 March 2013

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

23, TEAT K ~ 4 B S b M ek

RECEIVABLES
Group
¥ |
2013 2012
RS R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Prepayments TE A 3 H 26,993 47,749
Deposits and other receivables ¥t 4 T oAb JE Wk 50,488 24,647
77,481 72,396

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.

The financial assets included in the above balances relate

to receivables for which there was no recent history of

default.

24.

e A R 0 2 B0 A S A o bt A R T
5% 110 < S S T AT I S 88 20 9 R AR 5k v B

WO -

PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH 24. C#MARX LB S RIS %MHY

EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
AL Y /NG|
2013 2012 2013 2012
TR AR G- S TR AR —E -
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#7x F#or T#7x F#or
Pledged time deposits against % #8417 %5 2 U JEAE
bank overdraft facilities TR0 Y 2 Bk - 1,075 - -
Cash and cash equivalents: B4 RBLEEEY
Cash and bank balances B4 R SRAT K5 B 240,635 339,253 1,489 671
Non-pledged time deposits  HEHE I & 77 3 125,070 20,073 - -
365,705 359,326 1,489 671

The time deposits pledged to banks were to secure
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 27).

152

general

ST KR P T 8T AR R A I 2
R ERAT B M OR (BREEE2T)
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Year ended 31 March 2013

24. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH

25.

EQUIVALENTS (continued)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged
deposits are deposited with banks with high credit ratings
and no recent history of default.

ACCOUNTS AND BILLS PAYABLE
An ageing analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at
the end of the reporting period is as follows:

25.

CFSE=H=H
24.

kMR RBERAEFHDY
(%)

MATE ST H AT 50N R E
7 B R SR B IUR 8, o 300 R 19 42 K 1) 9 A
ol REZMA AR BLPAGE R
IR B0 1 o Sl 9 A% R A T A R R R I
AR o SRAT A % B KA 3K0% 17 T A 3 4
W1 OR BT SR AN ~ 5 R AR R BRAT o

R4 Wi K B 5 9%
T TR A MRk B S R Y R 6 23 T
T

Group

7 41 [
2013 2012
ot St o SR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#x T
Current — 3 months B — 318 H 531,781 485,954
4 — 6 months 4—o6fl H 35,361 21,108
Over 6 months o A 99,302 60,691
666,444 567,753

At 31 March 2013, retentions payable included in
accounts and bills payable amounted to HK$151,139,000
(2012: HK$97,663,000), which are normally settled

within terms ranging from two to three years.

Accounts and bills payable are non-interest-bearing. The
payment terms are stipulated in the relevant contracts.
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MoB—ZFEZH=1—H > BATIRHR RS
58 o 4 355 HE A R B 3R AR151,139,0009 76 (—
F— T4 1 97,663,000800) » — R 5
TR

JE Ak MRk B 55 0 s et R, o AR kR
B H s ET B
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26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 26. Al HE Ak B LB B
Group Company
A H Y /AT

2013 2012 2013 2012
TR -S| DR | DR-=244| D208
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#C Fi# T T# L Fi#or
Other payables A JRE A 35k 18,858 18,573 285 348
Accruals A 3,257 3,021 - -
22,115 21,594 285 348
Other payables are non-interest-bearing and are expected HAEA KA » WA — SR EE -

217.

to be settled within one year.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS 27. wh B 8T 8K
Group
A% 45 [
2013 2012
Y- St R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# T
Current b U]
Bank loans — secured and at SRAT Sk — A A K
floating interest rates R B R R R S 408,202 289,475
Long term bank loans repayable A SR R Y R U SRAT Rk
on demand — secured and at — A HRH R di v B A R
floating interest rates (note) AR B (M AE) 136,088 152,762
544,290 442,237
Non-current E ]
Bank loans — secured and at SRAT B K — A BRI ik
floating interest rates TR R EH AR R 123,428 442,400
667,718 884,637
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Year ended 31 March 2013
27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

ZF=E=H=1+—H

27. vt B 8T £k (81)

(continued)
Group
A 4R 1M
2013 2012
R4 e St ot
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x F#x
Analysed into: ST A
Bank loans repayable: SATE - HEBWT -
Within one year or on demand (note) —4F N B SR R (M ) 544,290 442,237
In the second year BN 12,491 208,233
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BEFHEN (BHFEEREME) 38,182 65,962
Beyond five years HAED, L 72,755 168,205
667,718 884,637

Note: As further explained in note 37 to the financial statements, the
Group’s term loans with an aggregate amount of HK$136,088,000
(2012: HK$152,762,000) containing an on-demand clause have
been classified as current liabilities. For the purpose of the above
analysis, the loans are included within current interest-bearing
bank loans and analysed into bank loans repayable within one year
or on demand.

Bt i A s e B 3 T 9 BT — B AR R > AR
45 8 4% %5 136,088,000 78 ( R — 4R ¢
152,762,0009 76 ) 1 2 W B3k (GRAT He2Eok
B A IR k) R BRI B A o it
B8 T = < & 2 A R s X
BN o ST — 4 SR R R Y

Based on the maturity terms of the loans, the amounts repayable in
respect of the loans are:

AT R -

R4 0K I 2 Ik > SR T AR I
Wk

Group

A AR
2013 2012
e St o TR
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# F#oT
Within one year or on demand — AT P9 g B R i A R 408,202 289,474
In the second year AN 90,261 297,921
In the third to fifth years, inclusive BEEREN (BB ERMEE) 74,806 104,233
Beyond five years HED L 94,449 193,009
667,718 884,637
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Year ended 31 March 2013

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

(continued)

The interest rates of the Group’s bank loans are primarily
repriced every month based on prime rate or HIBOR or
LIBOR changes.

The Group’s secured bank loans are secured by:

(i) legal charges over the Group’s investment properties,
which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end
of the reporting period of HK$408,000,000 (2012:
HK$943,000,000);

(ii) legal charges over the Group’s land and buildings,
which had an aggregate carrying amount at the end
of the reporting period of HK$111,659,000 (2012:
HK$114,932,000);

(iii) legal charges over the Group’s hotel under
construction, which had an aggregate carrying

amount at the end of the reporting period of

HK$232,111,000 (2012: HK$174,839,000);

(iv) legal charges over the Group’s properties held for
development, which had an aggregate carrying
amount at the end of the reporting period of

HK$250,000,000 (2012: HK$250,000,000);

(v) legal charges over the Group’s properties under
development, which had an aggregate carrying

amount at the end of the reporting period of

HK$416,207,000 (2012: HK$42,223,000);

(vi) legal charges over the Group’s properties held
for sale, which had a carrying value at the end
of the reporting period of HK$50,171,000 (2012:
HK$43,165,000);

ZF=E=H=1+—H

27. vt B 8T £k (81)

A 55 [ SRAT SR A R 23 7 AL o A R R
9 ST 7] SE R S A B SR AT W] SE 97 B )
[REZEPER: k- i

ACER A HE AP BRAT Bk DL R BIE H AR

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

T 34 1 AR 48 R T 1B %% 408,000,0009 76
(—F—4F 1 943,000,000 50) Z A4
EES-g//E i F ik i FH

245 [ b R d g B T ED N
HHIR > HAEIRMEE 2 111,659,000% 0
T T4 1 114,932,000 50) 3

AR A5 AR A MR TG %% 232,111,0009 78
R AL B A P R e W (2R
— 4F 1 174,839,000 7C) 3

AREBEEEHEBREZYEN L EMH
oo R R Y R T 4 B AT
#250,000,000% 76 (ZF — 24 ¢
250,000,000% 78) 3

AR B R A e i R R
TR W R T 4 B A R 45416,207,0009
JG (R — T4F £ 42,223,000 78) 5

A R 1) oK MR A £50,171,000% 5
(T — T4F £ 43,165,000 50 ) A 45
EHFEAEEEEZHENE T
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CFSE=H=H
27. it B AT £ (A1)

Year ended 31 March 2013

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS

(continued)

(vii)the pledge of certain of the Group’s time deposits
amounting to HK$1,075,000 as at 31 March 2012;
and

(viii)the assignment of the Group’s financial benefits
under certain contract works with an aggregate
accounts receivable amounted to HK$277,830,000
(2012: HK$34,872,000) as at 31 March 2013.

In addition, the Company has provided corporate
guarantees against certain of the Group’s banking
facilities to the extent of HK$1,988,324,000 (2012:
HK$1,892,304,000) as at 31 March 2013.

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in Hong Kong

dollars.

In the opinion of the directors, the carrying amounts of

the Group’s bank loans approximate to their fair values.
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ViR ZE—HE=ZH=+—HAH
1,075,0009 70 = A 45 B 25 1 28 1 47 3K 1A
B R

(vii)) B EARAAREIA S TEETRAGHZ
MHEMNE R R -=E=FE=A=1—
H > A B BURSK G525 277,830,0009

JG (% — U 34,872,000 78)

WA s RZF—ZAEEH=1—H > RAH
Fy AR H 2 T R AT b B PR 6% 1,988,324,000
Wt (ZF— 4 1 1,802,304,0009 00 ) Z 2
AR

A SR [ 1 SRAT Bk DAV T Ay BLAL o

2 SR S50 BRI 2
AR -
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28. DEFERRED TAX
The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities with

the net balance recognised in the consolidated statement

Year ended 31 March 2013

ZF=E=H=1+—H

28. ¥ #E Bt H

TR AR JBE P9 A £ B 2 1R O 3 o e ) R A
BLIE (& ) /1 B AL IS0 0 % 130 45 B DA %

of financial position and the movements during the year AREHWT -
are as follows:
Group
A4
Depreciation Losses available
allowance in for offsetting
excess of related Revaluation  against future
depreciation  of properties  taxable profits Total
gl WHGR A K
BB 7 4 HEE R B e
it R BB LRT/ES Z ki #i ik
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#x T#7x T#x
(Restated) (Restated)
(B E5]) (B H %))
At 1 April 2011 R_F——HNA—H 4,542 303 (3,679) 1,166
Deferred tax charged REERTE
to profit or loss of the statement R BAFI B
of comprehensive income BB (HfE10)
during the year (note 10) 571 84 572 1,227
At 31 March 2012 and 1 April 2012 RE-F-ZHZA=1—H 5,113 387 (3,107) 2,393
RZZ—-"HNA—H
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REFERME / (FEA)
to profit or loss of the statement ZWRA RN B
of comprehensive income BB (HfE10)
during the year (note 10) (1,091) 85 2,743 1,737
At 31 March 2013 RE-F-ZHZA=1—H 4,022 472 (364) 4,130
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28. MEHEBLIH (%)

Year ended 31 March 2013

28. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The following is an analysis of the
deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting
purposes:

Z VR & > 5T IR A B A B A AR AR
EMBERAENCELHIEE - T A%
V9] 20 A0 56 JE 45 % % B B R A& 1 4
#ro:

2013 2012
e St O S~
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#x F#x
(Restated)
(RH#HF)
Net deferred tax assets recognised A MERIEN
in the consolidated statement T 2 1 208 A 3 T
of financial position 396 -
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised T 55 A B B R DL 2% W e R
in the consolidated statement ) 9 42 5 T B A6 v A
of financial position (4,526) (2,393)
(4,130) (2,393)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$71,460,000 (2012: HK$86,698,000). Subject to
the final assessment of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department, these tax losses are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets have
been recognised in respect of HK$2,206,000 (2012:
HK$18,830,000) of such losses. Deferred tax assets have
not been recognised in respect of the remaining amount
of HK$69,254,000 (2012: HK$67,868,000) as it is not
considered probable that there would be sufficient future
taxable profits to utilise such amount.

At 31 March 2013 and 2012, there was no significant
unrecognised deferred tax liability for taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain of the
Group’s subsidiaries or joint ventures as the Group has
no liability to additional tax should such amounts be
remitted.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders.
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A 4R [ A s A 2 B s 4 471,460,000
WIT (B — T4F £ 86,698,000 TT) © £E
WHLE R R AT BLAR > IS BRI 1R Tt
R 100 1K 8 2 2 s 1H = 4 W) 2 R AR ME R B R
Fl o A 23 W] BB % 55 5 152,206,000% 76 (Z
F— T4F 1 18,830,0009 70 ) i 5 38 4L Bl IE %
B o HHR RS AR KT BB R A A 40 JE RRABG
11 DL HG 8 R A > Wik 2 R Bk 3K 69,254,000
Wt (2T — 4 : 67,868,0008 0 ) e 58 i

R-F=F R F-HF=ZA=Z1+—H>
AR 1] O S 2 ) e A 3 R T SR R
A T A 55 R A KR i D S B AT
PRI SHE 480 2% 5 R 8 A iy B0 A 42 e A A
BlIH £ £ -

A ) Ty B R S A T B A i E A P AR B AR
% o
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Year ended 31 March 2013 =& —=4#F=H=4—H
29. SHARE CAPITAL 29. JBEAR
Shares I 4y
2013 2012
SR Z4E SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
Fi#x F T
Authorised: W R
4,000,000,000 ordinary shares 4,000,000,000/8 ¥ % Thi {8
of HK$0.025 each 0.025% 6 Z % 18 ik 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: OB AT I OB AR
1,511,664,400 (2012: 1,498,371,600) 1,511,664,4008 ( 2 — —4F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.025 each 1,498,371,6008 ) 4 i i
0.025%s 70 2 % 78 it 37,792 37,459

During the year, the subscription rights attaching
to 13,292,800 share options were exercised at the
subscription prices of HK$0.400 per share (2012:
1,500,000 and 120,000 share options at the subscription
price of HK$0.400 and HK$0.165 per share, respectively),
resulting in the issue of 13,292,800 (2012: 1,620,000)
shares of HK$0.025 each for a total cash consideration,
before expenses, of HK$5,318,000 (2012: HK$620,000).

During the year, an amount of HK$1,999,000 (2012:
HK$230,000) was transferred from the share option
reserve to the share premium account upon the exercise

of the share options.

ACEE BE 5 B A 13,292,800 i B HE b Y 52 Ik
HE 22 BRUH5: JBE0.400% I8 19 R I AT (=%
— 4 1 1,500,000 £ 120,00017 i it HE I
Py 52 I W 43 3 4 BR A 040095 T J20.165 %%
JG 1 58 B AT ) > IR O B AT A R T M A
0.025W T I e 13,292,800/ ( & — —4F -
1,620,000/8) » A1k # F i 48 B 4 (R %
5,318,000 7C (- — —4F : 620,000 78 ) ©

T A AR S s T T R AT 0 B > &

1,999,000 7C (=& — 4 : 230,000% 72)
EH S J5E AR £ 8 o N BB 0 AR R o
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29. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 29. AR (78)
Shares (continued) B py (48)
A summary of the transactions during the year with ARARJE b AR B AR oy B AT I AR Y
reference to the above movement in the Company’s BEHREWT
issued ordinary share capital is as follows:
Number Share
of shares Issued premium
in issue capital account Total
CEAT R B ) Jt 4y
W¥H JBe A% Tt 1 MR Ak
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F# F# F#x
At 1 April 2011 BoFE—-—FNHA—H 1,496,751,600 37,419 173,379 210,798
Share options exercised — T47 1 I i I HE 1,620,000 40 580 620
Transfer from share A AR YN
option reserve - - 230 230
At 31 March 2012 R-F—-ZHF£=ZH=+—H
and 1 April 2012 N _F—-T"4MEWNH—H 1,498,371,600 37,459 174,189 211,648
Share options exercised — TWA7 {3 4 i i A 13,292,800 333 4,985 5,318
Transfer from share i JE R £ £ N
option reserve - - 1,999 1,999
At 31 March 2013 R-F—=Z4£=ZH=+—H 1,511,664,400 37,792 181,173 218,965
Share options ik JB
Details of the Company’s share option schemes are AN ) T R ) A R RS B RS R B
included in note 30 to the financial statements. 30
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Year ended 31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 7 September
2011, the shareholders of the Company approved the
termination of the existing share option scheme (the
“Old Scheme”) and the adoption of a new share option
scheme (the “New Scheme”) (collectively known as
the “Schemes”). As a result, the Company can no
longer grant any further options under the Old Scheme.
However, all options granted prior to the termination
of the Old Scheme will remain in full force and effect.
Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the New
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from the date of

adoption.

The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the New Scheme include full-time employees, including
any executive and non-executive directors of the Group.
The New Scheme became effective on 7 September 2011
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain

in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the New Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of
the total number of shares of the Company in issue as
at the date when the New Scheme was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in a general meeting. The
maximum number of shares issuable under share options
to each eligible participant in the New Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’

approval in a general meeting.

MR —F——4FILA LA @B Rk
RS o AN ) B SR v A% b B A I TR T )
(TRt 1) B bR AR T JBCRE T ) (15t a8 1)
(R 2 [5HE 1) o e > A B AS ] AR 55
B wH BB T AL HE— B R - AR > A
Ak 8 i R4 T 6 B BB R B
R BARR < Frat# BSR4 H I 1048
A2 BRIE S A e Ak B L -

Wiat#lZ B > B 1B AR SR B AR 2 R
e hE Rk Z & #% 2 BE G T i A 5
JBh o HiEt B Z B2 T RS AREZ 2
WkOE B > QAR AT RIE BT - rat
IR =TI B H AR BRI RE
RESH BB R A > WA A A% R AR A
RO By 4 o

48507 5T ) 0 A0 2 AR AT R G R R
Bz im B » B —FEH SRR K
B b A oy ] B R e R R ) 2 H AR A ]
ELBEAT A B8 10% 2 3K 8 o AEAT AT+ {F
J3 300 ) 9 AR R B R o R BT R 2 AL A
H s 2 BE TR AT e e e
H > DIARA R AR I Z T8 AT B 1% %
R o AT 7 46— 2 5% Y i 2 0Lt B ) 2 St
JEHE B RO IR SRR € b ot o
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Year ended 31 March 2013

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive,
officer or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to
any of their associates, are subject to approval in advance
by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or
an independent non-executive director of the Company,
or to any of their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time or with an
aggregate value (based on the price of the Company’s
shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million,
within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 14 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors and ends on a date which
is not later than 10 years from the date of the offer of the

share options.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable
by the directors, but should not be less than the highest
of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange daily quotation sheet on the
date of grant of the share options; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding
the date of the offer; and (iii) the nominal value of the
shares of the Company.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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30. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 30. Ji B A st 0 (%)
The following share options were outstanding under the T GRE ST > AR BE NG ARAT R Y B RE G
Schemes during the year: T
2013 2012
e St o TR
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options | exercise price of options
A7 18 1 ik B T Ji e A
JmRE 1 35 ¥ H TRE - 2 8 8 H
HKS$ ’000 HK$ 000
per share per share
IR T TH IR T Tt
At beginning of year THAER] 0.397 16,486 0.511 25,606
Exercised during the year RN AT 0.400 (13,293) 0.383 (1,620)
Lapsed during the year AR SRR 0.382 (3,193) 0.790 (7,500)
At end of year PR - - 0.397 16,486
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise T AR AT PE PO I AT A SRR R AT H 30
for share options exercised during the year was HK$0.467 REV-35 I Ay B s s T 046 TH T (= —
(2012: HK$0.307) per share. A2 0.307H#TE) o
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share TR IHIR > W AR AT 8 B AR P AT B AT
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period T -

are as follows:

Number of options

ik JBE A B H
Exercise price*
per share 2013 2012
RRATHAME A e St
Exercise period HK$
A7 1) .
07/06/2007 to 06/06/2012 0.165 - 240,000
03/09/2007 to 02/09/2012 0.400 - 16,245,600
- 16,485,600
* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment * WRA BB SR AT BB AT > il A F) A8
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the A AN A2 Y > iR PR ARE P AT (A T B

e .

Company’s share capital.
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31. RESERVES 31. i s
(a) Group (a) AHEH
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the 7 £ [ e AR A BE % DA 48 BE 2 ikl sk
movements therein for the current and prior years are BAtk s B O 2P R AR S B 3R o
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity.
The Group’s contributed surplus represents the AR E Z BABAERTITRAEAR N E B b
excess of the nominal value of the shares and the T AT AR SR A 4 I E A WO Z M A Rl 2
share premium account of the subsidiaries acquired T Ay i L S P Ay ¥ 1 R AR R AE M S
pursuant to the Group reorganisation prior to the i BB 2 ) =2 I T B8 AT 2 A A ] JBe Ay T
listing of the Company’s shares, over the nominal N T
value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange
therefor.
(b) Company (b) A4
Share Share
premium  Contributed option Retained
account surplus reserve profits Total
Joe B e BOABR  WCHE PR B A HE
Notes HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
3 T#xL T#L T#x T#x T#xL
At 1 April 2011 REZ——HENA—H 173,379 63,948 4,681 6,352 248,360
Total comprehensive loss A2 A
for the year - - - (1,189) (1,189)
Exercise of share options T R A 0 29 580 - - - 580
Transfer upon exercise ORI A 17 68 1 45
of share options 29 230 - (230) - -
Transfer of share option TR T e o
reserve upon lapse T T R e
of share options - - (1,998) 1,998 -
At31 March 2012 and REZZ-ZHEZA=+H
1 April 2012 RZZ—"HNA—H 174,189 63,948 1453 7,161 247,751
Total comprehensive loss A2 T A
for the year - - - (1,124) (1,124)
Exercise of share options i R 17 8 29 4,985 - - - 4,985
Transfer upon exercise TR B I M 17 6 i 45
of share options 29 1,999 - (1,999) - -
Transfer of share option TR T e o
reserve upon lapse i I BB 1
of share options - - (454) 454 -
At 31 March 2013 REF-ZEZA=Z+H 181,173 63,948 - 6,491 251,612
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31. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents
the excess of the nominal value of the shares of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares, over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued in exchange therefor. Under the
Bermuda Companies Act 1981, the Company
may make distributions to its members out of the

contributed surplus in certain circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments transactions in note 2.4 to
the financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
retained profits should the related options expire or

be forfeited.

32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Acquisition of jointly-controlled entities

Year ended 31 March 2012

On 19 September 2011, the Group entered into an
acquisition agreement (the “Acquisition Agreement”)
with Mr. Fung Chuen (“Mr. Fung”), an independent
third party, to acquire 40% equity interests of Team
Great at a cash consideration of HK$55,200,000 (the
“Fungs Acquisition”). Team Great, together with its
wholly-owned subsidiary, Fungs E&M Engineering
Company Limited, are principally engaged in electrical
and building services engineering works in Hong Kong.

The completion of the Fungs Acquisition took place on 2
December 2011.

ZF=E=H=1+—H

31. it il (79)

(b)

A2l (51)

AV Z ANBERTIHR A B AR L
AR 43¢ 74 458 1 A WA O < o Jo 2 ] By
2 TH (LA A 7 A % S WA D A W) 2 e
T B AT Z A2 T ey T 2 9843 o AR
FHE—JUNAE AT > KA F AR
A THOUT B SONTER LB A
MR e

S B B 48 P L9 T~ e R AT O S T
HEZ A FARUAE A R o 3 S A S 785 i Wi
E2. 43 DL B 7 B B B 2 A 22 5 Rk
SRR RE o R IR U e AT AR o AR
BN B e B R > 235 R B e J
B S AR > DR B R A

32. B Bl AL R WGk

W e 3 I o) T
REZZ-H=ZA=ZF—HILEE

7w
=

F— LA TILE > ACHE B S
WG RS ([ 58 2 1) RT S WA tih v

([ e 1 tn 1) > DLW Team Greatf940%
Je A HE 2 > A B B 4 AR % 55,200,0009 7T
([ R IE ]) ° Team Grear S I 2 % [t
J§ 2 V) U PR B TR AR A A B AR A W
FE M ST R AR o U5 IR I
RN _F——F+TH_H%H -
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32. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 32. B Bl AW R R ()
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

Acquisition of jointly-controlled entities (continued)

Year ended 31 March 2012 (continued)
The assets and liabilities acquired by the Group on the

WO 3 I % o ()
BRE-Z-THE=ZA=1— HIREE (8)
56 18 H 391 A 45 J o W50 1 5 A B BTN T

date of completion were as follows:

2012
TR T
HK$’000
T¥#7x
The Group’s share of net identifiable A [ AN B VT R R A
assets at fair value A AL 28,579
Goodwill [ 26,621
Satisfied by cash PLBL 4 32 A 55,200
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents Ble T B & S v i
included in cash flows from BREAEREEFEZHSRE
investing activities 55,200

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
(a) At 31 March 2013, the guarantees given

33. AR AR
(a) MOB—ZEZH=+—H > AEER

by the Group to certain banks in respect of
performance bonds in favour of certain contract
customers amounted to HK$83,014,000 (2012:
HK$63,317,000).

At 31 March 2013, the Company has given
guarantees in favour of certain banks to the extent
of HK$1,988,324,000 (2012: HK$1,892,304,000) in
respect of banking facilities granted by those banks
to certain subsidiaries of the Company, of which
HK$753,549,000 (2012: HK$947,955,000) was

utilised.

At 31 March 2013, the Company had given
unlimited performance guarantees in favour of
a customer for contract work (the “Contract
Customer”) in respect of losses, claims, damages,
costs and expenses caused by non-compliance with
the terms and conditions of the construction contract
entered into between the Group and the Contract
Customer.
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33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (continued)

(b) In the ordinary course of the Group’s construction

business, the Group has been subject to a number of
claims due to personal injuries suffered by employees
of the Group or the Group’s subcontractors in
accidents arising out of and in the course of their
employment. The directors are of the opinion that
such claims are well covered by insurance and would
not result in any material adverse impact on the
financial position or results and operations of the
Group.

34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
16) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to three years.
The terms of the leases generally also require the

tenants to pay rental deposits.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating leases with its tenants falling due as

follows:

33. skAR ALl ()
(b) TEAMEEZ H W E S 51

AR 1 A A 1 43 1 R 2 R PR 32 e 40
1A 2208 T A DL S 32 A5 T 1) A SR T SR A o
R R A B R R R B 2 R
B> WA B AR A R 4 B IR
VEE S VS S 2 A RUE O]
W -

34. MEBMEBE L
(a) MR mAA

ACAR AR R AR A I PR Y L B
% (WMfakle) - MEZMBEM A 4%
AR o MR MOR IR AP A
BE-

REF-ZHZA=Z+—H > REEM
R B ARAH N ST A T 8 A AL
T B 2 45 1 WA A L 5 ok A 2B
T

Group
A
2013 2012
R AR - S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xL T T
Within one year —4E R 10,409 20,155
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 ~ZFT4F (B EHRWA) 7,038 18,564
17,447 38,719
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34. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b) As lessee (b)
The Group leases certain of its office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Leases for
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one

to four years.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had total future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable

34. MEME R (H)

fie 2y R RLA
AR AR 4 A AL B K R AL T
K3k o MY E Z SN P
—E Y4 o

ROR-ZE=ZHA=T—H o REER
RS AT 8 AL AL T B 2 H AR HE A

operating leases falling due as follows: AR B A SR A T -
Group
A 45
2013 2012
TR 4R R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T # F#T
Within one year —4EN 5,478 5,001
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 5 ~ 258 F4FE (B H R W) 1,521 3,324
6,999 8,325
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. WA TR
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed Bk b SR RE34(b) wF At B 588 7 15 7K 56 A »
in note 34(b) above, the Group had the following capital B R > AR AR DR & ARG

commitments at the end of the reporting period:

Group
¥ |
2013 2012
R4 e St ot
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x T
Expenditure for development or MU THECELN
redevelopment projects, contracted, H AR 43 5 2 3% g 5
but not provided for, in respect of: HEHHE Z X
Hotel under construction AE = i )k 5,060 48,496
Properties held for sale FrA 2Pk - 3,035
Properties under development BRhY ¥ 5,359 62,420
Acquisition of the Flower Ocean Group W Flower Ocean
(as defined in note 38) LM (% R HEE3S) 299,064 -
309,483 113,951
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. BT R Y
(a) In addition to the transactions and balances detailed (a) BRAAAMBHREHAT D ik 2 %%

elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had B8 5 B GEERAN > AR A AR AR JBE 1 o B

the following transactions with related parties during B AT R AR 5 ¢

the year:

Group
A 4R 1
2013 2012
e Sy s e St: 2
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt it T # F#oC
Rental income from Lanon R AR A
Development Limited (M5 ]) ez
(“Lanon”) el A (i) 1,704 1,704
Management fee income received A0 A A 1] — 3L [ 42 )
and receivable from Excel-China T MR
Harbour Joint Venture, WHERE WX
a jointly-controlled entity JE W A A
of the Group (ii) 660 250
Subcontracting fee expense paid and RS TR
payable to AR AW K
Able E & M Engineering Company WHIGHE LR
Limited and Fungs E & M ARAFE (FHH
Engineering Company Limited, T AS 4 [ 3t [
both are jointly-controlled entities PERIER) O &
of the Group WE AT 2 43 ) e B S (iii) 129,171 99,685

Notes: Wit -

(i)  Mr. Ngai Wing Yin, the son of Mr. Ngai, who is the (i)  AAE PG B A A B B BOR
chairman of the board of directors of the Company and the B AR 0 5 7 BBUAR J A 7 S A b B
controlling shareholder of the Company, has a controlling Hhl s - AW AT BAEHE
interest in Lanon. The rental income was determined at BLZE AR 2 7% BUAT WAL & 1% > $=2 M
a rate mutually agreed between the Group and Lanon by HEAZBZMEREE -
reference to the prevailing market rate.

(ii) The management fee income is determined with reference to (ii) AEBLE W TS S BT A T S o
the costs incurred.

(iii) The subcontracting fee expense is determined in accordance (iii) 23 40 2 BH 32 7% RS 9 A 45 ) B 3t W) 452
with the subcontracting agreement entered into between the BT S5 A 43 A b T e E o

Group and the jointly-controlled entities.
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TR Y (%)
(continued)
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) A48 1 = 2245 BN B Bl 4
Group
Group
A 4R 1M
2013 2012
TR -S4 G St S
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#x F#x
Short term employee benefits YR B AR A 38,751 38,658
Post-employment benefits ik Tk 12 8 ) 236 216
Total compensation paid to key XA TFEEEEAR
management personnel 114y 48 A 4 38,987 38,874
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included A HEF S0 — PR - BRI
in note 8 to the financial statements. A RES o
The related party transaction in respect of item (a)(i) AR Bk (a) () BE H BB 5 22 5 AN b
above also constitutes a continuing connected transaction T RGE T AR E R FF AL S -

as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. Y 5 M B 4T P H B B BOOR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
The Group’s principal financial instruments include A G5 0 Ak TR LS R ST A K
interest-bearing bank borrowings, accounts and other JRE WAL e ok e L A R SR T~ M A TR R B
receivables, accounts and bills payables, other payables B~ UM R > DL RERAT AR - RS
and bank balances. Details of these financial instruments Sih TH B R o 78 BB R A B R
are disclosed in the respective notes to the financial P o
statements.
The Group’s ordinary activities expose it to various A £E T 1) 98 T B A R T 3 2 B A S R
financial risks, including interest rate risk, credit risk B > £ 45 A 2 R B~ 5 TR B & R B R
and liquidity risk. The risks associated with financial B o 7 B 4 b T L A LB DA R 0 T AR 3% 2
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these JEBEE B SR o AR SO Al o A L S B AR
risks are described below. Management monitors closely 7 452 [H0 o v S Y B 2 SRR o DA R R IR R A
the Group’s exposures to financial risks to ensure R H R U i

appropriate measures are implemented in a timely and

effective manner.
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Year ended 31 March 2013

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group’s debt

obligations with floating interest rates.

At 31 March 2013, it is estimated that an increase/
decrease of 25 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s profit after tax and retained profits by
HK$1,394,000 (2012: HK$1,847,000), arising as a result
of higher/lower interest expense on the Group’s floating-
rate borrowings. There would be no impact on other

components of the Group’s equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period. For the purposes of
the analysis, it is assumed that the amount of variable-
rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period was outstanding throughout the whole year. The
25 basis point increase or decrease represents management
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the period until the reporting date of the next
financial year. The analysis was performed on the same

basis for the year ended 31 March 2012.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
bank balances and time deposits, accounts and other
receivables. The Group’s maximum credit risk exposure
at 31 March 2013 in the event of other parties failing
to perform their obligations is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset as stated in the

consolidated statement of financial position.
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Year ended 31 March 2013

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing
basis. The Group’s accounts receivable from contract
work represent interim payments or retentions certified
by the customers under terms as stipulated in the
contracts and the Group does not hold any collateral
over these receivables. As the Group’s customers in
respect of contract work primarily consist of government
departments and developers or owners with strong
financial backgrounds, management considers that the
risk of irrecoverable receivables from contract work is
not significant. In respect of rentals receivable, to limit
the credit risk exposure, deposits are required of each
tenant upon inception of the leases and monthly rentals
are received in advance. Payments from each tenant are

monitored and collectability is reviewed closely.

At 31 March 2013, the Group had certain concentrations
of credit risk as 53% (2012: 28%) and 91% (2012:
76%) of the total accounts receivable were due from
the Group’s largest external customer and the Group’s
five largest external customers, respectively, within the

contract works segment.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 22 and 23, respectively,

to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to monitor regularly the current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and long term. In addition, banking facilities have been

put in place for contingency purposes.

1% 2 B (47)
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e B3R o ACHE BB Wk 2 B A TRRHR K
Hy AR 20 T R Ak S AT B TR A ke
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RFFACATHRS G o REE B G0 TRE P
B AR BOG R BA KB R 5
JR v B R WO R s o A BB M BT HE W
ZEH TR WA K o A B 4
Ay PG T 3 P 7 B R B > A AR S 2R AL
PR 4ty A R2 e > T AL I BT A WAL o AR
B AR P B RS DL > TR B IAR
w2 A7 AT DI o

MN-F—ZF=ZH=Z1T—H > HREAHL
TR E > M WURE R 53% (ZF—2
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W AR S ] ¥ 35 KA 2 %5 1 B A 4 [ ) LR b
REF > B AR E A #5115 S5 b B -
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual

maturities at the end of the reporting period of the

Group’s financial liabilities, which are based on

contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest

payments computed using contractual rates, or if floating,

based on rates current at the end of the reporting period)

V3

]

CFSE=H=H
37. Vb5 MR e 4 B R B SR ()

U ) 2 4 e B (1)
AT S A SR A 4 BB R R B R
BRA A o TRIIMIRA A RITEBL &R &
(B985 DA A 50 ) R el o 3 T8 ) o > ALt
A 9 AR A 388 A R RS A RS ) T B
B > % % G R AR AR IR AC SR I AT REZEUAE K

and the earliest date that the Group could be required to M R
repay:
Group
A 4R 1M
Within 1 Between Between
year or on 1 and 2 2 and 5 Over
demand years years 5 years Total
LA
B R 1524 2% 54 SHER B
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
T#7T T#xT T#7x T#7x T#7T
At 31 March 2013 RE=F-ZHZA=1+—H
Interest-bearing bank a8 ERAT Bk
loans (note) (HE) 551,808 14,407 42,730 76,982 685,927
Accounts and bills payable JRE A5 B ok M S 9 575,217 66,041 25,186 - 666,444
Accruals of costs for contract HIREAHTREAR
works 67,316 - - - 67,316
Other payables (note 26) Fo b WA 3% (M E26) 18,858 - - - 18,858
Due to a jointly-controlled JE A5 3t [7] 4% il
entity B IE 53,451 - - - 53,451
1,266,650 80,448 67,916 76,982 1,491,996
At 31 March 2012 REF-ZHEZA=FH
Interest-bearing bank loans i B ERAT Bk 455,739 214,248 76,558 179,433 925,978
Accounts and bills payable JE A5 W ok T S 48 519,216 28,696 19,841 - 567,753
Accruals of costs for contract FHIREH TRRRA
works 102,831 - - - 102,831
Other payables (note 26) F At A 3k (M E26) 18,573 - - - 18,573
Due to a jointly-controlled JRE A+ At [7] 42
entity B IE 17,542 - - - 17,542
113,901 242,944 96399 179433 1,632,677
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Group (continued)

Note: Included in interest-bearing bank loans are certain term loans in
the aggregate amount of HK$159,018,000. The loan agreements of
these term loans contain a repayment on-demand clause giving the
bank the unconditional right to call in the loan at any time and
therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, the total
amount is classified as “on demand”.

Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not believe
that the related loans will be called in their entirety within
12 months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid
in accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the financial
position of the Group at the date of approval of the financial
statements; the Group’s compliance with the loan covenants; the
lack of events of default, and the fact that the Group has made all
previously scheduled repayments on time. In accordance with the
terms of the loans, the contractual undiscounted payments are as

37. WA B 45 B H B R BB (4H)

U B 4 B ()

AL (5)

Mt « 51 B ERAT Bk 3G 25 T 8 Bk s B 3k
159,018,000% It © % % & W1 £ 3K W 5 3 i
TR R R BE R AT R K > T ST IR
P BE R » AT B R R K > R s Ak L
TRB] FRPUTT 5 SRS [HREER ] -

A L gk > EEMEE > A R
AEHI2MA N EEH I > ER R H
IR B0 O AR O B K b T R 20
H ARG o FPA 755 B3« A4 A B s it
A H O B DL - A A A
Bk~ MR T > DR ACSE [
IR A 382 9T A S T8 ST o AR e B K Y A
o BRIRFEAHRWT :

follows:
2013
TR AR
HK$’000
T#
Within one year or on demand 14 N R AR B ok 415,661
Between 1 and 2 years 1 FE 24 93,766
Between 2 and 5 years 2E 54 80,503
Over 5 years 541R 97,341
687,271
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Year ended 31 March 2013

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

All of the Company’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period are repayable within one year or on

demand.

In addition, as disclosed in note 33(a), the Company has
given financial guarantees to banks in respect of banking
facilities granted to subsidiaries of the Company, of which
HK$753,549,000 (2012: HK$947,955,000) was utilised at
the end of the reporting period. In the event of the failure
of those subsidiaries to fulfil their obligations under
these banking facilities, the Company may be required
to pay up to the guaranteed amounts to the banks upon
demand. Management considers it is not probable that
the Company will be required to pay for any claim under

these financial guarantees.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a periodical basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital and will balance
the Group’s overall capital structure through new share

issues as well as raising new debts or repayment of existing

debts.
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Year ended 31 March 2013

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio
derived from the consolidated statement of financial
position. The following table analyses the Group’s capital
structure as at 31 March 2013:

WaE ()

ACER AR B2 B A A B IR D0 Wit Y
TR RREREE S - TRAALEMR
FEZ2HEZA=ZT - HE AR Z 4T

2013 2012
TR AR R
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T#C F#T

Total interest-bearing bank loans A5 R ERAT B 667,718 884,637
Less: Pledged time deposits W TR E WAk - (1,075)

Cash and cash equivalents B4 RBEESEY (365,705) (359,326)
Net borrowings TG K 302,013 524,236
Total equity (restated) HARERS (RRTEF)) 1,515,006 1,190,515
Net gearing ratio HAE AR LE R 20% 44%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 19 March 2013, the Group entered into a share
transfer agreement with Mr. Ngai for the acquisition of
the entire equity interest in Flower Ocean Limited and its
subsidiary (collectively the “Flower Ocean Group”), for
a total consideration of approximately HK$299 million.
The transaction was completed on 22 May 2013. Up to
the date of acquisition, Flower Ocean Group has not
carried out any significant business activities except
for holding a property in Hong Kong. Therefore, this
transaction has been accounted for by the Group as
an acquisition of assets as the operation of the Flower
Ocean Group does not constitute a business. Further
details of the transaction are set out in the Company’s
announcement dated 19 March 2013.

38. W W% g

RoB-ZFEZAFIJUE o A BB R
A2 BT O T A R 1 0 DA WO Flower Ocean
Limited } J: Bt A 7] (585 % [ Flower Ocean
EEDZEZMBAMER  ARARENR
299,000,000#7C = #%IHR 5 CHER —F—=
IR T T HSER o BB H A L
Flower Oceandf M| i A # 47 4F f] T K 3 %
WH o MERAFW - HY RS HIt
A AR 1B 5% T 32 5 AR R WO o B AR > BRI
FsFlower Ocean®f [ ) 488 b A4 & — JE 3%
B o BRI 5 0 — 5560 > R AL
FAHBA ZE-ZE=ZHFLHMAER -
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38. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 38. W M g ()

(continued)
The net assets acquired by the Group in the above AR Bk G AR EEW T ¢

transaction are as follows:

HK$’000
F#x
Properties held for development FEEERZWE 400,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FHAT ARIE ~ 4% 4 B I il JE Wk 47
Cash and cash equivalents Bl & R Bl &S H D 234
Other payables and accruals Al W ARk 3k B T 4 22 (3,217)
Interest-bearing bank loans A B ERAT Bk (98,000)
299,064
Total consideration satisfied by: AR TF I R -
Entire issued share capital of Gold Vantage SiRAMRAR (8] A
Limited (“Gold Vantage”) and the loan owing OB 47 B AS B 858 28 A A 45 ]
by Gold Vantage to a subsidiary — [ B I 2 W] Z Bk
of the Group 25,098
235,000,000 consideration shares PR B0.671 ¥ JC B 1T Y
of HK$0.671 each 235,000,000 B¢ AR 18 1B £ 157,685
Cash B4 116,281
299,064
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Year ended 31 March 2013
EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(continued)
The net assets of Gold Vantage which was disposed of in
the above transaction as part of the consideration are as

follows:

ZF=E=H=1+—H
38.

e 01 4% e ()

M2y b3t 22 B v A AT 5 ) B8 2 3
BEMWT

HK$’000
T¥#7x
Property, plant and equipment L ERR T Y 11,685
Investment properties ®EY ¥k 4,000
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FEAT AR ~ 4% 4 B Al R Wk 146
Cash and cash equivalents & RBEFHD 48
Other payables and accruals HAth B A 3K I TH AR 2 (8)
Deferred tax liabilities 7 J1E i JE £ (738)
15,133
Gain on disposal of Gold Vantage B S k2 9,965
25,098
COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS 39. KR ¥

As further explained in note 2.2 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new and revised
HKFRSs during the current year, the accounting
treatment of certain items and balances in the financial
statements have been revised to comply with the new
requirements. Accordingly, certain prior year adjustments
have been made, certain comparative amounts have been
reclassified and restated to conform with the current
year’s presentation and accounting treatment, and a third
statement of financial position as at 1 April 2011 has

been presented.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on

14 June 2013.

40.

T A B s 2 B 2. 20 R > Y AR AR
PR FE T A T AL A T A o B s e
Jift DA Sk 785 5 S 96 43 D I A A R 0 O
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T SR FE B B R B e PR — B>
AT 7 HB 43 DA I AR BE R R > N HUE R Ll
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